
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JANUARY 24, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

January 24, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: ROLL CALL: Pastor A.C. Phipps - 
Evanswood Church of God 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  (a) Officer Nickie Kaptur – First Annual Service to Children Award 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2774 E. Maple Road – No Action Required Due to 
Applicant Relocation 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake 
Road, Section 3 - R-1B to R-1T (Z 696-B) 1 

C-3 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 
10 - R-1C to R-1T (Z 699) 1 

C-4 Rezoning Application – Northwest Corner of Maple Road and Livernois Road, 
Section 28 – O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 (Z 602-B) 2 

C-5 Special Assessment Roll – Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions – 
Section 6 – Project No. 04.403.1 – Also Enclosed are Communications from Some 
Residents Regarding This Proposed Project 2 



C-6 Special Assessment Roll – Asphalt Paving of the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions- 
Section 6 – Project No. 04.104.1 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1  No Postponed Items 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 4 

a) Arbor Day Proclamation 2005-2006 ..................................................................... 4 

E-4  Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 5 

E-5  Sunset Excavating, Inc. v. MDOT (As Agent for the City of Troy) 5 

E-6  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Deficit Elimination Plan 5 

E-7  Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licensed Business – Asia Mart 
– 36949 Dequindre 5 

E-8  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Tarek and Lina M. Nagia, 2943 
Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-004, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 6 

E-9  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 
Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-030, 2903 E. Square Lake Road 6 

E-10  Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licensed Business – The Beer 
Barrel – 4935 John R Road 6 

E-11  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 
Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-056, 2679 E. Square Lake Road 7 



E-12  Request to Offer to Sell Surplus Parcel #1 at Appraised Value to Tom Obertynski 
and Agatha Obertynski – Consent Judgement Dated January 21, 2004 7 

E-13  Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 5 Surplus Parcels 8 

E-14  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Michael G. Leinonen and Catherine 
Helena Leinonen, 2803 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-226-002, Project No. 01.105.5 
– Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 8 

E-15  Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed – Pulte Land Company, L.L.C., 
Wyngate of Troy Subdivision, Sidwell #88-20-05-300-002 8 

E-16  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 
Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-300-016, Troy School District 8 

E-17  Request to Approve Payment for an Above Ground Pool Not Included in the Real 
Estate Appraisal, Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-
25-229-001, Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5 9 

E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 9 

E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Office Supplies 9 

E-20  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Concrete Pavement 
Repair 10 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 10 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Election Commission; 
Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Troy Daze Committee; 
c) Planning Commission Appointments of Chair, Vice Chair, and Board of Zoning 
Appeals Representative and Alternate 10 

F-2 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines 14 

F-3 Donation of Historic House by Harriet Barnard 15 



F-4 Participation in the Administration of School District Elections 15 

F-5 Sole Source – Purchase of Hurst Hydraulic Spreaders 15 

F-6 Final Engineering Proposal for Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Stabilization 16 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 17 

a) Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgement 
(SP 883-C) – Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard 
and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B – February 7, 2005 ............................ 17 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 17 

a) Summary of Phase I Findings for Water System Feasibility Study ..................... 17 
b) Voter Identification Cards and Absentee Voter Applications............................... 17 
c) Recommendation to Reject Proposal for Nature Center Exhibits and 

Fabrication.......................................................................................................... 17 
d) Recreation Pass Fee Recommendations for 2005 ............................................. 17 
e) Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Operation ............................................................ 17 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1  No Referrals Advanced 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 1, 2004............................... 17 
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – December 7, 2004...................... 17 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 8, 2004 .. 17 
d) Planning Commission/Final – December 14, 2004............................................. 17 
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 5, 2005 .................................. 17 
f) Library Board/Draft – January 13, 2005.............................................................. 17 

J-2 Department Reports: 17 



a) Travel Expense Report – Mayor Louise Schilling – National League of Cities 
Conference......................................................................................................... 17 

b) Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued During the Year 2004............. 17 
c) Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued During the Month of 

December, 2004 ................................................................................................. 17 
d) Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued July Through December, 

2004 ................................................................................................................... 17 
e) December 31, 2004 Quarterly Financial Report ................................................. 17 
f) 2004 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report ................................................................ 17 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church Thanking the 
Troy Police Department for Assistance with Traffic Control During Christmas 
Services.............................................................................................................. 17 

b) Certificate of Appreciation Thanking Sergeant Don Ostrowski from the 
Michigan Public Purchasing Officers Association for His Presentation on 
Emergency Preparedness .................................................................................. 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 17 

J-5  Calendar 18 

J-6  Hunciag v. City of Troy 18 

STUDY ITEMS: 18 

K-1  Community Media Network 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 Closed Session 18 

RECESSED 18 

RECONVENED 18 

ADJOURNMENT 18 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

Monday, February 07, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 19 



Monday, February 16, 2005 Liquor Violation Hearings ......................................... 19 
Monday, February 21, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 19 
Monday, February 23, 2005 Liquor Violation Hearings ......................................... 19 
Monday, February 28, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 19 
Monday, March 07, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 19 
Monday, March 21, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 19 
Monday, March 28, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 19 
Monday, April 04, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 19 
Monday, April 18, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 19 
Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 19 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: ROLL CALL: Pastor A.C. Phipps - 
Evanswood Church of God 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  (a) Officer Nickie Kaptur – First Annual Service to Children Award 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2774 E. Maple Road – No Action Required Due to 
Applicant Relocation 

 
C-2 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake Road, 

Section 3 - R-1B to R-1T (Z 696-B) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Square Lake Road, Section 3, being one (1) acre in size, is hereby GRANTED, 
as recommended by Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 

10 - R-1C to R-1T (Z 699) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, south of Trinway, Section 10, being 2.74 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-4 Rezoning Application – Northwest Corner of Maple Road and Livernois Road, 

Section 28 – O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 (Z 602-B) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 rezoning request located on the northwest corner 
of Maple Road and Livernois Road, Section 28, being 0.7 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, 
as recommended by Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-5 Special Assessment Roll – Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions – 

Section 6 – Project No. 04.403.1 – Also Enclosed are Communications from Some 
Residents Regarding This Proposed Project 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has caused Special Assessment Roll No. 04.403.1 to be 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following 
described public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 
Sanitary Sewer installation in Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1, Charnwood Hills #2, 
and Charnwood Hills #3 Subdivisions 
 
AND WHEREAS, The City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and 
have reviewed said Special Assessment Roll and have heard all persons interested in said 
Special Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing; 
 
AND WHEREAS, The City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared 
by the City Assessor; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Assessment Roll No. 04.403.1 in the amount of 
$2,593,750.00 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to, and become a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-6 Special Assessment Roll – Asphalt Paving of the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions- 

Section 6 – Project No. 04.104.1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has caused Special Assessment Roll No. 04.104.1 to be 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following 
described public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 
Bituminous Paving in Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1, Charnwood Hills #2, and 
Charnwood Hills #3 Subdivisions 
 
AND WHEREAS, The City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and 
have reviewed said Special Assessment Roll and have heard all persons interested in said 
Special Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing; 
 
AND WHEREAS, The City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared 
by the City Assessor; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Assessment Roll No. 04.104.1 in the amount of 
$986,537.50 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to, and become a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1  No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Special Meeting of January 7, 2005 at 7:30 PM, the 
Special Meeting of January 10, 2005 at 5:30 PM, the Special Meeting of January 10, 2005 at 
6:30 PM, the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 10, 2005, and the Special 
Meeting/Study Session of January 17, 2005 at 7:30 PM be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
a) Arbor Day Proclamation 2005-2006 
 
WHEREAS, In 1872 J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a 
special day be set aside for the planting of trees; and 
 
WHEREAS, This holiday called Arbor Day was first observed with the planting of more than a 
million trees in Nebraska and is now observed throughout the nation and the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, Trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our 
fires, and countless other wood products; and 
 
WHEREAS, Trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 
business areas, and beautify our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is well that we bring attention to our trees and the need to continue to plant them 
about our homes, our places of business, our industries, our schools, our highways, and 
throughout the landscape so that their majesty will reflect our appreciation of the grandeur of 
nature and further the culture and economy of our state. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
WHEREAS, Troy desires to be recognized as a Tree City USA by The National Arbor Day 
Foundation and wishes to continue its tree-planting ways; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
PROCLAIMS May 6, 2005 and May 5, 2006 as Arbor Day in the City of Troy, and urges all 
citizens to support our city’s urban forestry program and to plant trees to gladden the hearts and 
promote the well-being of present and future generations. 
 
E-4  Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE City ordinances 
Chapter 98, 98.05.16 Fireworks and Chapter 93, 3301.1.3 Fireworks for the purpose of 
celebrating Chinese New Year at the Mon Jin Lau restaurant, located at 1515 East Maple 
Road, on February 7, 2005. 
 
E-5  Sunset Excavating, Inc. v. MDOT (As Agent for the City of Troy) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy’s interests in the matter of Sunset Excavating, Inc. v State of Michigan Department 
of Transportation and to pay all expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
E-6  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Deficit Elimination Plan 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Deficit Elimination Plan for the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is 
hereby APPROVED. 
 
E-7  Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licensed Business – Asia Mart 

– 36949 Dequindre 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from MJMN, Inc., to transfer ownership of a 2004 SDD and SDM 
licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County 
[MLCC REQ ID# 268689] from Asia Mart, Inc., be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended “above all 
others” for issuance. 

 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with MJMN, Inc., to transfer ownership of a 2004 SDD and SDM 
licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689] and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-8  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Tarek and Lina M. Nagia, 2943 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-229-004, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Tarek and Lina M. Nagia 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2943 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-229-004, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $3,063.00. 
 
E-9  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 

Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-030, 2903 E. Square Lake Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Richard L. and Sherry L. Hawkins, 
owners of the property having Sidwell#88-20-01-476-030, and the City of Troy, for the 
acquisition of right-of-way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion project is APPROVED in the amount 
of $28,200 plus closing costs. 
 
E-10  Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licensed Business – The Beer 

Barrel – 4935 John R Road 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from MK 2, L.L.C., to transfer ownership of a 2004 SDD and 
SDM licensed business located at 4835 John R, Troy, Michigan 48098, in Oakland County 
[MLCC REQ ID# 271602] from Faten A and A, Inc., be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 

 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with MK 2, L.L.C., to transfer ownership of a 2004 SDD and SDM 
licensed business located at 4835 John R, Troy, Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from 
Faten A and A, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 271602] and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-11  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 

Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-056, 2679 E. Square Lake Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase with conditions between Kimberley Bernia, 
owner of the property having Sidwell#88-20-01-476-056, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition 
of right-of-way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion project is APPROVED in the amount of $27,950 
plus closing costs. 
 
E-12  Request to Offer to Sell Surplus Parcel #1 at Appraised Value to Tom Obertynski 

and Agatha Obertynski – Consent Judgement Dated January 21, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the surplus parcel #1, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-032 is hereby APPROVED to 
be offered to Tom and Agatha Obertynski and sell the property to them at the appraised value 
of $340,000.00 to satisfy paragraph #10 of the consent judgment dated January 21, 2004. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

E-13  Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 5 Surplus Parcels 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department, in conjunction with the 
Purchasing Department is AUTHORIZED to advertise to sell by sealed bid to the highest 
bidder, at or above the minimum bid value established as the appraised value, the following 
listed surplus parcels.  
 
Parcel#  Sidwell#  Appraised Value              Type Property  
 
  6                   20-10-477-017      $200,000.00                Vacant Residential 
  7                   20-13-227-008      $87,000.00                  Vacant Residential 
  8                   20-15-352-006      $170,000.00                 Improved – House 
 18                  20-24-352-041      $102,000.00                Vacant Residential 
 19                  20-24-451-029      $82,500.00                  Vacant Residential 
 
E-14  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Michael G. Leinonen and Catherine 

Helena Leinonen, 2803 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-226-002, Project No. 01.105.5 – 
Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Michael G. Leinonen and 
Catherine Helena Leinonen pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2803 
Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-002, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of 
$6,636.00. 
 
E-15  Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed – Pulte Land Company, L.L.C., 

Wyngate of Troy Subdivision, Sidwell #88-20-05-300-002 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed from Pulte Land Company, L.L.C., owner of property in 
the southwest ¼ of Section 5, having Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby directed to RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-16  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 

Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-300-016, Troy School District 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between the Troy School District, owner of the 
vacant property having Sidwell #88-20-01-300-016, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of 
right-of-way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion project is APPROVED in the amount of 
$69,700.00, plus closing costs. 
 
E-17  Request to Approve Payment for an Above Ground Pool Not Included in the Real 

Estate Appraisal, Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-
229-001, Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, payment for an 
existing above ground swimming pool not valued in the appraisal is hereby APPROVED to be 
paid in the amount of $4,455.38, to Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo as part of the payments for 
relocating from 2907 Thames, having Sidwell # 88-20-25-229-001, which is being acquired by 
the City of Troy for the Big Beaver to Dequindre Road Improvement Project. 
 
E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide fleet vehicles from Signature Ford L-M Jeep Eagle is 
hereby APPROVED through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an 
estimated total cost of $47,840.00. 
 
E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Office Supplies 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
WHEREAS, On March 19, 2001, a cooperative contract for Office Supplies was approved with 
Office Depot as a result of a bid process conducted by Los Angeles County and made available 
through the U.S. Communities Program (Resolution #2001-03-160-E4); and  
 
WHEREAS, Office Depot and the City of Troy exercised an option to renew the contract under 
the same discount structure, terms, and conditions expiring April 4, 2005 (Resolution #2004-02-
040-E6); and 
 
WHEREAS, Office Depot has extended the option until March 4, 2006,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXTENDED with Office Depot under the same discount structure, terms, and conditions 
expiring March 4, 2006. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

E-20  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Concrete Pavement 
Repair 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to complete the City of Troy’s Concrete Pavement Repair Program 
are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, Major Cement Company of Detroit, MI for Proposal 
A, Hard Rock Concrete Inc. of Westland, MI - Proposal B, and Six S, Inc. of Waterford, MI - 
Proposal C, at estimated total costs of $824,775.00, $458,975.00, and $507,865.00 
respectively for completion by June 30, 2005, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened December 10, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are contingent upon contractors submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total 
project cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time 
that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Election Commission; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Troy Daze Committee; 
c) Planning Commission Appointments of Chair, Vice Chair, and Board of Zoning 
Appeals Representative and Alternate 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold red lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/08 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hay, David R 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/08 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol A 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/08 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
York, G Thomas 09/30/08 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
None on File 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council (3) – 1 year 
 
 Term expires 01-31-2006 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anderson, David C 01-31-06 
Dewan, Timothy 01-31-05 
Bartholomew, Tonni Charter 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Brodbine, Anju C. 08/13/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
DeBacker, Deborah 05/20/02-05/2004 06/03/02 
Gauri, Kul B 08/26/99-07/3/03-07/2005  
Larue, Patricia M 08/12/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Salgat, Charles J 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-04/23/04-

04/2006 
09/17/01-05/03/04 

Silver, Neil S 06/9/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Ziegenfelder, Peter 12/07/00-06/11/01-

6/11/03-05/2005 
12/18/00-07/09/01- 
06/16/03 

 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired term expires 05-15-2006 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Ms Marjorie A Biglin 03/01/07 
Mr Wilson Deane Blythe 03/01/05 
Ms Barbara Chambers 03/01/05 
Mr Paul C Lin 05/15/06 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Ms. Ann Partian 03/01/05 
Ms Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Ms Dorothy  Scott (Resigned) 05/15/06 
Ms Vilin Zhang ( Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Krivoshein, Kerry S 08/12/99-06/14/01-

05/2003 
11/08/04 

Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03-
07/2005 

07/09/01-11/08/04 

Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04-11/08/04 
 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Almassian, Carolyn 01/31/06 
Freliga, Victor P 01/31/08 
Krokosky, Robert J 01/31/05 
Lamerato, John M 01/31/06 
Miesiak, Conrad E 01/31/06 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bluhm, Kenneth 11/24/00 12/04/00 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Schultz, Robert M 01/15/01 01/22/01 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-04/23/04-

04/2006 
02/02/04- 
05/03/04 

Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Sobota, Christopher A 02/14/02-02/2004 02/18/02 
 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 11/30/07 
 
 Term expires 11/30/07 
 
 Term expires 11/30/07 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berk, Robert A 11/30/06 
Cyrulewski, Jim D. 11/30/04 
Dilley, Cecile 11/30/04 
Gonda, Michael S 11/30/06 
Kaltsounis, Kessie 11/30/05 
Hall, William F 11/30/05 
Mehta, Dhwani (Student) 07/01/05 
Musick, Marilyn K. 11/30/04 
Stewart, Jeffrey (Repr to Parks/Rec Board) 09/30/06 
Preston, Robert S 11/30/05 
Whitton-Kaszubski, Cheryl A 11/30/06 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Asjad, Zarina J 05/01/0-05/2005 05/05/03 
Freliga, Mary E 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Hashmi, Amin 08/22/02-08/2004  
Huber, Laurie G 09/22/00-06/18/01-05/2003 09/22/00-07/09/01 
Lenivov, Victor 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/04 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 07/10/01-07/2003 07/23/01 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solarte, Remedios A. 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Wells, Alexandra 08/22/02-08/2004 09/09/02 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That, pursuant to MCL 211.7u, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES the proposed “Poverty Exemption Guidelines” for 2005, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 18, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

F-3 Donation of Historic House by Harriet Barnard 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement by and between Harriet Barnard and the City of Troy for the 
donation of a Historical House is hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original 
minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Participation in the Administration of School District Elections 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Election Consolidation Legislation enacted December of 2003 requires that a 
municipality’s elected bodies enter into an agreement to participate in school elections for the 
districts, which fall within the municipality boundary; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has determined that they will assume the responsibility of 
Coordinator of Elections for all of the school districts within Oakland County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Avondale, Birmingham, Bloomfield, Lamphere, Royal Oak, Troy, Warren 
Consolidated, Oakland Intermediate and Macomb Intermediate School Districts, and Oakland 
Community College all fall within the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is the intent of the City of Troy to participate in the elections for the above-
mentioned school districts. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy OPTS TO PARTICIPATE in the 
administration of the School District Elections for the Avondale, Birmingham, Bloomfield, 
Lamphere, Royal Oak, Troy, Warren Consolidated, Oakland Intermediate and Macomb 
Intermediate School Districts, and Oakland Community College. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Sole Source – Purchase of Hurst Hydraulic Spreaders 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Apollo Fire Equipment is the sole provider of Hurst Rescue equipment in Michigan; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to replace older hydraulic spreaders with units that provide greater 
versatility and spreading force; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That, the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase 
seven (7) Mini-Lite spreaders and hand pumps from Apollo Fire Equipment at an estimated total 
cost of $18,900.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Final Engineering Proposal for Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Stabilization 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Hubbell, Roth & Clark, in accordance with the general engineering contract, was 
authorized by City Council Resolution No. 2002-06-379 dated June 17, 2002 to provide 
engineering services to the City of Troy and; 
 
WHEREAS, Hubbell, Roth & Clark was hired to study the problem of the eroding streambank  
areas on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course and develop some alternatives to correcting the erosion 
problem; 
 
WHEREAS, Hubbell, Roth & Clark has submitted their engineering proposal for developing the 
final plans, specifications, soil borings, and necessary permits for the proposed Sylvan Glen 
Golf Course Streambank Stabilization Project;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Troy is PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION to 
proceed with the engineering proposal from Hubbell, Roth & Clark to prepare the final plans, 
specifications, soil borings and to obtain the necessary permits for the proposed Sylvan Glen 
Golf Course Streambank Stabilization Project at a cost not to exceed $75,000.     
 
Yes: 
No:  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgement (SP 883-C) 

– Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 
– O-1 and R-1B – February 7, 2005 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Summary of Phase I Findings for Water System Feasibility Study  
b) Voter Identification Cards and Absentee Voter Applications  
c) Recommendation to Reject Proposal for Nature Center Exhibits and Fabrication  
d) Recreation Pass Fee Recommendations for 2005  
e) Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Operation 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 1, 2004  
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – December 7, 2004  
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 8, 2004  
d) Planning Commission/Final – December 14, 2004 
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 5, 2005  
f) Library Board/Draft – January 13, 2005 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Travel Expense Report – Mayor Louise Schilling – National League of Cities Conference  
b) Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued During the Year 2004   
c) Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued During the Month of December, 2004  
d) Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued July Through December, 2004  
e) December 31, 2004 Quarterly Financial Report  
f) 2004 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church Thanking the Troy Police 

Department for Assistance with Traffic Control During Christmas Services  
b) Certificate of Appreciation Thanking Sergeant Don Ostrowski from the Michigan Public 

Purchasing Officers Association for His Presentation on Emergency Preparedness 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Hunciag v. City of Troy 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  Community Media Network 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e): Papadelis v. City of Troy – Pending Litigation; City of Troy v. 
Premium Construction – Pending Litigation. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 24, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, February 07, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 16, 2005 ............................................... Liquor Violation Hearings 
Monday, February 21, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 23, 2005 ............................................... Liquor Violation Hearings 
Monday, February 28, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 07, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 21, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 28, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 04, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 18, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 25, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



bittnera
Text Box
A-01a



 
 
DATE:   January 19, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2774 E. Maple 
 
 
 
 
On December 9, 2004, information was sent to Donna Venticinque that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property that she 
owned.  As part of that information, she was advised that the Volvo semi tractor and 
trailer parked on the property did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, 
Section 40.66.00.  She was given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City 
Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letter, Craig Phillips, a tenant of the home, has filed an appeal.  The 
appeal requests that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A 
public hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of January 24, 2005. 
 
Although we originally received a letter from the owner authorizing the parking of the 
vehicle on the site, we have since received notice of eviction proceedings regarding the 
tenants because of the parking of this vehicle.  Copies of the correspondence are 
included for your reference.  On January 18, 2005 we received the enclosed letter that 
indicates that the tenants have moved from the home.  Attempts to contact the 
petitioner failed due to the phone being disconnected.  While their letter does not 
withdraw their request, since they are no longer residents of the structure, it would seem 
that there is no justification for hearing a request on the appeal of the ordinance.     
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 



 





 









 1

January 17, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION 

– West side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake Road, 
Section 3 – R-1B to R-1T (Z 696-B) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed R-1T One Family Attached District is consistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan.  At the December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the R-1T Zoning District.  The R-1T Zoning District is an 
appropriate buffer between a major thoroughfare and a single-family residential district.  
The application is compatible with abutting uses and zoning districts.   
 
The applicant has consolidated this one-acre parcel with a two-acre parcel to the south.  
City Management further encourages acquisition of and consolidation with the 5 single-
family residential lots to the south, between the strip mall and the parent parcel.  
However, this cannot be required since the applicant meets the criteria in both the 
Future Land Use Plan and the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
City Management concurs with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of 
the subject rezoning. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Dale Russel.  The applicant is Chary, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road, north of Square Lake 
Road, in Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is comprised of lots 25 and 26 of Golf Estates Subdivision.  The parcel is 
approximately one acre in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single-family residence currently sits on the property.  

bittnera
Text Box
C-02



 2

Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1B One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The abutting two-acre parcel to the south was rezoned from R-1B to R-1T at the 
October 25, 2004 City Council meeting.  The application indicates that the applicant is 
proposing to combine this parcel with the abutting parcel to the south, thus creating a 
three-acre parcel.  The applicant intends to develop an 18-unit residential development, 
comprised of 6 buildings with 3 attached units per building, for a total of 18 units. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
 
South: Vacant. 
 
East: Single family residential. 
 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1B One Family Residential District. 
 
South: R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
East: R-1D One Family Residential District. 
 
West: R-1B One Family Residential District. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 



 3

 Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road and Ottawa Avenue. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the property as Medium Density Residential.  The 
Medium Density Residential classification correlated with the R-1T Zoning District in the 
Plan.  The application is therefore consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density 
or high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a 

planned residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood 
development (34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Plan. 

 
The application meets the standard of (A) above and therefore meets the Location 
Standards of the R-1T District. 
 



 4

 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
3. Letter from petitioner, dated October 21, 2004. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 696-B) 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM/PPB 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-696B Chary Villas Addl Prop Sec. 3\CC Public Hearing 01 24 05.doc 





brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 696-B) – Proposed Chary 

Villas (additional property to the north), West side of Rochester Road, North of 
Square Lake, Section 3 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One 
Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning application.    
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering Group of 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher stated the application meets 
the Future Land Use Plan and locational standards.  He said the intent is to 
combine the recently rezoned 4 parcels to the south with the subject parcel to 
develop 18 units of unattached products.  Mr. Mosher offered to address any 
concerns or questions the Commission might have. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-153 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road and north of Square Lake Road, within Section 3, being 
approximately 1 acre in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 







 1

January 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
  
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – 

West side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-
1T (Z 699) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The frontage of the parcel is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  At the 
December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission determined that the 
rezoning application is consistent with the depth of the Medium Density Residential 
classification shown on the Future Land Use Plan, and recommended approval of the 
rezoning request.  The R-1T Zoning District is an appropriate buffer between a major 
thoroughfare and a single-family residential district.  The application is compatible with 
abutting uses and zoning districts.  City Management concurs with the Planning 
Commission recommendation and recommends approval of the rezoning application. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Robert S. Binder Building.  The applicant is Fred Binder.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road, south of Trinway, in 
Section 10. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.74 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a condominium development on the property. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-03



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
 
South: Single family residential. 
 
East: Single family residential. 
 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 



 3

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.  A site visit indicated there is an open drain on the western half of the 
property.  It will need to be determined during the site plan review process whether 
there are any wetlands on the property.  There are also  woodlands on the property.  
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates 
with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  On the surface, the rezoning application is 
consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  However, the depth of the subject parcel is 
570 feet.  The exact depth of the Medium Density Residential classification cannot be 
determined from the Future Land Use Plan because it is conceptual in nature.  If the 
City Council agrees with the Planning Commission and determines that the depth of the 
parcel is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, the application would be considered 
to be consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density 
or high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a 

planned residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood 
development (34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Plan. 

 
The Planning Commission determined that the depth of the parcel is consistent with the 
depth of the area classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density 
Residential.  If the City Council has the same finding of fact, the application would meet 
the standard of (A) above and therefore meet the Location Standards of the R-1T 
District. 
 
Research shows that other R-1T parcels located on Rochester Road within the Medium 
Density Residential classification exceed 570 feet in depth (see attached table).   



 4

Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Table:  R-1T Parcel Sizes and Depths. 
3. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
4. Letter from petitioner, dated November 10, 2004. 
5. Two (2) letters of opposition, both dated December 14, 2004. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM/PPB 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 699) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 699 BRIGGS CROSSING SEC 10\CC Public Hearing 01 24 05.doc 





brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon







R-1T ZONING DISTRICTS 
PARCEL SIZES AND DEPTHS 

 
Development/Units Location File # Parcel 

Size 
Parcel Depth  
(from ROW) 

Enclave of Troy 
36 units 

Northwest corner of Wattles & John R 
Section13 

SP-92 6.6 ac. 600’ from Wattles 
563’ from John R 

Maya’s Meadows 
28 units 

East side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles, 
Section 14 

SP-857 5.3 ac. 617’ from Rochester 

Charleston Club Condominiums 
12 units 

North side of Long Lake Road, west of 
Livernois, Section 9 

SP-844 0.6 ac. 333’ from Long Lake 

Harrington Park Condominium 
34 units 

North side of Long Lake Road, west of 
Livernois, Section 9 

SP-861 5.9 ac. 333’ from Long Lake 

Fountain Park Condominium 
14 units 

West side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles, 
Section 14 

SP-871 2.7 ac. 336’ from Rochester 

Sandalwood North of Troy 
54 units 

South side of South Boulevard, west of 
Rochester Rd., Section 3 

SP-854 10.1 ac. 1037’ from South 

Sandalwood South of Troy 
54 units 

West side of Rochester Road, south of South 
Blvd., Section 3 

SP-853 9.45 ac. 1255’ from Rochester  

Undeveloped 
 

East side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles 
Road, Section 14 

 14.11 
ac. 

670’ from Rochester 

The Fairways 
100 units 

East side of Rochester Road, south side of 
Square Lake Road, Section 11 

SP-702 19.9 ac. 1221’ from Rochester 
772’ from Square Lake 

Wattles Creek Townhouses 
210 units 

South side of Wattles, west of I-75, Section 21. SP-180 28.9 ac. 2741’ from Wattles 

Undeveloped South side of Long Lake, west of Rochester, 
Section 15. 

 14.5 ac. 924’ from Wattles 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 699 BRIGGS CROSSING SEC 10\R-1T Parcels 12 14 04.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 699) – Proposed Briggs Crossing 
Condominium, West side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – From R-1C 
(One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Savidant referenced three handouts relating to the proposed rezoning 
request.  They are:  (1) an amended page 2 of the Planning Department report with 
respect to natural features; (2) a table identifying R-1T zoning districts parcel sizes and 
depths; and (3) a letter of opposition received today.   
 
Mr. Savidant cited the sizes and depths of specific parcels located within the R-1T 
zoning district from former rezoning requests.  Mr. Savidant reported that Article 
12.40.01 states that the R-1T zoning district may be applied to property when the 
application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use 
Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density or high density 
residential.  Mr. Savidant said the subject application would meet this standard and the 
locational standards of the R-1T district should the Planning Commission determine that 
the depth of the parcel is consistent with the depth of the area classified on the Future 
Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential.   
 
The petitioner, Fred Binder of 5215 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Binder said 
he thinks the request fits within the Future Land Use Plan, and it does appear that 
similar depths have been approved in the past.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain referenced the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the depth of the 
R-1T zoning versus the commercial to the south.  He said it appears that the subject 
parcel would be deeper or the same depth as the commercial to the south.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-154 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester Road and 
south of Trinway, within Section 10, being approximately 2.74 acres in size, be granted, 
for the following reason:  
 

1. That it complies with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Littman 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said he thinks the parcel goes too deep when you look at the neighborhood 
and how it is put together.  









 1

January 13, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – 

Northwest corner of Maple Road and Livernois Road, Section 28 – O-1 to 
B-1, B-2 or B-3 (Z 602-B) 

 
Note: The applicant has applied to rezone the parcel from O-1 to B-1.  City 

Management prepared the Public Hearing notice to advertise a potential 
rezoning to B-1, B-2 or B-3.  This was done to provide the Planning 
Commission and City Council the ability to consider additional zoning districts.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommended rezoning the parcel to B-3 General 
Commercial at their December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting.  City Management concurs 
with the Planning Commission and recommends rezoning the parcel to B-3 General 
Business, which complies with the Future Land Use Plan.  The proposed B-3 zoning 
district is appropriate and compatible with the adjacent zoning districts and land uses.  
Furthermore, all uses permitted within the B-1 district are also permitted within the B-3 
district. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Larry Farida. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Maple Road and Livernois Road, in 
Section 28. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is 30,301 net square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A vacant bank building sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
O-1 Office Building.  

bittnera
Text Box
C-04



 2

Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that the existing building will remain and a 2,350 square foot 
addition will be constructed.  Red Wagon Shoppe relocation is proposed.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Office.  
 
South: Red Wagon Shoppe (City of Clawson). 
 
East: Clark gas station. 
  
West: Commercial retail. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 Community Business and O-1 Office Building.  
 
South: B-3 General Business (City of Clawson). 
 
East: B-1 Local Business. 
 
West: B-2 Community Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Local retail businesses which supply commodities on the premises, for persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas, such as but not limited to: Groceries, meats, 
dairy products, baked goods or other foods dispensed for consumption off the site, 
hardware, drugs and pharmaceuticals. 

 
Specialty shops such as, but not limited to:  Antique shops, craft shops, and shops 
for the sale of gifts and notions. 

 
Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises, such as, 
but not limited to: repair shops (watches, radio, television, shoe, etc.) beauty parlors 
and barber shops, and self-service laundries. 

 
Dry cleaning establishments, or pick-up stations, dealing directly with the consumer.  
Central dry cleaning plants serving more than one retail outlet shall be prohibited. 



 3

Business establishments which perform services on the premises such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance companies, and real estate offices.  Banks, savings and loan 
associations, and credit unions may include drive-up facilities only as an accessory 
use. 

 
 Professional services including the following:  medical clinics, (out-patient only) and 

offices of doctors, dentists, osteopaths and similar or allied professions. 
 

Post office and similar governmental office buildings, serving persons living in the 
adjacent residential area.   
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 

  
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

City and School District buildings, public utility buildings, telephone 
exchange buildings, electric transformer stations and substations, gas 
regulator stations, and water and sewage pumping stations, without storage 
yards. 

  
 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including dormitories) 

 
 Incidental Customer Seating as an accessory to food sales establishments 
 
It should be noted that the B-1 through B-3 commercial zoning districts are characterized 
by a “pyramiding” of uses; that is, uses permitted in the least intense districts are also 
permitted in the more intense districts.  Therefore a use that is permitted in B-1 is permitted 
in B-2, and a use permitted in B-2 is permitted in B-3.  Attached is a full summary of the B-
1, B-2 and B-3 uses permitted. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on both Maple Road and Livernois Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The following summarizes the zoning district correlation for commercial designations in 
the Future Land Use Plan: 



 4

Commercial Primary Secondary 
Local Service Area B-1 O-1 
Community Service Area B-2 B-3, B-1, O-1 
Non-Center Commercial B-3 H-S 
Regional Center B-2 B-3, H-S 

 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the subject property as Non-Center Commercial, 
which has a primary correlation with the B-3 district and a secondary correlation with the 
H-S district.  The Non-Center Commercial designation does not correlate with the B-1 
zoning district according to the Plan.  Therefore on the surface, the rezoning application 
is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
The Future Land Use Plan categorizes the northeast and northwest corners of the 
Maple/Livernois intersection as Non-Center Commercial.  The northeast corner is zoned 
B-1.  The northwest corner stretches to the west to Heide, a distance of approximately 
one-half mile.  In that entire area, the only parcel that is zoned either B-3 or H-S is a thin 
sliver of land that is zoned H-S and used as a car wash.  The remainder is zoned B-2 
and O-1.  The Non-Center Commercial areas at the Maple/Livernois intersection are 
generally not consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
The subject parcel was zoned B-1 in the past.  On March 8, 1988, the Planning 
Commission recommended that the parcel be rezoned from B-1 to O-1.  According to 
the meeting minutes, this action was initiated by the Planning Commission to “provide a 
higher level of control as to the future use of these sites, while at the same time 
enabling reasonable office use such as that presently in place”.  The parcel was 
designated as Non-Center Commercial at the time of the rezoning.  The rezoning was 
approved by City Council on April 25, 1988.  It appears that this rezoning was 
inconsistent with the Plan that was in place in 1988. 
 
This analysis raises the question:  If the desired uses of the property were for lower 
impact commercial and office, the area should have been designated as Local Service 
Area or Community Service Area.  The general area was historically and is currently 
designated Non-Center Commercial.  Because of the designation, the B-1 zoning 
district does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.  However, B-3 does comply 
with the Future Land Use Plan.  City Management supports the Non-Center Commercial 
designation and the B-3 zoning district. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
There are no Location Standards for the B-1 Local Business District. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Summary of uses permitted in B-1, B-2 and B-3 (Articles XX through XXII). 
3. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
4. Letter from petitioner dated November 15, 2004. 
5. Letter in opposition to rezoning, dated December 14, 2004. 
 

cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 602-B) 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM/PPB 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-602 B Red Wagon Shoppe\CC Public Hearing 01 24 05.doc  





brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon















































PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 602-B) – Proposed Red Wagon 
Shoppe, Northwest corner of Maple and Livernois, Section 28 – From O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) to B-1 (Local Business), B-2 (Community Business) or B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller said the Planning Department cannot recommend rezoning the 
parcel to the B-1 zoning district, as requested by the petitioner, because it does not 
comply with the Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve rezoning the parcel to B-3 General Business, 
which complies with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if the current building would become non-conforming if zoned B-
1, B-2 or B-3.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that there would be no non-conformity issues if the parcel is zoned B-1.  
He said there would be front and rear yard setback non-conformities if zoned B-2, and a 
rear yard setback non-conformity if zoned B 3.  Mr. Miller said it appears there would not 
be enough landscaped open space no matter what the site is zoned. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if the site immediately to the west currently meets the zoning 
requirements of the B-2 zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the site immediately to the west meets the front yard setback 
requirements, but he is uncertain about the rear yard setback requirements.   
 
Mr. Wright asked the zoning classification for the K-Mart property. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that it is in the B-2 zoning district.   
 
The petitioner, Larry Farida of 3105 Interlaken, West Bloomfield, was present.  Mr. 
Farida, owner of the Red Wagon Shoppe on the south side of Maple, said he would like 
to move the wine cellar building to the north side of Maple.  This move would provide 
him with additional square footage.  Mr. Farida said he has applied to the State of 
Michigan for a liquor license.  It is his understanding that one license is available in the 
City of Troy and would most likely be approved if the property were zoned for retail use.  
Mr. Farida said another alternative would be to purchase a liquor license from licenses 
held in escrow.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Gonway of Hyman Lippitt, P.C., 322 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, was present.  
Mr. Gonway represents Peter P. Ruppe, Inc., the owner of the parcel of land to the 
immediate west of the subject property.  Mr. Gonway distributed additional copies of his 
letter dated December 14, 2004, that addresses his client’s concerns relating to the 
proposed rezoning.   
 
Mr. Gonway said the property, whose most visible tenants are The Good Food Company 
and Priya Indian Cuisine Restaurant, has a history of parking problems and it is his 
client’s concern that the parking problems would increase should the rezoning be 
approved.  Mr. Gonway also expressed concern with respect to the conceptual site plan 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
 

relating to square footage.  Mr. Gonway requested that the item be tabled for additional 
review. 
 
Peter P. Ruppe, Jr., of 19815 E. Nine Mile, St. Clair Shores, was also present.   
 
Chair Waller stated the request before the Commission tonight is only the rezoning, and 
no consideration is given at this time for any site plan, sketch or drawing submitted with 
the application.  He confirmed that the decision of the Commission tonight is only a 
recommendation to the City Council. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the Maple Road corridor has been taken under review by the 
Planning Commission with the intent to make the thoroughfare more viable.  He said the 
intent is to bring all of the land into conformance with the Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said he would prefer to rezone the subject parcel to B-3, and asked the 
petitioner if he would be agreeable to either B-2 or B-3 zoning. 
 
Mr. Farida said he would be agreeable to any of the business zoning classifications. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-155 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Maple Road and Livernois, within Section 28, being approximately 30,301 square feet in 
size, be granted, and that the zoning district be B-3 (General Business), not B-1 or B-2, 
so that the parcel would be in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman instructed the petitioner that a request to table the site plan would be 
appropriate only at the time of Site Plan Approval.  Mr. Littman said he is in favor of 
supporting the Future Land Use Plan and would not want to create non-conforming 
uses.  Mr. Littman said there are few parcels on Maple Road that do meet the setback 
requirements, including the property immediately to the west of the subject parcel.  Mr. 
Littman said he believes B-3 zoning would work the best.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 









January 12, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:   John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Subject:  Agenda item: Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 

for Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer   
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that you request Council to vote on Standard 
Resolution #4, the approving resolution for Special Assessment District 
#04.403.1 (this is sanitary sewer installation in the Charnwood Hills, and 
#1, #2, and #3 Subdivisions).  This vote will occur after consideration of all 
comments during the Public Hearing on the same subject.  
 
**Please note updated information (in yellow) on the attached 
memorandum from the January 10, 2005 meeting. ** 
 
Detail: 
Staff met with the property owners in the district on June 10, 2004.  At this 
meeting details of the proposed construction, Special Assessment 
procedures, costs of the project and the apportionment of said costs, 
amortization tables and schedules of payments, and the availability and 
eligibility requirements for Community Block Grant Development Funds, 
were discussed with the residents. 
 
Numerous petitions were returned to the City Clerk’s office in September, 
October and November of 2004, reflecting eighty-five (85) of one-hundred-
sixty-five (165) assessable units or 50.91% in favor of the project.  The 
City Assessor analyzed these petitions, and in conjunction with the 
signatories at the top of this memo, presented the analysis to Council on 
January 10, 2005. 
 
City Council approved Standard Resolutions #1, 2, & 3 for this project on 
January 10, 2005, after reviewing the Petition Analysis and the 
Engineering Cost Estimates. The January 24, 2005 Public Hearing was 
also set at this meeting. 
 
After the Public Hearing, City Council will vote on whether to approve the 
Special Assessment District, and Roll, by adopting Standard Resolution 
Number 4, as specified by City Charter.  Failure of the Resolution to pass 
will terminate the project in this configuration. 
 
NL/nl 

bittnera
Text Box
C-05



Page 1 of 1City of Troy GIS Online

8/16/2004http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Inserted Text

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
Colored Rectangles are votes in favor.  Yellow = Sewer & Paving.                     Blue = Paving only.   Grey = Sewer only.

licarila
Text Box
Charnwood Hills, #1, #2 & #3 Special Assessment Districts for Sanitary Sewer & Bituminous (Asphalt ) Paving

licarila
Text Box
TEWKSBURY













CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
MEETING TO REVIEW THE NECESSITY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF SANITARY SEWER IN 
CHARNWOOD HILLS, CHARNWOOD HILLS #1, CHARNWOOD HILLS #2, and CHARNWOOD 
HILLS #3 SUBDIVISIONS, AND TO HEAR ANY AND ALL OBJECTIONS TO THE NECESSITY 
OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AND SAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ASSESSED AGAINST 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 04.403.1 IN THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Council will meet at City Hall on the 24th day of January, 2005 at 
7:30 o'clock p.m., for the purpose of reviewing the necessity for the installation of Sanitary Sewer  
in Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1, Charnwood Hills #2, and Charnwood Hills #3 
Subdivisions, Project No. 04.403.1, and of hearing any and all objections to the necessity of the 
public improvement and Special Assessment made in the matter of construction of the following 
described improvement: 
 
Installation of Sanitary Sewers. 
 
The Assessment Roll is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public examination.  The Special 
Assessments therein contained have been assessed according to law against the parcels of land 
constituting Special Assessment District No. 04.403.1, which District is described as follows: 
 
T2N, RllE, Section 6, 

 
88-20-06-151-001 88-20-06-303-006 88-20-06-351-004 88-20-06-451-002 
88-20-06-151-002 88-20-06-303-007 88-20-06-351-005 88-20-06-451-003 
88-20-06-151-003 88-20-06-303-008 88-20-06-351-006 88-20-06-451-004 
88-20-06-151-004 88-20-06-303-009 88-20-06-351-007 88-20-06-451-005 
88-20-06-151-011 88-20-06-303-010 88-20-06-351-008 88-20-06-451-006 
88-20-06-151-012 88-20-06-303-011 88-20-06-351-009 88-20-06-452-001 
88-20-06-151-013 88-20-06-303-012 88-20-06-352-001 88-20-06-452-002 
88-20-06-151-014 88-20-06-326-001 88-20-06-352-002 88-20-06-452-006 
88-20-06-152-001 88-20-06-326-002 88-20-06-352-003 88-20-06-452-007 
88-20-06-152-002 88-20-06-326-004 88-20-06-352-004 88-20-06-452-008 
88-20-06-152-003 88-20-06-326-005 88-20-06-352-005 88-20-06-452-009 
88-20-06-152-004 88-20-06-326-006 88-20-06-352-006 88-20-06-453-001 
88-20-06-152-005 88-20-06-326-007 88-20-06-352-007 88-20-06-453-002 
88-20-06-152-006 88-20-06-326-009 88-20-06-352-008 88-20-06-453-003 
88-20-06-152-007 88-20-06-326-010 88-20-06-352-009 88-20-06-453-005 
88-20-06-152-008 88-20-06-326-011 88-20-06-352-010 88-20-06-453-006 
88-20-06-152-009 88-20-06-327-001 88-20-06-352-011 88-20-06-476-001 
88-20-06-152-010 88-20-06-327-002 88-20-06-352-012 88-20-06-476-002 
88-20-06-177-008 88-20-06-327-004 88-20-06-401-001 88-20-06-476-003 
88-20-06-177-009 88-20-06-327-005 88-20-06-401-002 88-20-06-476-004 
88-20-06-177-010 88-20-06-327-006 88-20-06-401-003 88-20-06-476-005 
88-20-06-177-011 88-20-06-328-001 88-20-06-401-004 88-20-06-476-006 
88-20-06-301-001 88-20-06-328-002 88-20-06-426-001 88-20-06-476-007 
88-20-06-301-002 88-20-06-328-003 88-20-06-426-002 88-20-06-476-008 



88-20-06-301-003 88-20-06-328-004 88-20-06-426-003 88-20-06-476-009 
88-20-06-301-004 88-20-06-328-005 88-20-06-426-004 88-20-06-476-010 
88-20-06-301-005 88-20-06-328-007 88-20-06-426-005 88-20-06-476-011 
88-20-06-301-006 88-20-06-328-008 88-20-06-426-006 88-20-06-476-012 
88-20-06-302-001 88-20-06-328-009 88-20-06-426-007 88-20-06-476-013 
88-20-06-302-002 88-20-06-328-010 88-20-06-427-001 88-20-06-476-014 
88-20-06-302-003 88-20-06-328-011 88-20-06-427-002 88-20-06-476-015 
88-20-06-302-004 88-20-06-328-012 88-20-06-427-003 88-20-06-476-016 
88-20-06-302-005 88-20-06-328-013 88-20-06-427-004 88-20-06-476-017 
88-20-06-302-006 88-20-06-328-018 88-20-06-427-005 88-20-06-477-001 
88-20-06-302-007 88-20-06-328-019 88-20-06-427-006 88-20-06-477-002 
88-20-06-302-008 88-20-06-328-020 88-20-06-427-007 88-20-06-477-003 
88-20-06-302-009 88-20-06-328-021 88-20-06-427-008 88-20-06-477-004 
88-20-06-303-001 88-20-06-328-022 88-20-06-427-009 88-20-06-477-005 
88-20-06-303-002 88-20-06-351-001 88-20-06-427-010 88-20-06-477-006 
88-20-06-303-003 88-20-06-351-002 88-20-06-427-011 88-20-06-477-007 
88-20-06-303-004 88-20-06-351-003 88-20-06-451-001 88-20-06-477-008 
88-20-06-303-005    

 
 
The special assessment for your property is $ 15,719.697 
 
The above assessments and all proceedings upon which they are based shall not be contestable, 
unless suit to contest the validity thereof is instituted within thirty (30) days after the date of 
confirmation of said Special Assessment Roll No. 04.403.1. 
 
The owner or any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of the 
special assessment with the state tax tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of the special 
assessment roll if that special assessment was protested at the hearing held for the purpose of 
confirming the roll. 
 

 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3317 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



CITY OF TROY

Special Assessment Roll Number: 04.403.1 For defraying the expense of construction for:
Installation of Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1, Charnwood Hills #2, and 

Charnwood Hills #3 Subdivisions.

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify and report that the foregoing is a special assessment roll, and the assessment made by me
pursuant to a resolution of the City Council adopted on the 24th day of January A.D.

2005 , for the purpose of paying that part of the cost which the Council decided should be  paid and borne by
special assessmentfor the purpose of Sanitary Sewer Installation in Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1,
Charnwood Hills #2, and Charnwood Hills #3 Subdivisions

That in making such assessment I have, as near as may be and according to my judgement, conformed in
all things to the direction contained in the resolution of the Council herinbefore referred to, and the Charter of the City
relating to such assessments.

Dated at the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan on this 24th day of January
A.D., 2005 .

Leger A. (Nino) Licari,          City Assessor

Advertised:

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing assesment roll was filed on the 24th day of
January A.D., 2005 , and approved and confirmed by the Council of the City of Troy on the

24th day of January A.D., 2005 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk

In the name of the People of the State of Michigan
To the Treasurer of the City of Troy, in the County of Oakland, Michigan.

You are hereby commanded to collect from each of the several persons assessed in the Special Assessment
Roll hereunto annexed, the amount of money assessed to and set opposite his name therein, said amount being payable in

20 installments due February 1, 2006
respectively, with interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum or such other rate of interest per annum which is not
in excess of 1% of the rate borne by bonds issued in anticipation of the collection of said special assessment roll from and
after February 1, 2006 .

And in case any named in said Roll shall neglect or refuse to pay his assessment upon demand, after the same
becomes due, you are hereby authorized to levy and collect the same by distress and sale of the goods and chattels of
such person, and return said Roll and Warrant, together with your doing thereon within sixty (60) days;  for so doing this
shall be your sufficient Warrant.

Given under my hand and Seal of the City of Troy, Michigan, this 24th day of January
A.D., 2005 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk



 1

December 28, 2004 
 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
 Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 

 
 Re: Agenda Item:  Petition Analysis, Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills               

Subdivisions – SAD # 04.403.1 
 
The City Assessor has analyzed numerous petitions presented from property 
owners of the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions in Section 6, requesting the 
installation of sanitary sewers throughout the subdivisions, and the creation of a 
Special Assessment District to finance the project. 
 
There are one hundred-sixty five (165) assessable units in the project area.  
Eighty-five (85) of the affected unit owners have signed the petition in favor of the 
project.  This equates to 50.91% of the owners being in favor of the paving. 
 
This is the third time the residents in this area have requested information on 
sanitary sewers in the area.  None of the previous submittals totaled more than 
20% of the residents.   
 
This is the single largest area in the City that is without sanitary sewer service 
and asphalt paving.  The streets in this area are a gravel base, with a chip seal 
coat  that was applied in the 90’s.   
 
The renewed interest in sanitary sewers is partially the result of House Bill 5145, 
which would allow the City to delay the tap in  to existing sewer lines  within 18 
months, provided the septic system has been inspected, and deemed to be in 
good working order (this bill has been stalled in the House Committee on Local, 
Urban and State Affairs since November of 2003, and does not appear likely to 
be reintroduced).Additionally, City Council has adopted revisions to Ordinance 
Chapter 19, requiring septic system inspections every four (4) years. 
 
This proposed district is the result of meetings with residents, conducted by 
Engineering Department staff, on June 10, 2004.  Through the summer and fall, 
residents of the area have worked diligently with staff to outline the boundaries of 
the proposed district, which would provide sanitary sewer to all areas of 
Charnwood Hills, and Charnwood Hills 1, 2, and 3. 
 

licarila
Text Box
sanitary sewer

licarila
Text Box
corrected 01/12/05



 2

Smaller districts can be created to bring sanitary sewer into the region, and 
bypass many (but not all) of the areas that are opposed to this project.  These 
smaller districts could be created by the submission of new petitions, or by City 
Council resolution itself, under authority of the City Charter, Chapter 10, and 
Chapter 5, of the City Ordinances.  
 
The cost of this project is substantial, and a twenty (20) year payment schedule 
is recommended and attached.  
 
Additionally, while Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG) are 
pledged for the project, there is reason to believe that sufficient funds may not be 
available to cover all of the qualifying homesteads.  Staff has determined that 
approximately $389,000 in CDBG funds could be made available for this project, 
over the two year expected completion time.  With an anticipated 17 – 19 homes 
qualifying for the CDBG funds, the amount of exposure is between $365,888.62 
and $408,934.34 (creating a shortage of funds of $19,934.34 at the high end). 
 
When this situation presented itself, the Engineering Department conducted a 
poll of the residents affected by the project, and received twenty (20) responses 
from residents that feel they do qualify for the CDBG funding.  
 
It is possible that there might be two (2), or three (3) other qualifying homes in 
the area.  In this scenario, the City at large might be responsible for four (4) 
additional qualifying homes, at $21,522.86 each, plus the $19,934.34 shortage 
that occurs in the 19th home, for a total of $106,025.78. 
 
Staff recommends the approval of this contingent payment, based upon the 
actual number of households qualifying. 
 
Also, the owners have also petitioned for bituminous (asphalt) paving in the area.  
This should be the next regular business item on the agenda.  Should Council 
decide not to proceed with the sanitary sewer installation, staff would strongly 
suggest that no bituminous paving be installed, as it would all have to be 
removed to install sanitary sewers, at a future time.   
 
Finally, staff recommends that you request City Council Approve Standard 
Resolution #1 (preparation of plans and cost estimates for the project), Standard 
Resolution #2 (approval of the cost estimates), and Standard Resolution #3 
(setting a public hearing for this project) as submitted. 
 
 

licarila
Text Box
       29

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
        10

licarila
Text Box
   $235,162.94

licarila
Text Box
01/20/05 Updates in Yellow



04.403.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

88-20-06-151-001 2956 TEWKSBURY FAMBROUGH, HENRY & NORMA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-151-002 2914 TEWKSBURY SLATER, THOMAS & KAIA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-151-003 2880 TEWKSBURY ECCLESTON, JOHN 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-151-004 2840 TEWKSBURY HIBBARD, FREDERICK G 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-151-011 2800 TEWKSBURY CIARAMITARO, PETER 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-151-012 2740 BRETBY PERKINS, CARLA 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-151-013 2710 BRETBY ELSTER, WILLIAM P 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-151-014 6511 MALVERN GOUDA, MOHAMED & THERESE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-152-001 2955 TEWKSBURY IVERY, BESSIE LEE 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-152-002 2915 TEWKSBURY BLIZMAN, WAYNE & JANE 1 2 1 1
88-20-06-152-003 2875 TEWKSBURY GOSSETT, JAY & JENNIFER 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-004 2835 TEWKSBURY MOFFAT, KEITH S 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-152-005 2795 TEWKSBURY SHOQUIST, RE: ROCHE, MARGARET 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-006 2761 BRETBY MONTGOMERY, CYNTHIA 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-152-007 6496 TUTBURY BLISS, NANCY J 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-152-008 6472 TUTBURY HOFFMAN, LAWRANCE F 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-009 6448 TUTBURY GEMOLAS, NICHOLAS & SHERRY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-010 6424 TUTBURY MANLEY, LANNY & JOSEPHINE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-177-008 2680 BRETBY MC CARDY, ROBERT & PATRICIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-177-009 2640 BRETBY KULAS, JERRY C & EDWINA E 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-177-010 2600 BRETBY DAIEK, DAVID E 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-177-011 2560 BRETBY BOOTH TRUST, CHARLES & NANCY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-177-012 2526 BRETBY GUSTILO, C & D  (NOT IN DISTRICT) 0 2 2 0 *
88-20-06-301-001 6495 TUTBURY BROQUET, TONI ANN 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-301-002 6374 ADAMS BREWSTER, GLENN W 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-301-003 2974 BRETBY BREWSTER, BERTHA 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-301-004 6461 TUTBURY MOORE, WARREN L & JOANNE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-301-005 2898 BRETBY WATKINS, LARRY C & MARGIE L 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-301-006 2848 BRETBY FLETCHER, GEORGE & ELEANOR 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-001 2983 BRETBY FRANCO, STANLEY N 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-002 2949 BRETBY BIELSKI, ANTHONY V 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-003 2899 BRETBY CASPER JR, JAMES & RUTHANNE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-302-004 6385 TUTBURY MELCHERT, DONALD A 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-005 6351 TUTBURY HOLAS, KENNETH 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-006 6327 TUTBURY GERARD, STEVEN & DEBORAH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-007 2990 CHARNWOOD GOBLE, GEORGE R & LAURIE ANN 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-008 2960 CHARNWOOD CLAPP, KEITH & MARTHA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-009 6303 TUTBURY BORIN, JAMES & MERI 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-001 6396 TUTBURY PALMER, ESTHER 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-002 6372 TUTBURY JA DITTY & ASSOC 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-303-003 6348 TUTBURY HAGELSTEIN, CHARLES 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-004 6324 TUTBURY CUNNINGHAM, JAMES &  RUTH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-005 2860 CHARNWOOD SMITH, JEFFREY & DONNA 1 2 1 1
88-20-06-303-006 2745 BRETBY POLLOCK, ROBERT & TERESA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-007 6455 MALVERN KOPKAU, GARY W 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-008 6437 MALVERN JOHNSON, PATRICIA: WISHART, ROBERTA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-009 6419 MALVERN MYONG, JOHN & CHRISTINA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-010 6393 MALVERN MARTIN, ANNA 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-011 6345 MALVERN REED, ANDREW & JENNIFER 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-012 2830 CHARNWOOD POST, SUZANNE: HARBOUR DIANE 1 2 0 0

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

1



04.403.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

88-20-06-326-001 2673 BRETBY CARY, ALLAN P 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-326-002 2621 BRETBY BANGHART, LAWRENCE J 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-326-004 6492 MALVERN CASALOU, STEPHEN & SUSIE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-326-005 6468 MALVERN MACDONALD, RODERICK & JUDITH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-006 6444 MALVERN ANDERSON, JAMES & SALLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-007 6420 MALVERN LUCAS, JOSEPH MARK 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-326-009 6455 ANSLOW STEC, GEORGE & ARLENE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-010 6433 ANSLOW TINETTI, ROSEMARY 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-326-011 2626 RAMSBURY GOSSELIN, GLEN & VICTORIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-001 6440 ANSLOW MOYLAN, THOMAS & JULIE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-002 6476 ANSLOW BARINGER, ROGER K & MARY BETH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-004 6410 ANSLOW NORDEN, MARK & ROBIN 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-005 2550 RAMSBURY GALLOP, DOUGLAS E & LUNETTA E 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-327-006 2520 RAMSBURY SHABA, KHALID 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-001 6360 MALVERN BLAKE TRUST, DIANE & RICHARD 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-002 2625 RAMSBURY HADDOCK, DAVID 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-003 2593 RAMSBURY AMICO, JOHN & PATRICIA D 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-004 2525 RAMSBURY BEGDORIAN, GARY & CAROL 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-005 2505 RAMSBURY SHUCK, HENRY & MAY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-007 6307 BEACH BONNICI TRUST,  PATRICIA WILLARD 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-328-008 6305 ANSLOW HAQUE TRUST, SELIMUL & AMINA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-009 6321 ANSLOW HAROON, HAFEEZ & HEENA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-010 6355 ANSLOW MORRIS, DORIS 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-011 6330 MALVERN FITZPATRICK, ROBERT & JANET 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-012 2760 CHARNWOOD WATKINS, ANTHONY & ANNE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-013 2730 CHARNWOOD HEATON TRUST, MARY ALICE J 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-018 2520 CHARNWOOD KRIEBEL TRUST, VALENTINA & ARNOLD 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-019 2556 CHARNWOOD COSTIGAN, PAUL & ANN 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-020 6300 ANSLOW CAMPBELL, GERALD & GRACE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-021 6345 BEACH WEISGERBER, JOHN & DENISE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-022 2580 CHARNWOOD BLACKWOOD, ROGER 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-001 2991 CHARNWOOD BULLOCK, HARRY & BETTY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-351-002 2955 CHARNWOOD SCHWEITZER, FREDA: BAKER JACQUELINE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-351-003 2915 CHARNWOOD JANKOWSKI, THOMAS & DIANA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-351-004 2865 CHARNWOOD SOKOLY, GEORGE R 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-005 6213 MALVERN SHEPPARD, JOHN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-006 6227 MALVERN FORIL TRUST, JOHN R 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-007 6239 MALVERN AGRO, ANTHONY & DIANNE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-351-008 6263 MALVERN GOSS, ROBERT LEE 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-351-009 2825 CHARNWOOD NORMAN, KATHRYN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-001 6214 MALVERN STERLING, DENNIS & ELLA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-352-002 6228 MALVERN MUSZYNSKI, JAMES & MARSHA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-352-003 6242 MALVERN HINKLE, JAMES E 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-004 6256 MALVERN YATES, DONALD A 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-352-005 6270 MALVERN SAVAYA, ANJEL 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-006 6284 MALVERN HAQUE TRUST, SELIMULL & AMINA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-352-007 2759 CHARNWOOD PARISEN, JON & MARIA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-352-008 2725 CHARNWOOD HASCALL, KENT D 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-352-009 2595 CHARNWOOD DAVIES, KENNETH & CAROL 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-352-010 2575 CHARNWOOD WEZENSKY, BRIAN 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-352-011 2555 CHARNWOOD HESSLING, KATHLEEN 1 1 1 1

2



04.403.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

88-20-06-352-012 2525 CHARNWOOD GUPTA, ANIK & NEELUM 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-401-001 2498 DALESFORD BRUSCA, ANTHONY & SUSAN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-401-002 2470 DALESFORD STANICHUK, ROBERT & CAROL 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-401-003 2440 DALESFORD BRIHKO, JOHNNY 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-401-004 2410 DALESFORD MIELA, DEBORAH L: GOLD, GLORIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-426-001 2270 CHALGROVE ELLISTON, DAVID & JOYCE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-426-002 2230 CHALGROVE DUNN, CHARLES R & KAREN A 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-426-003 2190 CHALGROVE FRANZ, RICHARD & SANDRA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-426-004 2150 CHALGROVE MURRAY, CHARLENE 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-426-005 2110 CHALGROVE RETKO, EDWARD 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-426-006 2070 CHALGROVE MC KAY, JOSEPH & DIANA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-426-007 2030 CHALGROVE TAORMINA, CHUCK & JANICE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-427-001 2251 CHALGROVE PAIK, LISA & EUGENE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-427-002 2211 CHALGROVE LOWING, JOSEPH 1 3 3 1
88-20-06-427-003 2161 CHALGROVE KHAWAJA, KASHIF 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-004 2121 CHALGROVE ASHARE, VERA 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-005 2091 CHALGROVE SMITH, CHARLES & ANNTREAL 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-427-006 2041 CHALGROVE BALES, JACK & JACQUELINE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-427-007 2240 DALESFORD SESTAK, PETER A 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-008 2160 DALESFORD GUITAR TRUST, BEVERLY 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-009 2130 DALESFORD MALCHO, CHARLES M 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-427-010 2080 DALESFORD SCHMIDT, DARCY & NANCY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-427-011 2040 DALESFORD FESTIAN, GERALD & PAMELA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-451-001 2497 DALESFORD PARKS, RALPH S & BARBARA A 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-451-002 2469 DALESFORD KEBBE, LOIS 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-451-003 2435 DALESFORD NIEMEN, MICHAEL & ANGELE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-451-004 2480 CHARNWOOD JOHIMSTHAL, JAMES & SALLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-451-005 2450 CHARNWOOD HARTIG, KEVIN & KIRSTEN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-451-006 2420 CHARNWOOD KRETSCHMER, THOMAS & KERI 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-452-001 2475 CHARNWOOD WEISGERBER, JOHN & DENISE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-452-002 6140 BEACH ENGLISH, LARRY & JUDITH 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-452-006 2441 CHARNWOOD KELLY, CAROL D 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-452-007 6125 GLYNDEBOURNE ROSE, GENEVA L 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-452-008 6081 GLYNDEBOURNE PRYDE, DANIEL & LIANA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-452-009 6041 GLYNDEBOURNE DAWIDOWICZ, PETER & AMY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-001 6158 GLYNDEBOURNE LAMB, RICHARD & CARRIE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-002 6114 GLYNDEBOURNE STEGEMAN, THOMAS & LORI 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-003 6068 GLYNDEBOURNE VANG, YIARAVANH 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-453-005 2305 CHARNWOOD SIMMONS, STEVEN & DONNA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-006 6071 WINDRUSH FUNK, ROBERT & LISA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-001 2345 DALESFORD VANG, JEFREE 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-002 2251 DALESFORD LAPALM, MARK J 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-003 2245 DALESFORD KELLY, RALPH T 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-476-004 2205 DALESFORD LAVERDIERE, DAVID A & GRACE L 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-476-005 2145 DALESFORD CHAMPINE, CALVIN D 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-476-006 2105 DALESFORD KOKAL, JACK W 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-007 2065 DALESFORD FISHER, ROBERT & JILL 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-008 0 GOSSELIN, ROBERT 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-009 2350 CHARNWOOD HAGEN, BERNARD & SHARON 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-010 2310 CHARNWOOD AUSTIN, RICHARD & CARMALITA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-011 2260 CHARNWOOD DUDA, EDMUND 1 1 1 1

3



04.403.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

88-20-06-476-012 2220 CHARNWOOD KOCHAJDA, VICTOR & CAROLYN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-013 2180 CHARNWOOD HOOTON, GEORGE & BETTY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-014 2140 CHARNWOOD VANEVERY, BARANT & GLORIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-476-015 2100 CHARNWOOD GIANCOTTI, PRISCILLA: DUTCHESEN, BARBARA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-016 2060 CHARNWOOD ALI, MOHAMMAD & UZMA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-017 2020 CHARNWOOD BOOSER, ROBERT & KIMBERLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-477-001 6100 WINDRUSH JOHNSON, IVAN R & ZOE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-002 2211 CHARNWOOD ELLIOTT, NANCY ANN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-477-003 2181 CHARNWOOD CLIPPERT, THOMAS & SUSAN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-004 2141 CHARNWOOD BALOCATING, GEORGE & GLORIA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-005 2101 CHARNWOOD BUCHESKY, DAVID M 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-477-006 0 GOSSELIN, ROBERT 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-477-007 2021 CHARNWOOD BOOSER, CHARLES C 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-477-008 6042 WINDRUSH TROGDEN, RYAN & KATHY 1 2 2 1

165 267 136 84
Units

# of # of Owners Signed
Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

Total Percentage of Available Units Signed in Favor ===> 50.91

4



Page 1 of 1City of Troy GIS Online

8/16/2004http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

LicariLA
Text Box
Not in District

LicariLA
Inserted Text

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P



City of Troy Charnwood Hills Subs. 1,2 & 3 Sanitary Sewer SAD
500 W. Big Beaver Road Proj. No. 04.403.1

Troy, Michigan 48084
Prepared by: G. Scott Finlay, P.E.

Preliminary Engineer's Estimate Date: 03/15.01
Revised 6/8/2004

Description Unit Est. Qty Unit price Total     

1 Video of Construction Area LSUM 1.00 8,000.00        $8,000.00
2 Bonds, Insurance & Initial Set-up LSUM 1.00 59,550.00      $59,550.00
3 Remove Trees 8"-18" EACH 2.00 400.00           $800.00
4 Remove Trees 18"-36" EACH 2.00 500.00           $1,000.00
5 Remove Trees 36"-UP EACH 2.00 750.00           $1,500.00
6 Remove Drainage Structure EACH 10.00 200.00           $2,000.00
7 Removing Culverts EACH 131.00 100.00           $13,100.00
8 Remove Approach S.Y. 5825.00 3.00               $17,475.00
9 12" Sanitary Sewer, T.D. - B L.F. 630.00 70.00             $44,100.00
10 10" Sanitary Sewer, T.D. - B L.F. 1590.00 60.00             $95,400.00
11 8" Sanitary Sewer, T.D. - B L.F. 21390.00 45.00             $962,550.00
12 Boring for Sanitary Sewer L.F. 100.00 150.00           $15,000.00
13 Casing L.F. 100.00 75.00             $7,500.00
14 6" Sanitary Lead, T.D.- A L.F. 2580.00 18.00             $46,440.00
15 6" Sanitary Lead, T.D.- B (incl. Road patching) L.F. 2580.00 30.00             $77,400.00
16 4' Diameter Sanitary Manhole EACH 90.00 1,850.00        $166,500.00
17 Sewer Taps EACH 6.00 1,000.00        $6,000.00
18 Mailbox Posts EACH 50.00 100.00           $5,000.00
19 Reditching L.F. 25000.00 2.00               $50,000.00
20 12" CMP, 14 gage, Culvert L.F. 3600.00 18.00             $64,800.00
21 Std. 12" CMP End Sections EACH 352.00 75.00             $26,400.00
22 Conc.Driveway, Nonreinforced 6" S.Y. 1200.00 30.00             $36,000.00
23 Bituminous Approach TONS 1025.00 75.00             $76,875.00
24 Class A Sodding w/ 2" Top Soil S.Y. 96000.00 2.50               $240,000.00
25 Watering (1000 gallons/unit) UNITS 600.00 20.00             $12,000.00
26 Mowing Sodded Areas Times 4.00 1,500.00        $6,000.00
27 Traffic Control & Maintenance LSUM 1.00 10,000.00      $10,000.00
28 Sanitary Sewer Testing L.F. 23610.00 1.00               $23,610.00

 
Total Construction Costs $2,075,000.00

Construction Costs $2,075,000.00
Admin. & Contingency ( 25% ) $518,750.00
Total $2,593,750.00

Sanitary Sewer Only



  88-20-06-151-001           88-20-06-151-002            88-20-06-151-003 
  FAMBROUGH, HENRY           SLATER, THOMAS & KAIA       ECCLESTON, JOHN 
  2956 TEWKSBURY             2914 TEWKSBURY              2880 TEWKSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-6002  TROY        MI 48098-6002   TROY        MI 48098-6001 
  
  88-20-06-151-004           88-20-06-151-011            88-20-06-151-012 
  HIBBARD, FREDERICK G       CIARAMITARO, PETER          PERKINS, CARLA 
  2840 TEWKSBURY             2800 TEWKSBURY              2740 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-6001  TROY        MI 48098-6001   TROY        MI 48098-2106 
  
  88-20-06-151-013           88-20-06-151-014            88-20-06-152-001 
  ELSTER, WILLIAM P          GOUDA, MOHAMED & THERES     IVERY TRUST, BESSIE LEE 
  2710 BRETBY                6511 MALVERN                2955 TEWKSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2106  TROY        MI 48098-2142   TROY        MI 48098-6004 
  
  88-20-06-152-002           88-20-06-152-003            88-20-06-152-004 
  BLIZMAN, WAYNE & JANE      GOSSETT, JAY & JENNIFER     MOFFAT, KEITH S 
  2915 TEWKSBURY             2875 TEWKSBURY              2835 TEWKSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-6004  TROY        MI 48098-6003   TROY        MI 48098-6003 
  
  88-20-06-152-005           88-20-06-152-006            88-20-06-152-007 
  SHOQUIST, RE               MONTGOMERY, CYNTHIA         BLISS, NANCY J 
  2795 TEWKSBURY             2761 BRETBY                 6496 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2150  TROY        MI 48098-2168   TROY        MI 48098-2152 
  
  88-20-06-152-008           88-20-06-152-009            88-20-06-152-010 
  HOFFMAN, LAWRANCE F & CH   GEMOLAS, NICHOLAS & SHER    MANLEY, LANNY & JOSEPHIN 
  6472 TUTBURY               6448 TUTBURY                6424 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2152  TROY        MI 48098-2152   TROY        MI 48098-2152 
  
  88-20-06-177-008           88-20-06-177-009            88-20-06-177-010 
  MC CARDY, ROBERT & PATRIC  KULAS, JERRY C & EDWINA E   DAIEK, DAVID E 
  2680 BRETBY                2640 BRETBY                 2600 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2179  TROY        MI 48098-2179   TROY        MI 48098-2179 
  
  88-20-06-177-011           88-20-06-177-012            88-20-06-301-001 
  BOOTH , CHARLES & NANCY    GUSTILO, CESAR & DOMINICA   BROQUET, TONI ANN 
  2560 BRETBY                2526 BRETBY                 6495 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2105  TROY        MI 48098-2195   TROY        MI 48098-2156 
  
  88-20-06-301-002           88-20-06-301-003            88-20-06-301-004 
  BREWSTER, GLENN W          BREWSTER, BERTHA            MOORE, WARREN L & JOANNE 
  6374 ADAMS                 2974 BRETBY                 6461 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2101  TROY        MI 48098-2182   TROY        MI 48098-2156 
  
  88-20-06-301-005           88-20-06-301-006            88-20-06-302-001 
  WATKINS, LARRY C & MARGIE  FLETCHER, GEORGE & ELEANO   FRANCO, STANLEY N 
  2898 BRETBY                2848 BRETBY                 2983 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2108  TROY        MI 48098-2108   TROY        MI 48098-2153 



  88-20-06-302-002           88-20-06-302-003            88-20-06-302-004 
  BIELSKI, ANTHONY & MARY A  CASPER JR, JAMES & RUTHAN   MELCHERT, DONALD A 
  2949 BRETBY                2899 BRETBY                 6385 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2153  TROY        MI 48098-2153   TROY        MI 48098-2157 
  
  88-20-06-302-005           88-20-06-302-006            88-20-06-302-007 
  HOLAS, KENNETH             GERARD, STEVEN & DEBORAH    GOBLE, GEORGE R & LAURIE A 
  6351 TUTBURY               6327 TUTBURY                2990 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2157  TROY        MI 48098-2157   TROY        MI 48098-2113 
  
  88-20-06-302-008           88-20-06-302-009            88-20-06-303-001 
  CLAPP, KEITH & MARTHA      BORIN, JAMES & MERI         PALMER, ESTHER 
  2960 CHARNWOOD             6303 TUTBURY                6396 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2113  TROY        MI 48098-2157   TROY        MI 48098-2151 
  
  88-20-06-303-002           88-20-06-303-003            88-20-06-303-004 
  JA DITTY & ASSOC           HAGELSTEIN, ZATA            CUNNINGHAM, JAMES &  RUT 
  6372 TUTBURY               6348 TUTBURY                6324 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2151  TROY        MI 48098-2151   TROY        MI 48098-2151 
  
  88-20-06-303-005           88-20-06-303-006            88-20-06-303-007 
  SMITH, JEFFREY & DONNA     BRIGGS, TIMOTHY S & MARY S  KOPKAU, GARY W 
  2860 CHARNWOOD             2745 BRETBY                 6455 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2111  TROY        MI 48098-2107   TROY        MI 48098-2115 
  
  88-20-06-303-008           88-20-06-303-009            88-20-06-303-010 
  JOHNSON TRUST, PATRICIA    MYONG, JOHN & CHRISTINA     MARTIN, ANNA 
  6437 MALVERN               6419 MALVERN                6393 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2115  TROY        MI 48098-2115   TROY        MI 48098-2140 
  
  88-20-06-303-011           88-20-06-303-012            88-20-06-326-001 
  REED, ANDREW & JENNIFER    POST , SUZANNE              CARY, ALLAN P 
  6345 MALVERN               2830 CHARNWOOD              2673 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2140  TROY        MI 48098-2111   TROY        MI 48098-2154 
  
  88-20-06-326-002           88-20-06-326-004            88-20-06-326-005 
  BANGHART, LAWRENCE J       CASALOU, STEPHEN & SUSIE    MACDONALD, RODERICK & JU 
  2621 BRETBY                6492 MALVERN                6468 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2154  TROY        MI 48098-2141   TROY        MI 48098-2141 
  
  88-20-06-326-006           88-20-06-326-007            88-20-06-326-009 
  ANDERSON, JAMES & SALLY    LUCAS, JOSEPH MARK          STEC, GEORGE & ARLENE 
  6444 MALVERN               6420 MALVERN                6455 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2141  TROY        MI 48098-2141   TROY        MI 48098-2165 
  
  88-20-06-326-010           88-20-06-326-011            88-20-06-327-001 
  TINETTI, ROSEMARY          GOSSELIN, GLEN & VICTORIA   MOYLAN, THOMAS & JULIE 
  6433 ANSLOW                2626 RAMSBURY               6440 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2165  TROY        MI 48098-2144   TROY        MI 48098-2104 



  88-20-06-327-002           88-20-06-327-004            88-20-06-327-005 
  BARINGER, ROGER K & MARY   NORDEN, MARK & ROBIN        GALLOP, DOUGLAS E & LUNET 
  6476 ANSLOW                6410 ANSLOW                 2550 RAMSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2104  TROY        MI 48098-2104   TROY        MI 48098-2143 
  
  88-20-06-327-006           88-20-06-328-001            88-20-06-328-002 
  SHABA, KHALID & HUDA       BLAKE TRUST, DIANE & RICH   HADDOCK, DAVID G 
  2520 RAMSBURY              6360 MALVERN                2625 RAMSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2143  TROY        MI 48098-2139   TROY        MI 48098-2114 
  
  88-20-06-328-003           88-20-06-328-004            88-20-06-328-005 
  AMICO, JOHN & PATRICIA D   BEGDORIAN, GARY & CAROL     SHUCK, HENRY & MAY 
  2593 RAMSBURY              2525 RAMSBURY               2505 RAMSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2145  TROY        MI 48098-2145   TROY        MI 48098-2145 
  
  88-20-06-328-007           88-20-06-328-008            88-20-06-328-009 
  BONNICI TRUST,  PATRICIA WI HAQUE TRUST, SELIMUL & AM  HAROON, HAFEEZ & HEENA 
  6307 BEACH                 6305 ANSLOW                 6321 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2261  TROY        MI 48098-2103   TROY        MI 48098-2103 
  
  88-20-06-328-010           88-20-06-328-011            88-20-06-328-012 
  MORRIS, DORIS              FITZPATRICK, ROBERT & JANE  WATKINS, ANTHONY & ANNE 
  6355 ANSLOW                6330 MALVERN                2760 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2103  TROY        MI 48098-2139   TROY        MI 48098-2184 
  
  88-20-06-328-013           88-20-06-328-018            88-20-06-328-019 
  HEATON TRUST, MARY ALICE   KRIEBEL TRUST, VALENTINA    COSTIGAN, PAUL & ANN 
  2730 CHARNWOOD             2520 CHARNWOOD              2556 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2184  TROY        MI 48098-2109   TROY        MI 48098-2109 
  
  88-20-06-328-020           88-20-06-328-021            88-20-06-328-022 
  CAMPBELL, GERALD & GRACE   WEISGERBER, JOHN & DENISE   BLACKWOOD, ROGER 
  6300 ANSLOW                6345 BEACH                  2580 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2103  TROY        MI 48098        TROY        MI 48098-2109 
  
  88-20-06-351-001           88-20-06-351-002            88-20-06-351-003 
  BULLOCK, HARRY & BETTY     SCHWEITZER, FREDA           JANKOWSKI, THOMAS & DIAN 
  2991 CHARNWOOD             2955 CHARNWOOD              2915 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2164  TROY        MI 48098-2164   TROY        MI 48098-2164 
  
  88-20-06-351-004           88-20-06-351-005            88-20-06-351-006 
  SOKOLY, GEORGE R           SHEPPARD, JOHN              FORIL TRUST, JOHN R 
  2865 CHARNWOOD             6213 MALVERN                6227 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2112  TROY        MI 48098-2138   TROY        MI 48098-2138 
  
  88-20-06-351-007           88-20-06-351-008            88-20-06-351-009 
  AGRO, ANTHONY & DIANNE     GOSS, ROBERT LEE            NORMAN, KATHRYN 
  6239 MALVERN               6263 MALVERN                2825 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2138  TROY        MI 48098-2138   TROY        MI 48098-2112 



  88-20-06-352-001           88-20-06-352-002            88-20-06-352-003 
  STERLING, DENNIS & ELLA    MUSZYNSKI, JAMES & MARSH    HINKLE, JAMES E 
  6214 MALVERN               6228 MALVERN                6242 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2137  TROY        MI 48098-2137   TROY        MI 48098-2137 
  
  88-20-06-352-004           88-20-06-352-005            88-20-06-352-006 
  YATES, DONALD A            SAVAYA, ANJEL               HAQUE TRUST, SELIMULL & A 
  6256 MALVERN               6270 MALVERN                6284 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2137  TROY        MI 48098-2137   TROY        MI 48098-2137 
  
  88-20-06-352-007           88-20-06-352-008            88-20-06-352-009 
  PARISEN, JON & MARIA       HASCALL, KENT D             DAVIES, KENNETH & CAROL 
  2759 CHARNWOOD             2725 CHARNWOOD              2595 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2186  TROY        MI 48098-2186   TROY        MI 48098-2110 
  
  88-20-06-352-010           88-20-06-352-011            88-20-06-352-012 
  WEZENSKY, BRIAN D          HESSLING, KATHLEEN          P S RAN LLC 
  2575 CHARNWOOD             2555 CHARNWOOD              2525 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2110  TROY        MI 48098-2110   TROY        MI 48098-2110 
  
  88-20-06-401-001           88-20-06-401-002            88-20-06-401-003 
  BRUSCA, ANTHONY & SUSAN    STANICHUK, ROBERT & CARO    BRIKHO, JOHNNY 
  2498 DALESFORD             2470 DALESFORD              2440 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2227  TROY        MI 48098-2227   TROY        MI 48098-2227 
  
  88-20-06-401-004           88-20-06-426-001            88-20-06-426-002 
  MIELA, DEBORAH L           ELLISTON, DAVID & JOYCE     DUNN, CHARLES R & KAREN A 
  2410 DALESFORD             2270 CHALGROVE              2230 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2227  TROY        MI 48098-2295   TROY        MI 48098-2295 
  
  88-20-06-426-003           88-20-06-426-004            88-20-06-426-005 
  FRANZ, RICHARD & SANDRA    MURRAY, CHARLENE            RETKO, EDWARD 
  2190 CHALGROVE             2150 CHALGROVE              2110 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2294  TROY        MI 48098-2294   TROY        MI 48098-2294 
  
  88-20-06-426-006           88-20-06-426-007            88-20-06-427-001 
  MC KAY, JOSEPH & DIANA     TAORMINA, CHUCK & JANICE    PAIK, LISA & EUGENE 
  2070 CHALGROVE             2030 CHALGROVE              2253 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2202  TROY        MI 48098-2202   TROY        MI 48098-2298 
  
  88-20-06-427-002           88-20-06-427-003            88-20-06-427-004 
  LOWING, JOSEPH             KHAWAJA, KASHIF             COX, MINA J 
  2211 CHALGROVE             2161 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2298  TROY        MI 48098-2296 
  
  88-20-06-427-005           88-20-06-427-006            88-20-06-427-007 
  SMITH, CHARLES & ANNTREA   BALES, JACK & JACQUELINE    SESTAK, PETER A 
  2091 CHALGROVE             2041 CHALGROVE              2240 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2201  TROY        MI 48098-2201   TROY        MI 48098-5206 

licarila
Text Box
744 MORNINGSIDE

licarila
Text Box
GRAND BLANC  MI  48439



  88-20-06-427-008           88-20-06-427-009            88-20-06-427-010 
  GUITAR TRUST, BEVERLY      MALCHO, CHARLES M           SCHMIDT, DARCY DEL 
  2160 DALESFORD             2130 DALESFORD              2080 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5205  TROY        MI 48098-5205   TROY        MI 48098-2208 
  
  88-20-06-427-011           88-20-06-451-001            88-20-06-451-002 
  FESTIAN TRUST, PAMELA J    PARKS, RALPH S & BARBARA    KEBBE, LOIS 
  2040 DALESFORD             2497 DALESFORD              2469 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2208  TROY        MI 48098-2228   TROY        MI 48098-2228 
  
  88-20-06-451-003           88-20-06-451-004            88-20-06-451-005 
  NIEMEN, MICHAEL & ANGELE   JOHIMSTHAL, JAMES & SALLY   HARTIG, KEVIN & KIRSTEN 
  2435 DALESFORD             2480 CHARNWOOD              2450 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2228  TROY        MI 48098-2206   TROY        MI 48098-2206 
  
  88-20-06-451-006           88-20-06-452-001            88-20-06-452-002 
  KRETSCHMER, THOMAS & KER   WEISGERBER, WILLIAM H & GL  ENGLISH, LARRY & JUDITH 
  2420 CHARNWOOD             2475 CHARNWOOD              6140 BEACH 
  TROY        MI 48098-2206  TROY        MI 48098-2207   TROY        MI 48098-2285 
  
  88-20-06-452-006           88-20-06-452-007            88-20-06-452-008 
  KELLY, CAROL D             ROSE, GENEVA L              PRYDE, DANIEL & LIANA 
  2441 CHARNWOOD             6125 GLYNDEBOURNE           6081 GLYNDEBOURNE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2207  TROY        MI 48098-5212   TROY        MI 48098-2210 
  
  88-20-06-452-009           88-20-06-453-001            88-20-06-453-002 
  DAWIDOWICZ, PETER & AMY    LAMB, RICHARD & CARRIE      STEGEMAN, THOMAS & LORI 
  6041 GLYNDEBOURNE          6158 GLYNDEBOURNE           6114 GLYNDEBOURNE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2210  TROY        MI 48098-5211   TROY        MI 48098-5211 
  
  88-20-06-453-003           88-20-06-453-005            88-20-06-453-006 
  VANG, YIARAVANH            SIMMONS, STEVEN             FUNK, ROBERT & LISA 
  6068 GLYNDEBOURNE          2305 CHARNWOOD              6071 WINDRUSH 
  TROY        MI 48098-2211  TROY        MI 48098-2205   TROY        MI 48098-2260 
  
  88-20-06-476-001           88-20-06-476-002            88-20-06-476-003 
  VANG, JEFREE               LAPALM, MARK J              KELLY, RALPH T 
  2345 DALESFORD             2251 DALESFORD              2245 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5235  TROY        MI 48098-5209   TROY        MI 48098-5209 
  
  88-20-06-476-004           88-20-06-476-005            88-20-06-476-006 
  LAVERDIERE, DAVID A & GRA  CHAMPINE, CALVIN D          KOKAL, JACK W 
  2205 DALESFORD             2145 DALESFORD              2105 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5209  TROY        MI 48098-5208   TROY        MI 48098-5208 
  
  88-20-06-476-007           88-20-06-476-008            88-20-06-476-009 
  FISHER, ROBERT & JILL      GOSSELIN, ROBERT            HAGEN, BERNARD & SHARON 
  2065 DALESFORD                                         2350 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2209                              TROY        MI 48098-2267 

licarila
Text Box
2915 LENOX

licarila
Text Box
TROY  MI  48098-2348



  88-20-06-476-010           88-20-06-476-011            88-20-06-476-012 
  AUSTIN, RICHARD & CARMALI  DUDA, EDMUND                KOCHAJDA, VICTOR & CAROL 
  2310 CHARNWOOD             2260 CHARNWOOD              2220 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2267  TROY        MI 48098-5202   TROY        MI 48098-5202 
  
  88-20-06-476-013           88-20-06-476-014            88-20-06-476-015 
  HOOTON, GEORGE & BETTY     VANEVERY, BARANT & GLORI    GIANCOTTI, PRISCILLA 
  2180 CHARNWOOD             2140 CHARNWOOD              2100 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5201  TROY        MI 48098-5201   TROY        MI 48098-5201 
  
  88-20-06-476-016           88-20-06-476-017            88-20-06-477-001 
  ALI, MOHAMMAD & UZMA       BOOSER, ROBERT & KIMBERL    JOHNSON, IVAN R 
  2060 CHARNWOOD             2020 CHARNWOOD              6100 WINDRUSH 
  TROY        MI 48098-2204  TROY        MI 48098-2204   TROY        MI 48098-5230 
  
  88-20-06-477-002           88-20-06-477-003            88-20-06-477-004 
  ELLIOTT, NANCY ANN         CLIPPERT, THOMAS & SUSAN    BALOCATING, GEORGE & GLO 
  2211 CHARNWOOD             2181 CHARNWOOD              2141 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5204  TROY        MI 48098-5203   TROY        MI 48098-5203 
  
  88-20-06-477-005           88-20-06-477-006            88-20-06-477-007 
  BUCHESKY, DAVID M          GOSSELIN, ROBERT            BOOSER, CHARLES C 
  2101 CHARNWOOD                                         2021 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5203                              TROY        MI 48098-2203 
  
  88-20-06-477-008 
  TROGDEN, RYAN & KATHY 
  6042 WINDRUSH 
  TROY        MI 48098-2223 
 

licarila
Text Box
2915 LENOX

licarila
Text Box
TROY  MI  48098-2348



Project Name Charnwood Hills Sewer Only

Project # 04.403.1
Amount

20 Year Interest 0.06 $15,719.697

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 785.98$         785.98$           14,933.71$   
2 785.98$         896.02$        1,682.01$        14,147.73$   
3 785.98$         848.86$        1,634.85$        13,361.74$   
4 785.98$         801.70$        1,587.69$        12,575.76$   
5 785.98$         754.55$        1,540.53$        11,789.77$   
6 785.98$         707.39$        1,493.37$        11,003.79$   
7 785.98$         660.23$        1,446.21$        10,217.80$   
8 785.98$         613.07$        1,399.05$        9,431.82$     
9 785.98$         565.91$        1,351.89$        8,645.83$     
10 785.98$         518.75$        1,304.73$        7,859.85$     
11 785.98$         471.59$        1,257.58$        7,073.86$     
12 785.98$         424.43$        1,210.42$        6,287.88$     
13 785.98$         377.27$        1,163.26$        5,501.89$     
14 785.98$         330.11$        1,116.10$        4,715.91$     
15 785.98$         282.95$        1,068.94$        3,929.92$     
16 785.98$         235.80$        1,021.78$        3,143.94$     
17 785.98$         188.64$        974.62$           2,357.95$     
18 785.98$         141.48$        927.46$           1,571.97$     
19 785.98$         94.32$          880.30$           785.98$         
20 785.98$         47.16$          833.14$           (0.00)$           

Total 15,719.70$    8,960.23$     24,679.92$      

City of Troy
Assessing Department

12.14.04







January 12, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:   John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Subject:  Agenda item: Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 

for Charnwood Hills Bituminous (Asphalt) Paving   
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that you request Council to vote on Standard 
Resolution #4, the approving resolution for Special Assessment District 
#04.104.1 (this is bituminous paving in the Charnwood Hills, and #1, #2, 
and #3 Subdivisions).  This vote will occur after consideration of all 
comments during the Public Hearing on the same subject.  
 
Detail: 
Staff met with the property owners in the district on June 10, 2004.  At this 
meeting details of the proposed construction, Special Assessment 
procedures, costs of the project and the apportionment of said costs, 
amortization tables and schedules of payments, and the availability and 
eligibility requirements for Community Block Grant Development Funds, 
were discussed with the residents. 
 
Numerous petitions were returned to the City Clerk’s office in September, 
October and November of 2004, reflecting eighty-five (85) of one-hundred-
seventy (170) assessable units or 50% in favor of the project.  The City 
Assessor analyzed these petitions, and in conjunction with the signatories 
at the top of this memo, presented the analysis to Council on January 10, 
2005. 
 
City Council approved Standard Resolutions #1, 2, & 3 for this project on 
January 10, 2005, after reviewing the Petition Analysis and the 
Engineering Cost Estimates. The January 24, 2005 Public Hearing was 
also set at this meeting. 
 
After the Public Hearing, City Council will vote on whether to approve the 
Special Assessment District, and Roll, by adopting Standard Resolution 
Number 4, as specified by City Charter.  Failure of the Resolution to pass 
will terminate the project in this configuration. 
 
NL/nl 

bittnera
Text Box
C-06



Page 1 of 1City of Troy GIS Online

8/16/2004http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Inserted Text

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has SS

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
has P

licarila
Text Box
Colored Rectangles are votes in favor.  Yellow = Sewer & Paving.                     Blue = Paving only.   Grey = Sewer only.

licarila
Text Box
Charnwood Hills, #1, #2 & #3 Special Assessment Districts for Sanitary Sewer & Bituminous (Asphalt ) Paving

licarila
Text Box
TEWKSBURY



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
MEETING TO REVIEW THE NECESSITY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF BITUMINOUS (ASPHALT) 
PAVING IN CHARNWOOD HILLS, CHARNWOOD HILLS #1, CHARNWOOD HILLS #2, and 
CHARNWOOD HILLS #3 SUBDIVISIONS, AND TO HEAR ANY AND ALL OBJECTIONS TO THE 
NECESSITY OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AND SAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ASSESSED 
AGAINST SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 04.104.1 IN THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Council will meet at City Hall on the 24th day of January, 2005 at 7:30 
o'clock p.m., for the purpose of reviewing the necessity for the installation of Bituminous (Asphalt ) 
Paving in Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1, Charnwood Hills #2, and Charnwood Hills #3 
Subdivisions, Project No. 04.104.1, and of hearing any and all objections to the necessity of the public 
improvement and Special Assessment made in the matter of construction of the following described 
improvement: 
 
Installation of Bituminous (Asphalt) Paving. 
 
The Assessment Roll is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public examination.  The Special 
Assessments therein contained have been assessed according to law against the parcels of land 
constituting Special Assessment District No. 04.104.1, which District is described as follows: 
 
T2N, RllE, Section 6, 

 
88-20-06-151-001 88-20-06-303-007 88-20-06-351-005 88-20-06-451-005 
88-20-06-151-002 88-20-06-303-008 88-20-06-351-006 88-20-06-451-006 
88-20-06-151-003 88-20-06-303-009 88-20-06-351-007 88-20-06-452-001 
88-20-06-151-004 88-20-06-303-010 88-20-06-351-008 88-20-06-452-006 
88-20-06-151-011 88-20-06-303-011 88-20-06-351-009 88-20-06-452-007 
88-20-06-151-012 88-20-06-303-012 88-20-06-352-001 88-20-06-452-008 
88-20-06-151-013 88-20-06-326-001 88-20-06-352-002 88-20-06-452-009 
88-20-06-151-014 88-20-06-326-002 88-20-06-352-003 88-20-06-452-010 
88-20-06-152-001 88-20-06-326-003 88-20-06-352-004 88-20-06-453-001 
88-20-06-152-002 88-20-06-326-004 88-20-06-352-005 88-20-06-453-002 
88-20-06-152-003 88-20-06-326-005 88-20-06-352-006 88-20-06-453-003 
88-20-06-152-004 88-20-06-326-006 88-20-06-352-007 88-20-06-453-004 
88-20-06-152-005 88-20-06-326-007 88-20-06-352-008 88-20-06-453-005 
88-20-06-152-006 88-20-06-326-008 88-20-06-352-009 88-20-06-453-006 
88-20-06-152-007 88-20-06-326-009 88-20-06-352-010 88-20-06-453-007 
88-20-06-152-008 88-20-06-326-010 88-20-06-352-011 88-20-06-476-001 
88-20-06-152-009 88-20-06-326-011 88-20-06-352-012 88-20-06-476-002 
88-20-06-152-010 88-20-06-327-001 88-20-06-401-001 88-20-06-476-003 
88-20-06-177-008 88-20-06-327-002 88-20-06-401-002 88-20-06-476-004 
88-20-06-177-009 88-20-06-327-004 88-20-06-401-003 88-20-06-476-005 
88-20-06-177-010 88-20-06-327-005 88-20-06-401-004 88-20-06-476-006 
88-20-06-177-011 88-20-06-327-006 88-20-06-426-001 88-20-06-476-007 
88-20-06-177-012 88-20-06-327-007 88-20-06-426-002 88-20-06-476-008 
88-20-06-301-001 88-20-06-327-008 88-20-06-426-003 88-20-06-476-009 



88-20-06-301-003 88-20-06-328-001 88-20-06-426-004 88-20-06-476-010 
88-20-06-301-004 88-20-06-328-002 88-20-06-426-005 88-20-06-476-011 
88-20-06-301-005 88-20-06-328-003 88-20-06-426-006 88-20-06-476-012 
88-20-06-301-006 88-20-06-328-004 88-20-06-426-007 88-20-06-476-013 
88-20-06-302-001 88-20-06-328-005 88-20-06-427-001 88-20-06-476-014 
88-20-06-302-002 88-20-06-328-008 88-20-06-427-002 88-20-06-476-015 
88-20-06-302-003 88-20-06-328-009 88-20-06-427-003 88-20-06-476-016 
88-20-06-302-004 88-20-06-328-010 88-20-06-427-004 88-20-06-476-017 
88-20-06-302-005 88-20-06-328-011 88-20-06-427-005 88-20-06-477-001 
88-20-06-302-006 88-20-06-328-012 88-20-06-427-006 88-20-06-477-002 
88-20-06-302-007 88-20-06-328-013 88-20-06-427-007 88-20-06-477-003 
88-20-06-302-008 88-20-06-328-018 88-20-06-427-008 88-20-06-477-004 
88-20-06-302-009 88-20-06-328-019 88-20-06-427-009 88-20-06-477-005 
88-20-06-303-001 88-20-06-328-020 88-20-06-427-010 88-20-06-477-006 
88-20-06-303-002 88-20-06-328-022 88-20-06-427-011 88-20-06-477-007 
88-20-06-303-003 88-20-06-351-001 88-20-06-451-001 88-20-06-477-008 
88-20-06-303-004 88-20-06-351-002 88-20-06-451-002 88-20-06-477-009 
88-20-06-303-005 88-20-06-351-003 88-20-06-451-003  
88-20-06-303-006 88-20-06-351-004 88-20-06-451-004  

 
 

The special assessment for your property is $ 5,803.161 
 
The above assessments and all proceedings upon which they are based shall not be contestable, 
unless suit to contest the validity thereof is instituted within thirty (30) days after the date of confirmation 
of said Special Assessment Roll No. 04.104.1. 
 
The owner or any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of the special 
assessment with the state tax tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment 
roll if that special assessment was protested at the hearing held for the purpose of confirming the roll. 
 

 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 
Clerk at (248) 524-3317 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt 
will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



CITY OF TROY

Special Assessment Roll Number: 04.104.1 For defraying the expense of construction for:
Bituminous Paving in the Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1, Charnwood Hills #2, and 

Charnwood Hills #3 Subdivisions.

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify and report that the foregoing is a special assessment roll, and the assessment made by me
pursuant to a resolution of the City Council adopted on the 24th day of January A.D.

2005 , for the purpose of paying that part of the cost which the Council decided should be  paid and borne by
special assessmentfor the purpose of Bituminous Paving in Charnwood Hills, Charnwood Hills #1,
Charnwood Hills #2, and Charnwood Hills #3 Subdivisions

That in making such assessment I have, as near as may be and according to my judgement, conformed in
all things to the direction contained in the resolution of the Council herinbefore referred to, and the Charter of the City
relating to such assessments.

Dated at the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan on this 24th day of January
A.D., 2005 .

Leger A. (Nino) Licari,          City Assessor

Advertised:

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing assesment roll was filed on the 24th day of
January A.D., 2005 , and approved and confirmed by the Council of the City of Troy on the

24th day of January A.D., 2005 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk

In the name of the People of the State of Michigan
To the Treasurer of the City of Troy, in the County of Oakland, Michigan.

You are hereby commanded to collect from each of the several persons assessed in the Special Assessment
Roll hereunto annexed, the amount of money assessed to and set opposite his name therein, said amount being payable in

10 installments due February 1, 2006
respectively, with interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum or such other rate of interest per annum which is not
in excess of 1% of the rate borne by bonds issued in anticipation of the collection of said special assessment roll from and
after February 1, 2006 .

And in case any named in said Roll shall neglect or refuse to pay his assessment upon demand, after the same
becomes due, you are hereby authorized to levy and collect the same by distress and sale of the goods and chattels of
such person, and return said Roll and Warrant, together with your doing thereon within sixty (60) days;  for so doing this
shall be your sufficient Warrant.

Given under my hand and Seal of the City of Troy, Michigan, this 24th day of January
A.D., 2005 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk



 1

December 21, 2004 
 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
 Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 

 
 Re: Agenda Item:  Petition Analysis, Bituminous Paving in the Charnwood 

Hills Subdivisions – SAD # 04.104.1 
 
The City Assessor has analyzed numerous petitions presented from residents 
and property owners of the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions in Section 6,requesting 
the installation of bituminous paving throughout the subdivisions, and the 
creation of a Special Assessment District to finance the project. 
 
There are one hundred-seventy (170) assessable units in the project area.  
Eighty-five (85) of the affected unit owners have signed the petition in favor of the 
project.  This equates to 50.00% of the owners being in favor of the paving. 
 
This project is to be done in conjunction with the installation of sanitary sewers in 
the area.  The sanitary sewer project should be the first of two (2) items 
scheduled before Council. 
 
While the cost of this project is higher than most paving projects that we special 
assess, it is directly proportional to the width of these lots, which are some of the 
largest in the City.  Therefore, staff recommends the standard ten (10) year 
payment schedule for this project.  
 
Additionally, while Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG) are 
pledged for the project, in conjunction with the sanitary sewer installation, there 
may be reason to believe that sufficient funds may not be available to cover all of 
the qualifying homesteads.  Any funds in excess of the allotted available funding 
would need to be covered by the City at large. 
 
Assuming a favorable response from City Council for the sanitary sewer project,  
it is recommended that you request City Council approve Standard Resolution #1 
(preparation of plans and cost estimates for the project), Standard Resolution #2 
(approval of the cost estimates, and directing the Assessor to create the roll), and 
Standard Resolution #3 (setting a Public Hearing for the project) as submitted. 
 



SAD # 04.104.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

88-20-06-151-001 2956 TEWKSBURY FAMBROUGH, HENRY & NORMA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-151-002 2914 TEWKSBURY SLATER, THOMAS & KAIA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-151-003 2880 TEWKSBURY ECCLESTON, JOHN 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-151-004 2840 TEWKSBURY HIBBARD, FREDERICK G 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-151-011 2800 TEWKSBURY CIARAMITARO, PETER 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-151-012 2740 BRETBY PERKINS, CARLA 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-151-013 2710 BRETBY ELSTER, WILLIAM P 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-151-014 6511 MALVERN GOUDA, MOHAMED & THERESE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-152-001 2955 TEWKSBURY IVERY, BESSIE LEE 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-152-002 2915 TEWKSBURY BLIZMAN, WAYNE & JANE 1 2 1 1
88-20-06-152-003 2875 TEWKSBURY GOSSETT, JAY & JENNIFER 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-004 2835 TEWKSBURY MOFFAT, KEITH S 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-152-005 2795 TEWKSBURY SHOQUIST, RE: ROCHE, MARGARET 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-006 2761 BRETBY MONTGOMERY, CYNTHIA 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-152-007 6496 TUTBURY BLISS, NANCY J 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-152-008 6472 TUTBURY HOFFMAN, LAWRENCE & CHARLOTTE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-009 6448 TUTBURY GEMOLAS, NICHOLAS & SHERRY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-152-010 6424 TUTBURY MANLEY, LANNY & JOSEPHINE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-177-008 2680 BRETBY MC CARDY, ROBERT & PATRICIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-177-009 2640 BRETBY KULAS, JERRY C & EDWINA E 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-177-010 2600 BRETBY DAIEK, DAVID E 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-177-011 2560 BRETBY BOOTH TRUST, CHARLES & NANCY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-177-012 2526 BRETBY GUSTILO, CESAR & DOMINICA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-301-001 6495 TUTBURY BROQUET, TONI ANN 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-301-003 2974 BRETBY BREWSTER, BERTHA 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-301-004 6461 TUTBURY MOORE, WARREN L & JOANNE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-301-005 2898 BRETBY WATKINS, LARRY C & MARGIE L 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-301-006 2848 BRETBY FLETCHER, GEORGE & ELEANOR 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-001 2983 BRETBY FRANCO, STANLEY N 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-002 2949 BRETBY BIELSKI, ANTHONY & MARY ANN 1 2 2 0
88-20-06-302-003 2899 BRETBY CASPER JR, JAMES & RUTHANNE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-302-004 6385 TUTBURY MELCHERT, DONALD A 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-005 6351 TUTBURY HOLAS, KENNETH 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-302-006 6327 TUTBURY GERARD, STEVEN & DEBORAH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-007 2990 CHARNWOOD GOBLE, GEORGE R & LAURIE ANN 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-008 2960 CHARNWOOD CLAPP, KEITH & MARTHA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-302-009 6303 TUTBURY BORIN, JAMES & MERI 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-001 6396 TUTBURY PALMER, ESTHER 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-002 6372 TUTBURY JA DITTY & ASSOC 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-303-003 6348 TUTBURY HAGELSTEIN, CHARLES 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-004 6324 TUTBURY CUNNINGHAM, JAMES &  RUTH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-005 2860 CHARNWOOD SMITH, JEFFREY & DONNA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-303-006 2745 BRETBY POLLOCK, ROBERT & TERESA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-007 6455 MALVERN KOPKAU, GARY W 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-008 6437 MALVERN JOHNSON, PATRICIA: WISHART, ROBERTA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-009 6419 MALVERN MYONG, JOHN & CHRISTINA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-010 6393 MALVERN MARTIN, ANNA 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-303-011 6345 MALVERN REED, ANDREW & JENNIFER 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-303-012 2830 CHARNWOOD POST, SUZANNE: HARBOUR DIANE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-001 2673 BRETBY CARY, ALLAN P 1 1 0 0

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Asphalt (Bituminous) Paving in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

1



SAD # 04.104.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Asphalt (Bituminous) Paving in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

88-20-06-326-002 2621 BRETBY BANGHART, LAWRENCE J 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-326-003 6491 ANSLOW FOX, JAMES C 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-326-004 6492 MALVERN CASALOU, STEPHEN & SUSIE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-326-005 6468 MALVERN MACDONALD, RODERICK & JUDITH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-006 6444 MALVERN ANDERSON, JAMES & SALLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-007 6420 MALVERN LUCAS, JOSEPH MARK 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-326-008 6473 ANSLOW PSARIANOS, PETER  & LAURA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-009 6455 ANSLOW STEC, GEORGE & ARLENE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-326-010 6433 ANSLOW TINETTI, ROSEMARY 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-326-011 2626 RAMSBURY GOSSELIN, GLEN & VICTORIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-001 6440 ANSLOW MOYLAN, THOMAS & JULIE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-327-002 6476 ANSLOW BARINGER, ROGER K & MARY BETH 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-004 6410 ANSLOW NORDEN, MARK & ROBIN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-327-005 2550 RAMSBURY GALLOP, DOUGLAS E & LUNETTA E 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-327-006 2520 RAMSBURY SHABA, KHALID 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-327-007 2525 BRETBY HERMANCZUK, ALEXANDER & ANNA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-327-008 6484 ANSLOW POHL, JERRY & KATHLEEN 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-001 6360 MALVERN BLAKE TRUST, DIANE & RICHARD 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-002 2625 RAMSBURY HADDOCK, DAVID 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-003 2593 RAMSBURY AMICO, JOHN & PATRICIA D 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-004 2525 RAMSBURY BEGDORIAN, GARY & CAROL 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-005 2505 RAMSBURY SHUCK, HENRY & MAY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-008 6305 ANSLOW HAQUE TRUST, SELIMUL & AMINA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-009 6321 ANSLOW HAROON, HAFEEZ & HEENA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-010 6355 ANSLOW MORRIS, DORIS 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-011 6330 MALVERN FITZPATRICK, ROBERT & JANET 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-328-012 2760 CHARNWOOD WATKINS, ANTHONY & ANNE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-013 2730 CHARNWOOD HEATON TRUST, MARY ALICE J 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-328-018 2520 CHARNWOOD KRIEBEL TRUST, VALENTINA & ARNOLD 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-019 2556 CHARNWOOD COSTIGAN, PAUL & ANN 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-020 6300 ANSLOW CAMPBELL, GERALD & GRACE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-328-022 2580 CHARNWOOD BLACKWOOD, ROGER 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-001 2991 CHARNWOOD BULLOCK, HARRY & BETTY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-351-002 2955 CHARNWOOD SCHWEITZER, FREDA: BAKER JACQUELINE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-351-003 2915 CHARNWOOD JANKOWSKI, THOMAS & DIANA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-351-004 2865 CHARNWOOD SOKOLY, GEORGE R 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-005 6213 MALVERN SHEPPARD, JOHN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-006 6227 MALVERN FORIL TRUST, JOHN R 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-351-007 6239 MALVERN AGRO, ANTHONY & DIANNE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-351-008 6263 MALVERN GOSS, ROBERT LEE 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-351-009 2825 CHARNWOOD NORMAN, KATHRYN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-001 6214 MALVERN STERLING, DENNIS & ELLA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-352-002 6228 MALVERN MUSZYNSKI, JAMES & MARSHA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-352-003 6242 MALVERN HINKLE, JAMES E 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-004 6256 MALVERN YATES, DONALD A 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-352-005 6270 MALVERN SAVAYA, ANJEL 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-006 6284 MALVERN HAQUE TRUST, SELIMULL & AMINA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-352-007 2759 CHARNWOOD PARISEN, JON & MARIA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-352-008 2725 CHARNWOOD HASCALL, KENT D 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-352-009 2595 CHARNWOOD DAVIES, KENNETH & CAROL 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-352-010 2575 CHARNWOOD WEZENSKY, BRIAN 1 1 0 0

2



SAD # 04.104.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Asphalt (Bituminous) Paving in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

88-20-06-352-011 2555 CHARNWOOD HESSLING, KATHLEEN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-352-012 2525 CHARNWOOD GUPTA, ANIK & NEELUM 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-401-001 2498 DALESFORD BRUSCA, ANTHONY & SUSAN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-401-002 2470 DALESFORD STANICHUK, ROBERT & CAROL 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-401-003 2440 DALESFORD BRIHKO, JOHNNY 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-401-004 2410 DALESFORD MIELA, DEBORAH L: GOLD, GLORIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-426-001 2270 CHALGROVE ELLISTON, DAVID & JOYCE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-426-002 2230 CHALGROVE DUNN, CHARLES R & KAREN A 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-426-003 2190 CHALGROVE FRANZ, RICHARD & SANDRA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-426-004 2150 CHALGROVE MURRAY, CHARLENE 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-426-005 2110 CHALGROVE RETKO, EDWARD 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-426-006 2070 CHALGROVE MC KAY, JOSEPH & DIANA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-426-007 2030 CHALGROVE TAORMINA, CHUCK & JANICE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-427-001 2251 CHALGROVE PAIK, LISA & EUGENE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-427-002 2211 CHALGROVE LOWING, JOSEPH 1 3 3 1
88-20-06-427-003 2161 CHALGROVE KHAWAJA, KASHIF 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-004 2121 CHALGROVE ASHARE, VERA 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-005 2091 CHALGROVE SMITH, CHARLES &  ANNTREAL 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-427-006 2041 CHALGROVE BALES, JACK & JACQUELINE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-427-007 2240 DALESFORD SESTAK, PETER A 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-008 2160 DALESFORD GUITAR TRUST, BEVERLY 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-427-009 2130 DALESFORD MALCHO, CHARLES M 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-427-010 2080 DALESFORD SCHMIDT, DARCY & NANCY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-427-011 2040 DALESFORD FESTIAN, GERALD & PAMELA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-451-001 2497 DALESFORD PARKS, RALPH S & BARBARA A 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-451-002 2469 DALESFORD KEBBE, LOIS 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-451-003 2435 DALESFORD NIEMEN, MICHAEL & ANGELE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-451-004 2480 CHARNWOOD JOHIMSTHAL, JAMES & SALLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-451-005 2450 CHARNWOOD HARTIG, KEVIN & KIRSTEN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-451-006 2420 CHARNWOOD KRETSCHMER, THOMAS & KERI 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-452-001 2475 CHARNWOOD WEISGERBER, JOHN & DENISE 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-452-006 2441 CHARNWOOD KELLY, CAROL D 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-452-007 6125 GLYNDEBOURNE ROSE, GENEVA L 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-452-008 6081 GLYNDEBOURNE PRYDE, DANIEL & LIANA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-452-009 6041 GLYNDEBOURNE DAWIDOWICZ, PETER & AMY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-452-010 2420 SQUARE LAKE MAHIKARI, SUKYO 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-453-001 6158 GLYNDEBOURNE LAMB, RICHARD & CARRIE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-002 6114 GLYNDEBOURNE STEGEMAN, THOMAS & LORI 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-003 6068 GLYNDEBOURNE VANG, YIARAVANH 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-453-004 2360 SQUARE LAKE ROWE, LAWRENCE E & BEVERLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-453-005 2305 CHARNWOOD SIMMONS, STEVEN & DONNA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-006 6071 WINDRUSH FUNK, ROBERT & LISA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-453-007 2320 SQUARE LAKE LEONARD, WILLIAM 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-476-001 2345 DALESFORD VANG, JEFREE 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-002 2251 DALESFORD LAPALM, MARK J 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-003 2245 DALESFORD KELLY, RALPH T 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-476-004 2205 DALESFORD LAVERDIERE, DAVID A & GRACE L 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-476-005 2145 DALESFORD CHAMPINE, CALVIN D 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-476-006 2105 DALESFORD KOKAL, JACK W 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-007 2065 DALESFORD FISHER, ROBERT & JILL 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-008 0 GOSSELIN, ROBERT 1 1 1 1

3



SAD # 04.104.1 Units
# of # of Owners Signed

Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Analysis of Petition for Asphalt (Bituminous) Paving in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions

88-20-06-476-009 2350 CHARNWOOD HAGEN, BERNARD & SHARON 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-010 2310 CHARNWOOD AUSTIN, RICHARD & CARMALITA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-011 2260 CHARNWOOD DUDA, EDMUND 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-476-012 2220 CHARNWOOD KOCHAJDA, VICTOR & CAROLYN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-013 2180 CHARNWOOD HOOTON, GEORGE & BETTY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-014 2140 CHARNWOOD VANEVERY, BARANT & GLORIA 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-476-015 2100 CHARNWOOD GIANCOTTI, PRISCILLA: DUTCHESEN, BARBARA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-016 2060 CHARNWOOD ALI, MOHAMMAD & UZMA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-476-017 2020 CHARNWOOD BOOSER, ROBERT & KIMBERLY 1 2 0 0
88-20-06-477-001 6100 WINDRUSH JOHNSON, IVAN R & ZOE 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-002 2211 CHARNWOOD ELLIOTT, NANCY ANN 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-477-003 2181 CHARNWOOD CLIPPERT, THOMAS & SUSAN 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-004 2141 CHARNWOOD BALOCATING, GEORGE & GLORIA 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-005 2101 CHARNWOOD BUCHESKY, DAVID M 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-477-006 0 GOSSELIN, ROBERT 1 1 1 1
88-20-06-477-007 2021 CHARNWOOD BOOSER, CHARLES C 1 1 0 0
88-20-06-477-008 6042 WINDRUSH TROGDEN, RYAN & KATHY 1 2 2 1
88-20-06-477-009 6030 WINDRUSH HANS, CHAUDRY & YASMIN 1 2 0 0

170 275 139 85
Units

# of # of Owners Signed
Parcel ID # Street Owner 1 Units Owners Signed in Favor

Total Percentage of Available Units Signed in Favor ===> 50.00

!! = Petitioned for Chip Seal only

4



Page 1 of 1City of Troy GIS Online

8/16/2004http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

LicariLA
Text Box
Not in District

LicariLA
Inserted Text

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
SEWER

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
PAVE

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P

LicariLA
Text Box
S & P



City of Troy Charnwood Hills Subs. 1,2 & 3  Bituminous Paving SAD
500 W. Big Beaver Road Proj. No. 04.104.1

Troy, Michigan 48084
Prepared by: G. Scott Finlay, P.E.

Preliminary Engineer's Estimate Date: 8-Jun-04

Description Unit Est. Qty Unit price Total     

1 Remove Approach S.Y. 5825.00 3.00                 $17,475.00
2 12" CMP, 14 gage, Culvert L.F. 3600.00 18.00               $64,800.00
3 Std. 12" CMP End Sections EACH 352.00 75.00               $26,400.00
4 Storm Sewer, 12" C-76 Cl-IV L.F. 500.00 20.00               $10,000.00
5 Drainage Structure, 4 ft. Dia. EACH 10.00 800.00             $8,000.00
6 Drainage Structure, 2 ft. Dia. EACH 10.00 600.00             $6,000.00
7 Drainage Structure, Covers LBS. 6000.00 1.00                 $6,000.00
8 Reconstruct Drainage Structure EACH 5.00 350.00             $1,750.00
9 Adjust Drainage Structures EACH 5.00 200.00             $1,000.00
10 Conc.Driveway, Nonreinforced 6" S.Y. 1200.00 30.00               $36,000.00
11 Bituminous Approach TONS 1025.00 75.00               $76,875.00
12 Remove Chip Seal S.Y. 69000.00 2.00                 $138,000.00
13 Base Prep. Machine Grading STA. 250.00 100.00             $25,000.00
14 Bituminous Mix - 500-20C, 3 Inche TONS 11386.00 35.00               $398,510.00
15 Bituminous Mix - 1100T - 20AA, W TONS 5693.00 40.00               $227,720.00
16 Reditching L.F. 25000.00 2.00                 $50,000.00
17 Mailbox Posts EACH 50.00 100.00             $5,000.00
18 Class A Sodding w/ 2" Top Soil S.Y. 96000.00 2.50                 $240,000.00
19 Watering (1000 gallons/unit) UNITS 600.00 20.00               $12,000.00
20 Mowing Sodded Areas Times 4.00 1,500.00          $6,000.00
21 Traffic Control & Maintenance LSUM 1.00 10,000.00        $10,000.00

 
Total Construction Costs $1,366,530.00

Drainage Items (City Share) $577,300.00
Admin. & Conting. ( 25% ) $144,325.00
Total City Share $721,625.00

SAD Assessment Share $789,230.00
Admin. & Conting. ( 25% ) $197,307.50
Total SAD Assessment Share  $986,537.50

Bituminous Paving



  88-20-06-151-001           88-20-06-151-002            88-20-06-151-003 
  FAMBROUGH, HENRY           SLATER, THOMAS & KAIA       ECCLESTON, JOHN 
  2956 TEWKSBURY             2914 TEWKSBURY              2880 TEWKSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-6002  TROY        MI 48098-6002   TROY        MI 48098-01 
  
  88-20-06-151-004           88-20-06-151-011            88-20-06-151-012 
  HIBBARD, FREDERICK G       CIARAMITARO, PETER          PERKINS, CARLA 
  2840 TEWKSBURY             2800 TEWKSBURY              2740 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-6001  TROY        MI 48098-6001   TROY        MI 48098-2106 
  
  88-20-06-151-013           88-20-06-151-014            88-20-06-152-001 
  ELSTER, WILLIAM P          GOUDA, MOHAMED & THERES     IVERY TRUST, BESSIE LEE 
  2710 BRETBY                6511 MALVERN                2955 TEWKSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2106  TROY        MI 48098-2142   TROY        MI 48098-6004 
  
  88-20-06-152-002           88-20-06-152-003            88-20-06-152-004 
  BLIZMAN, WAYNE & JANE      GOSSETT, JAY & JENNIFER     MOFFAT, KEITH S 
  2915 TEWKSBURY             2875 TEWKSBURY              2835 TEWKSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-6004  TROY        MI 48098-6003   TROY        MI 48098-6003 
  
  88-20-06-152-005           88-20-06-152-006            88-20-06-152-007 
  SHOQUIST, RE               MONTGOMERY, CYNTHIA         BLISS, NANCY J 
  2795 TEWKSBURY             2761 BRETBY                 6496 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2150  TROY        MI 48098-2168   TROY        MI 48098-2152 
  
  88-20-06-152-008           88-20-06-152-009            88-20-06-152-010 
  HOFFMAN, LAWRANCE F & CH   GEMOLAS, NICHOLAS & SHER    MANLEY, LANNY & JOSEPHIN 
  6472 TUTBURY               6448 TUTBURY                6424 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2152  TROY        MI 48098-2152   TROY        MI 48098-2152 
  
  88-20-06-177-008           88-20-06-177-009            88-20-06-177-010 
  MC CARDY, ROBERT & PATRIC  KULAS, JERRY C & EDWINA E   DAIEK, DAVID E 
  2680 BRETBY                2640 BRETBY                 2600 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2179  TROY        MI 48098-2179   TROY        MI 48098-2179 
  
  88-20-06-177-011           88-20-06-177-012            88-20-06-301-001 
  BOOTH , CHARLES & NANCY    GUSTILO, CESAR & DOMINICA   BROQUET, TONI ANN 
  2560 BRETBY                2526 BRETBY                 6495 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2105  TROY        MI 48098-2195   TROY        MI 48098-2156 
  
  88-20-06-301-003           88-20-06-301-004            88-20-06-301-005 
  BREWSTER, BERTHA           MOORE, WARREN L & JOANNE    WATKINS, LARRY C & MARGIE 
  2974 BRETBY                6461 TUTBURY                2898 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2182  TROY        MI 48098-2156   TROY        MI 48098-2108 
  
  88-20-06-301-006           88-20-06-302-001            88-20-06-302-002 
  FLETCHER, GEORGE & ELEANO  FRANCO, STANLEY N           BIELSKI, ANTHONY & MARY A 
  2848 BRETBY                2983 BRETBY                 2949 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2108  TROY        MI 48098-2153   TROY        MI 48098-2153 



  88-20-06-302-003           88-20-06-302-004            88-20-06-302-005 
  CASPER JR, JAMES & RUTHAN  MELCHERT, DONALD A          HOLAS, KENNETH 
  2899 BRETBY                6385 TUTBURY                6351 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2153  TROY        MI 48098-2157   TROY        MI 48098-2157 
  
  88-20-06-302-006           88-20-06-302-007            88-20-06-302-008 
  GERARD, STEVEN & DEBORAH   GOBLE, GEORGE R & LAURIE A  CLAPP, KEITH & MARTHA 
  6327 TUTBURY               2990 CHARNWOOD              2960 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2157  TROY        MI 48098-2113   TROY        MI 48098-2113 
  
  88-20-06-302-009           88-20-06-303-001            88-20-06-303-002 
  BORIN, JAMES & MERI        PALMER, ESTHER              JA DITTY & ASSOC 
  6303 TUTBURY               6396 TUTBURY                6372 TUTBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2157  TROY        MI 48098-2151   TROY        MI 48098-2151 
  
  88-20-06-303-003           88-20-06-303-004            88-20-06-303-005 
  HAGELSTEIN, ZATA           CUNNINGHAM, JAMES &  RUT    SMITH, JEFFREY & DONNA 
  6348 TUTBURY               6324 TUTBURY                2860 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2151  TROY        MI 48098-2151   TROY        MI 48098-2111 
  
  88-20-06-303-006           88-20-06-303-007            88-20-06-303-008 
  BRIGGS, TIMOTHY S & MARY S KOPKAU, GARY W              JOHNSON TRUST, PATRICIA 
  2745 BRETBY                6455 MALVERN                6437 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2107  TROY        MI 48098-2115   TROY        MI 48098-2115 
  
  88-20-06-303-009           88-20-06-303-010            88-20-06-303-011 
  MYONG, JOHN & CHRISTINA    MARTIN, ANNA                REED, ANDREW & JENNIFER 
  6419 MALVERN               6393 MALVERN                6345 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2115  TROY        MI 48098-2140   TROY        MI 48098-2140 
  
  88-20-06-303-012           88-20-06-326-001            88-20-06-326-002 
  POST , SUZANNE             CARY, ALLAN P               BANGHART, LAWRENCE J 
  2830 CHARNWOOD             2673 BRETBY                 2621 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2111  TROY        MI 48098-2154   TROY        MI 48098-2154 
  
  88-20-06-326-003           88-20-06-326-004            88-20-06-326-005 
  FOX, JAMES C               CASALOU, STEPHEN & SUSIE    MACDONALD, RODERICK & JU 
  6491 ANSLOW                6492 MALVERN                6468 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2165  TROY        MI 48098-2141   TROY        MI 48098-2141 
  
  88-20-06-326-006           88-20-06-326-007            88-20-06-326-008 
  ANDERSON, JAMES & SALLY    LUCAS, JOSEPH MARK          PSARIANOS, PETER  & LAURA 
  6444 MALVERN               6420 MALVERN                6473 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2141  TROY        MI 48098-2141   TROY        MI 48098-2165 
  
  88-20-06-326-009           88-20-06-326-010            88-20-06-326-011 
  STEC, GEORGE & ARLENE      TINETTI, ROSEMARY           GOSSELIN, GLEN & VICTORIA 
  6455 ANSLOW                6433 ANSLOW                 2626 RAMSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2165  TROY        MI 48098-2165   TROY        MI 48098-2144 



  88-20-06-327-001           88-20-06-327-002            88-20-06-327-004 
  MOYLAN, THOMAS & JULIE     BARINGER, ROGER K & MARY    NORDEN, MARK & ROBIN 
  6440 ANSLOW                6476 ANSLOW                 6410 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2104  TROY        MI 48098-2104   TROY        MI 48098-2104 
  
  88-20-06-327-005           88-20-06-327-006            88-20-06-327-007 
  GALLOP, DOUGLAS E & LUNET  SHABA, KHALID & HUDA        HERMANCZUK, ALEXANDER & 
  2550 RAMSBURY              2520 RAMSBURY               2525 BRETBY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2143  TROY        MI 48098-2143   TROY        MI 48098-2167 
  
  88-20-06-327-008           88-20-06-328-001            88-20-06-328-002 
  POHL, JERRY & KATHLEEN     BLAKE TRUST, DIANE & RICH   HADDOCK, DAVID G 
  6484 ANSLOW                6360 MALVERN                2625 RAMSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2104  TROY        MI 48098-2139   TROY        MI 48098-2114 
  
  88-20-06-328-003           88-20-06-328-004            88-20-06-328-005 
  AMICO, JOHN & PATRICIA D   BEGDORIAN, GARY & CAROL     SHUCK, HENRY & MAY 
  2593 RAMSBURY              2525 RAMSBURY               2505 RAMSBURY 
  TROY        MI 48098-2145  TROY        MI 48098-2145   TROY        MI 48098-2145 
  
  88-20-06-328-008           88-20-06-328-009            88-20-06-328-010 
  HAQUE TRUST, SELIMUL & AM  HAROON, HAFEEZ & HEENA      MORRIS, DORIS 
  6305 ANSLOW                6321 ANSLOW                 6355 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2103  TROY        MI 48098-2103   TROY        MI 48098-2103 
  
  88-20-06-328-011           88-20-06-328-012            88-20-06-328-013 
  FITZPATRICK, ROBERT & JANE WATKINS, ANTHONY & ANNE     HEATON TRUST, MARY ALICE  
  6330 MALVERN               2760 CHARNWOOD              2730 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2139  TROY        MI 48098-2184   TROY        MI 48098-2184 
  
  88-20-06-328-018           88-20-06-328-019            88-20-06-328-020 
  KRIEBEL TRUST, VALENTINA   COSTIGAN, PAUL & ANN        CAMPBELL, GERALD & GRACE 
  2520 CHARNWOOD             2556 CHARNWOOD              6300 ANSLOW 
  TROY        MI 48098-2109  TROY        MI 48098-2109   TROY        MI 48098-2103 
  
  88-20-06-328-022           88-20-06-351-001            88-20-06-351-002 
  BLACKWOOD, ROGER           BULLOCK, HARRY & BETTY      SCHWEITZER, FREDA 
  2580 CHARNWOOD             2991 CHARNWOOD              2955 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2109  TROY        MI 48098-2164   TROY        MI 48098-2164 
  
  88-20-06-351-003           88-20-06-351-004            88-20-06-351-005 
  JANKOWSKI, THOMAS & DIAN   SOKOLY, GEORGE R            SHEPPARD, JOHN 
  2915 CHARNWOOD             2865 CHARNWOOD              6213 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2164  TROY        MI 48098-2112   TROY        MI 48098-2138 
  
  88-20-06-351-006           88-20-06-351-007            88-20-06-351-008 
  FORIL TRUST, JOHN R        AGRO, ANTHONY & DIANNE      GOSS, ROBERT LEE 
  6227 MALVERN               6239 MALVERN                6263 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2138  TROY        MI 48098-2138   TROY        MI 48098-2138 



  88-20-06-351-009           88-20-06-352-001            88-20-06-352-002 
  NORMAN, KATHRYN            STERLING, DENNIS & ELLA     MUSZYNSKI, JAMES & MARSH 
  2825 CHARNWOOD             6214 MALVERN                6228 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2112  TROY        MI 48098-2137   TROY        MI 48098-2137 
  
  88-20-06-352-003           88-20-06-352-004            88-20-06-352-005 
  HINKLE, JAMES E            YATES, DONALD A             SAVAYA, ANJEL 
  6242 MALVERN               6256 MALVERN                6270 MALVERN 
  TROY        MI 48098-2137  TROY        MI 48098-2137   TROY        MI 48098-2137 
  
  88-20-06-352-006           88-20-06-352-007            88-20-06-352-008 
  HAQUE TRUST, SELIMULL & A  PARISEN, JON & MARIA        HASCALL, KENT D 
  6284 MALVERN               2759 CHARNWOOD              2725 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2137  TROY        MI 48098-2186   TROY        MI 48098-2186 
  
  88-20-06-352-009           88-20-06-352-010            88-20-06-352-011 
  DAVIES, KENNETH & CAROL    WEZENSKY, BRIAN D           HESSLING, KATHLEEN 
  2595 CHARNWOOD             2575 CHARNWOOD              2555 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2110  TROY        MI 48098-2110   TROY        MI 48098-2110 
  
  88-20-06-352-012           88-20-06-401-001            88-20-06-401-002 
  P S RAN LLC                BRUSCA, ANTHONY & SUSAN     STANICHUK, ROBERT & CARO 
  2525 CHARNWOOD             2498 DALESFORD              2470 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2110  TROY        MI 48098-2227   TROY        MI 48098-2227 
  
  88-20-06-401-003           88-20-06-401-004            88-20-06-426-001 
  BRIKHO, JOHNNY             MIELA, DEBORAH L            ELLISTON, DAVID & JOYCE 
  2440 DALESFORD             2410 DALESFORD              2270 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2227  TROY        MI 48098-2227   TROY        MI 48098-2295 
  
  88-20-06-426-002           88-20-06-426-003            88-20-06-426-004 
  DUNN, CHARLES R & KAREN A  FRANZ, RICHARD & SANDRA     MURRAY, CHARLENE 
  2230 CHALGROVE             2190 CHALGROVE              2150 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2295  TROY        MI 48098-2294   TROY        MI 48098-2294 
  
  88-20-06-426-005           88-20-06-426-006            88-20-06-426-007 
  RETKO, EDWARD              MC KAY, JOSEPH & DIANA      TAORMINA, CHUCK & JANICE 
  2110 CHALGROVE             2070 CHALGROVE              2030 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2294  TROY        MI 48098-2202   TROY        MI 48098-2202 
  
  88-20-06-427-001           88-20-06-427-002            88-20-06-427-003 
  PAIK, LISA & EUGENE        LOWING, JOSEPH              KHAWAJA, KASHIF 
  2253 CHALGROVE             2211 CHALGROVE              2161 CHALGROVE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2298  TROY        MI 48098-2298   TROY        MI 48098-2296 
  
  88-20-06-427-004           88-20-06-427-005            88-20-06-427-006 
  COX, MINA J                SMITH, CHARLES & ANNTREA    BALES, JACK & JACQUELINE 
                             2091 CHALGROVE              2041 CHALGROVE 
                             TROY        MI 48098-2201   TROY        MI 48098-2201 

licarila
Text Box
744 MORNINGSIDEGRAND BLANC  MI  48439



  88-20-06-427-007           88-20-06-427-008            88-20-06-427-009 
  SESTAK, PETER A            GUITAR TRUST, BEVERLY       MALCHO, CHARLES M 
  2240 DALESFORD             2160 DALESFORD              2130 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5206  TROY        MI 48098-5205   TROY        MI 48098-5205 
  
  88-20-06-427-010           88-20-06-427-011            88-20-06-451-001 
  SCHMIDT, DARCY DEL         FESTIAN TRUST, PAMELA J     PARKS, RALPH S & BARBARA  
  2080 DALESFORD             2040 DALESFORD              2497 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2208  TROY        MI 48098-2208   TROY        MI 48098-2228 
  
  88-20-06-451-002           88-20-06-451-003            88-20-06-451-004 
  KEBBE, LOIS                NIEMEN, MICHAEL & ANGELE    JOHIMSTHAL, JAMES & SALLY 
  2469 DALESFORD             2435 DALESFORD              2480 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2228  TROY        MI 48098-2228   TROY        MI 48098-2206 
  
  88-20-06-451-005           88-20-06-451-006            88-20-06-452-001 
  HARTIG, KEVIN & KIRSTEN    KRETSCHMER, THOMAS & KER    WEISGERBER, WILLIAM H & GL 
  2450 CHARNWOOD             2420 CHARNWOOD              2475 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2206  TROY        MI 48098-2206   TROY        MI 48098-2207 
  
  88-20-06-452-006           88-20-06-452-007            88-20-06-452-008 
  KELLY, CAROL D             ROSE, GENEVA L              PRYDE, DANIEL & LIANA 
  2441 CHARNWOOD             6125 GLYNDEBOURNE           6081 GLYNDEBOURNE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2207  TROY        MI 48098-5212   TROY        MI 48098-2210 
  
  88-20-06-452-009           88-20-06-452-010            88-20-06-453-001 
  DAWIDOWICZ, PETER & AMY    SUKYO MAHIKARI CORP         LAMB, RICHARD & CARRIE 
  6041 GLYNDEBOURNE          2420 W SQUARE LAKE          6158 GLYNDEBOURNE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2210  TROY        MI 48098-2222   TROY        MI 48098-5211 
  
  88-20-06-453-002           88-20-06-453-003            88-20-06-453-004 
  STEGEMAN, THOMAS & LORI    VANG, YIARAVANH             ROWE, LAWRENCE E & BEVER 
  6114 GLYNDEBOURNE          6068 GLYNDEBOURNE           2360 W SQUARE LAKE 
  TROY        MI 48098-5211  TROY        MI 48098-2211   TROY        MI 48098-2221 
  
  88-20-06-453-005           88-20-06-453-006            88-20-06-453-007 
  SIMMONS, STEVEN            FUNK, ROBERT & LISA         LEONARD, WILLIAM 
  2305 CHARNWOOD             6071 WINDRUSH               2320 W SQUARE LAKE 
  TROY        MI 48098-2205  TROY        MI 48098-2260   TROY        MI 48098-2221 
  
  88-20-06-476-001           88-20-06-476-002            88-20-06-476-003 
  VANG, JEFREE               LAPALM, MARK J              KELLY, RALPH T 
  2345 DALESFORD             2251 DALESFORD              2245 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5235  TROY        MI 48098-5209   TROY        MI 48098-5209 
  
  88-20-06-476-004           88-20-06-476-005            88-20-06-476-006 
  LAVERDIERE, DAVID A & GRA  CHAMPINE, CALVIN D          KOKAL, JACK W 
  2205 DALESFORD             2145 DALESFORD              2105 DALESFORD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5209  TROY        MI 48098-5208   TROY        MI 48098-5208 



  88-20-06-476-007           88-20-06-476-008            88-20-06-476-009 
  FISHER, ROBERT & JILL      GOSSELIN, ROBERT            HAGEN, BERNARD & SHARON 
  2065 DALESFORD                                         2350 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2209                              TROY        MI 48098-2267 
  
  88-20-06-476-010           88-20-06-476-011            88-20-06-476-012 
  AUSTIN, RICHARD & CARMALI  DUDA, EDMUND                KOCHAJDA, VICTOR & CAROL 
  2310 CHARNWOOD             2260 CHARNWOOD              2220 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-2267  TROY        MI 48098-5202   TROY        MI 48098-5202 
  
  88-20-06-476-013           88-20-06-476-014            88-20-06-476-015 
  HOOTON, GEORGE & BETTY     VANEVERY, BARANT & GLORI    GIANCOTTI, PRISCILLA 
  2180 CHARNWOOD             2140 CHARNWOOD              2100 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5201  TROY        MI 48098-5201   TROY        MI 48098-5201 
  
  88-20-06-476-016           88-20-06-476-017            88-20-06-477-001 
  ALI, MOHAMMAD & UZMA       BOOSER, ROBERT & KIMBERL    JOHNSON, IVAN R 
  2060 CHARNWOOD             2020 CHARNWOOD              6100 WINDRUSH 
  TROY        MI 48098-2204  TROY        MI 48098-2204   TROY        MI 48098-5230 
  
  88-20-06-477-002           88-20-06-477-003            88-20-06-477-004 
  ELLIOTT, NANCY ANN         CLIPPERT, THOMAS & SUSAN    BALOCATING, GEORGE & GLO 
  2211 CHARNWOOD             2181 CHARNWOOD              2141 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5204  TROY        MI 48098-5203   TROY        MI 48098-5203 
  
  88-20-06-477-005           88-20-06-477-006            88-20-06-477-007 
  BUCHESKY, DAVID M          GOSSELIN, ROBERT            BOOSER, CHARLES C 
  2101 CHARNWOOD                                         2021 CHARNWOOD 
  TROY        MI 48098-5203                              TROY        MI 48098-2203 
  
  88-20-06-477-008           88-20-06-477-009 
  TROGDEN, RYAN & KATHY      HANS, CHAUDRY & YASMIN 
  6042 WINDRUSH              6030 WINDRUSH 
  TROY        MI 48098-2223  TROY        MI 48098-2223 

licarila
Text Box
2915 LENOXTROY  MI  48098-2348

licarila
Text Box
2915 LENOXTROY  MI  48098-2348



Project Name

Project # 04.104.1

 
Assessment

int. @.06 $5,803.161

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 580.32$         580.32$         5,222.84$     
2 580.32$         313.37$       893.69$         4,642.53$     
3 580.32$         278.55$       858.87$         4,062.21$     
4 580.32$         243.73$       824.05$         3,481.90$     
5 580.32$         208.91$       789.23$         2,901.58$     
6 580.32$         174.09$       754.41$         2,321.26$     
7 580.32$         139.28$       719.59$         1,740.95$     
8 580.32$         104.46$       684.77$         1,160.63$     
9 580.32$         69.64$         649.95$         580.32$        
10 580.32$         580.32$         -$              

TOTAL 5,803.16$      1,532.03$    7,335.20$      

City of Troy
Assessing Department

06/08/04

Amortization Table
10 Year

Charnwood Hills Bituminous Paving







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2005 
 

-1- 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Friday, January 7, 2005 in the Council Board 
Room at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7: 31 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
David Eisenbacher 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

ABSENT: Cristina Broomfield 
Martin F. Howrylak 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Members Broomfield and Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2005-01-001 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Members Howrylak and Broomfield‘s absence at the Special City Council 
meeting of January 7, 2005 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Lambert, Eisenbacher, Stine  
No:   None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Presentation by Lincoln Park City Manager, Steve Duchane, on Macomb County’s Freedom 
Hill and Its Implications for a Proposed Multi-Use Minor League Baseball Stadium on the Civic 
Center Site 
 
Vote on Resolution to Adjourn 
 
Resolution #2005-01-002 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Meeting of the Troy City Council be ADJOURNED because scheduled 
speaker Steve Duchane is not in attendance. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher 
No:   Lambert, Stine 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2005 
 

-2- 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:37 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Laura A. Fitzpatrick 
Assistant to the City Manager 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 

-1- 

 
A Special Meeting/Study Session of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 10, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 5:32 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

  
 
Further Discussion Regarding Proposed Multi-Use Minor League Baseball Stadium on Civic 
Center Property 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 6:27 PM. 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

-1- 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 10, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:34 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher (Arrived at 6:36) 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

  
 
Proposed Resolution to Adopt Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council ADOPT the June 7, 2004 Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council for the 6:30 Special Meeting on Monday, January 10, 2005 of the Troy City Council. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-01-003 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by LIMITING Public Comment from five 
minutes to three minutes 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-01-004 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council ADOPT the June 7, 2004 Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council for the 6:30 Special Meeting on Monday, January 10, 2005 of the Troy City Council; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Public Comment be LIMITED from five minutes to three 
minutes. 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

-2- 

Yes: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Broomfield, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Authorization to Negotiate a Contract with General Sports and Entertainment L.L.C for 
the Placement of a Multi-Use Minor League Baseball Stadium in the Southeast Area of 
the Civic Center Site 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
WHEREAS, General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. approached the City of Troy for reason 
of locating a multi-use minor league baseball stadium on Civic Center property; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council gave direction to the City Manager at the Study Session of 
November 15, 2004 to identify and address elements that have salience relative to the 
proposed stadium in terms of benefit to the community, site plan issues, environmental issues, 
and financing; and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 29, 2004 the Troy City Council directed City staff to continue 
discussions with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. regarding the placement of a minor 
league baseball stadium at the southeast portion of the Civic Center Site with additional 
consideration being given to financial arrangements, alcohol use, and additional public input 
from the City of Troy boards and committees. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to 
negotiate a contract with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. for placement of a multi-
use minor league baseball stadium in the southeast area of the Civic Center site, and this 
contract will contain the following elements: 
 

1. Financing: 
 

• All construction, maintenance, operations, and construction costs for the 
facility will be the responsibility of General Sports 

• All infrastructure costs are to be the responsibility of General Sports, unless 
the Downtown Development Authority, City, and General Sports agree upon 
some cost-sharing of various components 

• The stadium will not be collateral for loans 
• If General Sports fails in their operations of the minor league baseball team 

and stadium, the City will be left without debt and will own the facility 
• General Sports will pay property taxes on the exclusively privately used real 

property and all personal property 
 

2. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

-3- 

Stadium: 
 

• The property will continue to be owned by the City of Troy 
• The stadium will be a gift to the City of Troy from General Sports with the 

understanding that General Sports will operate a minor league baseball team 
on the site 

• Management of the facility for all events will be provided by General Sports at 
no cost to the City of Troy 

• User costs (clean-up, electricity, etc.) for the City of Troy and community 
groups will be paid by the event organizer 

• General Sports will provide all necessary insurance for the facility and 
operations as determined by the City of Troy 

• The City of Troy reserves the right to approve any transfer of management or 
ownership of operations of the facility 

• In the event General Sports fails in their operations of the facility and minor 
league baseball team, the City of Troy can order demolition of the stadium. 
The cost of demolition will be borne and guaranteed (i.e. escrow account) by 
General Sports 

• Clean-up for all events will be the responsibility of General Sports, including 
all off-site locations used for parking 

• The City of Troy will exercise architectural review of the stadium design to 
ensure that the design is compatible with surrounding structures on the Civic 
Center site. 

 
3. Parking: 
 

• At least 2,000 parking spaces will be provided for all games and events 
without a variance, with long-term agreements established from nearby 
property owners for a minimum of 25 years; the City of Troy will consider a 
zoning ordinance text amendment to permit off-site parking if required 

• Parking attendants will be located at the Community Center, Aquatic Center, 
Library, and City Hall parking lots to preclude minor league baseball patrons 
from parking in these lots. Attendants will not stop drivers to inquire about 
driver’s intentions, but rather will watch for violators and take appropriate 
action 

• Maximum facility capacity is limited to 5,500 patrons per game or event 
without adding additional off-site parking arranged at the expense of General 
Sports 

 
4. Environmental Impacts: 
 

• Spill light from the stadium will be nonexistent at 1,200 feet from the stadium 
• A fully distributed sound system configuration will be used in lieu of an outfield 

or centralized speaker system, and the emission of measurable noises from 
the facility shall not exceed noise limitations as established in Chapter 39, 
Section 39.90.08 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances at the southern limits 
of the residential neighborhood to the north of the stadium 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

-4- 

• Traffic control services provided by the City of Troy or any other part will be 
paid for by General Sports or the event organizer 

• Various Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification 
elements will be considered and incorporated into the design of any storm 
water and drainage improvements 

• Any fireworks displays will require City considerations, per Chapter 93, 
Section 105.6.15.1 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances 

 
5. Community Benefit: 
 

• The stadium will be available for at least 260 days per year for the City of 
Troy and resident organization use 

• General Sports will not charge the City of Troy or resident groups a rental or 
users fee, but the groups will pay for any direct costs incurred as part of their 
event 

• The City will have the option to review and reject non-baseball events, and 
the calendar of events will be coordinated between the parties to ensure that 
the City’s use of the facility is not limited to the wintertime 

 
6. Alcohol Sales: 
 

• All sales and advertising of alcoholic beverages will be per the memorandum 
between the Troy Community Coalition and General Sports, dated November 
2004 

 
7. Due Diligence: 
 

• During contract negotiations, City Management will exercise due diligence in 
preparing the contract documents by, at a minimum: 

 
1. Verification of sound levels, lighting plans, parking agreements and 

sufficiency, and any MDEQ requirements for the site 
2. Perform a detailed review of General Sports business plan and the 

track record of the Fort Wayne Wizards 
3. Compare and contrast other municipal experiences with minor league 

baseball 
 

8. Security and Law Enforcement: 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to secure the 
services of outside professionals that have experience in stadium development. 
 
Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

-5- 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “agree” and INSERTING, 
“formulate a loan agreement with interest” before, “upon” under 1. Financing, bullet point 2. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-01-005 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Authorization to Negotiate a Contract with General Sports and 
Entertainment L.L.C for the Placement of a Multi-Use Minor League Baseball Stadium in the 
Southeast Area of the Civic Center Site be POSTPONED to the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, January 10, 2005 at 7:30 PM and be listed as the first item to be 
considered under “Postponed Items”. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:30 PM 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 10, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:34 PM. 

Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian Chapel gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  None Scheduled 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington 
Road – Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z-479-B) 

 
Resolution #2005-01-006 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the 
northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Road, Section 23, being 21,000 square 
feet in size, is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #15 
 
Resolution #2005-01-007 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini   

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #15 – 
Visitors and LIMIT Public Comment under Postponed Agenda Item C-1 Authorization to 
Negotiate a Contract with General Sports and Entertainment L.L.C. for Placement of a Multi-
Use Minor League Baseball Stadium in the Southeast Area of the Civic Center Site from five 
minutes to three minutes. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Schilling 
No: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

 
C-1 Authorization to Negotiate a Contract with General Sports and Entertainment 

L.L.C. for the Placement of a Multi-Use Minor League Baseball Stadium in the 
Southeast Area of the Civic Center Site 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
WHEREAS, General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. approached the City of Troy for reason 
of locating a multi-use minor league baseball stadium on Civic Center property; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council gave direction to the City Manager at the Study Session of 
November 15, 2004 to identify and address elements that have salience relative to the 
proposed stadium in terms of benefit to the community, site plan issues, environmental issues, 
and financing; and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 29, 2004 the Troy City Council directed City staff to continue 
discussions with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. regarding the placement of a minor 
league baseball stadium at the southeast portion of the Civic Center Site with additional 
consideration being given to financial arrangements, alcohol use, and additional public input 
from the City of Troy boards and committees. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to 
negotiate a contract with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. for placement of a multi-use 
minor league baseball stadium in the southeast area of the Civic Center site, and this contract 
will contain the following elements: 
 

1. Financing: 
 

• All construction, maintenance, operations, and construction costs for the 
facility will be the responsibility of General Sports 

• All infrastructure costs are to be the responsibility of General Sports, unless 
the Downtown Development Authority, City, and General Sports agree upon 
some cost-sharing of various components 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

• The stadium will not be collateral for loans 
• If General Sports fails in their operations of the minor league baseball team 

and stadium, the City will be left without debt and will own the facility 
• General Sports will pay property taxes on the exclusively privately used real 

property and all personal property 
 

2. Stadium: 
 

• The property will continue to be owned by the City of Troy 
• The stadium will be a gift to the City of Troy from General Sports with the 

understanding that General Sports will operate a minor league baseball team 
on the site 

• Management of the facility for all events will be provided by General Sports at 
no cost to the City of Troy 

• User costs (clean-up, electricity, etc.) for the City of Troy and community 
groups will be paid by the event organizer 

• General Sports will provide all necessary insurance for the facility and 
operations as determined by the City of Troy 

• The City of Troy reserves the right to approve any transfer of management or 
ownership of operations of the facility 

• In the event General Sports fails in their operations of the facility and minor 
league baseball team, the City of Troy can order demolition of the stadium. 
The cost of demolition will be borne and guaranteed (i.e. escrow account) by 
General Sports 

• Clean-up for all events will be the responsibility of General Sports, including all 
off-site locations used for parking 

• The City of Troy will exercise architectural review of the stadium design to 
ensure that the design is compatible with surrounding structures on the Civic 
Center site. 

 
3. Parking: 
 

• At least 2,000 parking spaces will be provided for all games and events 
without a variance, with long-term agreements established from nearby 
property owners for a minimum of 25 years; the City of Troy will consider a 
zoning ordinance text amendment to permit off-site parking if required 

• Parking attendants will be located at the Community Center, Aquatic Center, 
Library, and City Hall parking lots to preclude minor league baseball patrons 
from parking in these lots. Attendants will not stop drivers to inquire about 
driver’s intentions, but rather will watch for violators and take appropriate 
action 

• Maximum facility capacity is limited to 5,500 patrons per game or event without 
adding additional off-site parking arranged at the expense of General Sports 

 
4. Environmental Impacts: 
 

• Spill light from the stadium will be nonexistent at 1,200 feet from the stadium 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

• A fully distributed sound system configuration will be used in lieu of an outfield 
or centralized speaker system, and the emission of measurable noises from 
the facility shall not exceed noise limitations as established in Chapter 39, 
Section 39.90.08 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances at the southern limits 
of the residential neighborhood to the north of the stadium 

• Traffic control services provided by the City of Troy or any other part will be 
paid for by General Sports or the event organizer 

• Various Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification 
elements will be considered and incorporated into the design of any storm 
water and drainage improvements 

• Any fireworks displays will require City considerations, per Chapter 93, Section 
105.6.15.1 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances 

 
5. Community Benefit: 
 

• The stadium will be available for at least 260 days per year for the City of Troy 
and resident organization use 

• General Sports will not charge the City of Troy or resident groups a rental or 
users fee, but the groups will pay for any direct costs incurred as part of their 
event 

• The City will have the option to review and reject non-baseball events, and the 
calendar of events will be coordinated between the parties to ensure that the 
City’s use of the facility is not limited to the wintertime 

 
6. Alcohol Sales: 
 

• All sales and advertising of alcoholic beverages will be per the memorandum 
between the Troy Community Coalition and General Sports, dated November 
2004 

 
7. Due Diligence: 
 

• During contract negotiations, City Management will exercise due diligence in 
preparing the contract documents by, at a minimum: 

 
1. Verification of sound levels, lighting plans, parking agreements and 

sufficiency, and any MDEQ requirements for the site 
2. Perform a detailed review of General Sports business plan and the 

track record of the Fort Wayne Wizards 
3. Compare and contrast other municipal experiences with minor league 

baseball 
 

8. Security and Law Enforcement: 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to secure the services 
of outside professionals that have experience in stadium development. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “agree” and INSERTING, 
“formulate a loan agreement with interest” before, “upon” under 1. Financing, bullet point 2. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Amendment by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-01-008 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTING with “RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING, “, City 
and General Sports agree upon some cost-sharing of various components” and INSERTING,  “ 
and City agree to pay for those items that are part of the Civic Center Priority Task Force 
recommendation” after “Downtown Development Authority” as it appears under “1. Financing, 
bullet point 2”. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amendment as Substituted 
 
Resolution #2005-01-009 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING, “, City and General Sports 
agree upon some cost-sharing of various components” and INSERTING,  “ and City agree to 
pay for those items that are part of the Civic Center Priority Task Force recommendation” after 
“Downtown Development Authority” as it appears under “1. Financing, bullet point 2”. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: Howrylak, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-01-010 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “Troy residents will have an 
advance opportunity to purchase tickets for baseball events” under 5. Community Benefit. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “City of Troy and General 
Sports will enter into a lease agreement which could include but not be limited to, a percentage 
of ticket proceeds, a percentage of advertising income, and a percentage of naming rights 
income in order to provide a revenue stream for the City” under 1. Financing. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-01-011 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend be AMENDED by STRIKING, “lease”. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Lambert, Stine, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amendment as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-01-012 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “City of Troy and General 
Sports will enter into an agreement which could include but not be limited to, a percentage of 
ticket proceeds, a percentage of advertising income, and a percentage of naming rights income 
in order to provide a revenue stream for the City” under 1. Financing. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Stine, Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-01-013 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “City has the right to use the 
facility with no obligation to reimburse General Sports for any costs incurred” under 2. Stadium. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-01-014 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “, and the City of Troy and 
General Sports will agree upon a fixed number of dates where there is no cost for the City of 
Troy and/or residential organizational use” after “use” under 5. Community Benefit, bullet point 
1. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
The meeting RECESSED 9:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:55 p.m. 
 
Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “at the southern limits of the 
residential neighborhood to the north of the stadium” and INSERTING, “with the stadium 
boundaries” under 4. Environmental Impacts, bullet point 2. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Amendment by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-01-015 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend be AMENDED by STRIKING “with the stadium 
boundaries” and SUBSTITUTED with, “at the limits of the adjacent residential properties”. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Substituted Amendment by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-01-016 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Substituted Resolution to Amend be AMENDED by STRIKING “adjacent 
residential properties” and SUBSTITUTE with, “Library entrance nearest entrance nearest the 
baseball stadium and the Community Center entrance nearest the baseball stadium”. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine 
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend as Substituted 
 
Resolution #2005-01-017 
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “at the southern limits of the 
residential neighborhood to the north of the stadium” and INSERTING, “at the limits of the 
adjacent residential properties” under 4. Environmental Impacts, bullet point 2. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-01-018 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
WHEREAS, General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. approached the City of Troy for reason 
of locating a multi-use minor league baseball stadium on Civic Center property; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council gave direction to the City Manager at the Study Session of 
November 15, 2004 to identify and address elements that have salience relative to the 
proposed stadium in terms of benefit to the community, site plan issues, environmental issues, 
and financing; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, On November 29, 2004 the Troy City Council directed City staff to continue 
discussions with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. regarding the placement of a minor 
league baseball stadium at the southeast portion of the Civic Center Site with additional 
consideration being given to financial arrangements, alcohol use, and additional public input 
from the City of Troy boards and committees. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to 
negotiate a contract with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. for placement of a multi-use 
minor league baseball stadium in the southeast area of the Civic Center site, and this contract 
will contain the following elements: 
 

1. Financing: 
 

• All construction, maintenance, operations, and construction costs for the 
facility will be the responsibility of General Sports 

• All infrastructure costs are to be the responsibility of General Sports, unless 
the Downtown Development Authority and City agree to pay for those items 
that are a part of the Civic Center Priority Task Force Recommendation 

• The stadium will not be collateral for loans 
• If General Sports fails in their operations of the minor league baseball team 

and stadium, the City will be left without debt and will own the facility 
• General Sports will pay property taxes on the exclusively privately used real 

property and all personal property 
• City of Troy and General Sports will enter into an agreement which could 

include but not be limited to, a percentage of ticket proceeds, a percentage of 
advertising income, and a percentage of naming rights income in order to 
provide a revenue stream for the City 

 
2. Stadium: 
 

• The property will continue to be owned by the City of Troy 
• The stadium will be a gift to the City of Troy from General Sports with the 

understanding that General Sports will operate a minor league baseball team 
on the site 

• Management of the facility for all events will be provided by General Sports at 
no cost to the City of Troy 

• User costs (clean-up, electricity, etc.) for the City of Troy and community 
groups will be paid by the event organizer 

• General Sports will provide all necessary insurance for the facility and 
operations as determined by the City of Troy 

• The City of Troy reserves the right to approve any transfer of management or 
ownership of operations of the facility 

• In the event General Sports fails in their operations of the facility and minor 
league baseball team, the City of Troy can order demolition of the stadium. 
The cost of demolition will be borne and guaranteed (i.e. escrow account) by 
General Sports 

• Clean-up for all events will be the responsibility of General Sports, including all 
off-site locations used for parking 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

• The City of Troy will exercise architectural review of the stadium design to 
ensure that the design is compatible with surrounding structures on the Civic 
Center site. 

 
3. Parking: 
 

• At least 2,000 parking spaces will be provided for all games and events 
without a variance, with long-term agreements established from nearby 
property owners for a minimum of 25 years; the City of Troy will consider a 
zoning ordinance text amendment to permit off-site parking if required 

• Parking attendants will be located at the Community Center, Aquatic Center, 
Library, and City Hall parking lots to preclude minor league baseball patrons 
from parking in these lots. Attendants will not stop drivers to inquire about 
driver’s intentions, but rather will watch for violators and take appropriate 
action 

• Maximum facility capacity is limited to 5,500 patrons per game or event without 
adding additional off-site parking arranged at the expense of General Sports 

 
4. Environmental Impacts: 
 

• Spill light from the stadium will be nonexistent at 1,200 feet from the stadium 
• A fully distributed sound system configuration will be used in lieu of an outfield 

or centralized speaker system, and the emission of measurable noises from 
the facility shall not exceed noise limitations as established in Chapter 39, 
Section 39.90.08 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances at the limits of the 
adjacent residential properties 

• Traffic control services provided by the City of Troy or any other part will be 
paid for by General Sports or the event organizer 

• Various Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification 
elements will be considered and incorporated into the design of any storm 
water and drainage improvements 

• Any fireworks displays will require City considerations, per Chapter 93, Section 
105.6.15.1 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances 

 
5. Community Benefit: 
 

• The stadium will be available for at least 260 days per year for the City of Troy 
and resident organization use, and the City of Troy and General Sports will 
agree upon a fixed number of dates where there is no cost for the City of Troy 
and/or residential organization use 

• General Sports will not charge the City of Troy or resident groups a rental or 
users fee, but the groups will pay for any direct costs incurred as part of their 
event 

• The City will have the option to review and reject non-baseball events, and the 
calendar of events will be coordinated between the parties to ensure that the 
City’s use of the facility is not limited to the wintertime 

• Troy residents will have an advance opportunity to purchase tickets for 
baseball events 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

 
6. Alcohol Sales: 
 

• All sales and advertising of alcoholic beverages will be per the memorandum 
between the Troy Community Coalition and General Sports, dated November 
2004 

 
7. Due Diligence: 
 

• During contract negotiations, City Management will exercise due diligence in 
preparing the contract documents by, at a minimum: 

 
1. Verification of sound levels, lighting plans, parking agreements and 

sufficiency, and any MDEQ requirements for the site 
2. Perform a detailed review of General Sports business plan and the 

track record of the Fort Wayne Wizards 
3. Compare and contrast other municipal experiences with minor league 

baseball 
 

8. Security and Law Enforcement: 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to secure the services 
of outside professionals that have experience in stadium development. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Lambert, Stine, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rule #5 
 
Resolution #2005-01-019 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #5 – 
Order of Business, and move forward agenda items F-6, Petition Analysis, Sanitary Sewer in 
the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions – SAD #04.403.1 and F-7, Petition Analysis, Bituminous 
Paving in the Charnwood Hills Subdivision – SAD # 04.104.1on the current agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

F-6 Petition Analysis, Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions – SAD # 
04.403.1 

 
(a) Standard Resolution #1 
 
Resolution #2005-01-020 (a) 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #1 be hereby ADOPTED to direct the preparation of 
plans and cost estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Sanitary 
Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions in Section 6, Project No. 04.403.1, all pursuant to 
Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

(b) Standard Resolution #2 
 
Resolution #2005-01-020 (b) 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #2 be hereby ADOPTED to approve plans and cost 
estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Sanitary Sewer in the 
Charnwood Hills Subdivisions, in Section 6, Project No. 04.403.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 
and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Total Estimated Cost  $2,593,750.00 
Assessment (165 units @ $ 15,719.697 ea.)   $2,593,750.00 
City's Share               0.00 

        
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED AND DIRECTED to 
prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(c) Standard Resolution #3 
 
Resolution #2005-01-020 (c) 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #3 be hereby ADOPTED to set a Public Hearing date 
on the Special Assessment roll for Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions, in 
Section 6, Project No. 04.403.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with 
said Public Hearing to be ESTABLISHED for January 24, 2005. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
F-7 Petition Analysis, Bituminous Paving in the Charnwood Hills Subdivision – SAD # 

04.104.1 
 
(a) Standard Resolution #1 
 
Resolution #2005-01-21 (a) 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #1 be hereby ADOPTED to direct the preparation of 
plans and cost estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt 
Paving of the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions in Section 6, Project No. 04.104.1, all pursuant to 
Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(b) Standard Resolution #2 
 
Resolution #2005-01-021 (b) 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #2 be hereby ADOPTED to approve plans and cost 
estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt Paving of the 
Charnwood Hills Subdivisions, in Section 6, Project No. 04.104.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 
and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy 
 
Total Estimated Cost  $1,708,162.50 
Assessment (170 units @ $ 5,803.161 ea.) $    986,537.50
City's Share         $    721,625.00

      
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED AND DIRECTED 
to prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of 
Troy. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
(c) Standard Resolution #3 
 
Resolution #2005-01-021 (c) 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #3 be hereby ADOPTED to set a Public Hearing date 
on the Special Assessment roll for Asphalt Paving of the Charnwood Hills Subdivisions, in 
Section 6, Project No. 04.104.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with 
said Public Hearing to be ESTABLISHED for January 24, 2005. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family 

Cluster Option  
 
Resolution #2005-01-022 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XXXIV (Residential Development Options), Article IV (Definitions) and 
Article X (One Family Residential Districts) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED 
to read as written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 200), 
dated January 10, 2005, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-01-023 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Special Meeting of December 20, 2004 and the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2004, be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): No Proclamations Submitted 
 
E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award: Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Physical Fitness Equipment 
 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-4 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase and install new physical fitness equipment at the 
Community Center and Police Department is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI, at an estimated net total cost of 
$72,760.00 including trade-ins, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation dated 
November 18, 2004, and accompanying schedule of values. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon the vendor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award: Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Bare Root Street Trees - Installed 
 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install 2,500 bare root street trees, in the Spring of 
2005, is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Marine City Nursery of 
Marine City, MI, for an estimated total cost of $410,000.00, and a second contract be ISSUED 
to SS Seeding, Inc. of Oxford, MI, for 900 additional trees totaling $90,000.00, at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation opened December 7, 2004, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are contingent upon contractor(s) submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates, and 
all other specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

E-6  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 

 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide fleet vehicles from Buff Whelan Chevrolet is hereby 
APPROVED through an Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated 
total cost of  $121,540.00. 
 
E-7  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide fleet vehicles from Signature Ford L-M Jeep Eagle is 
hereby APPROVED through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an 
estimated total cost of $208,324.00. 
 
E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Glock .40 Caliber 

Handguns 
 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase/trade-in Glock handguns is hereby AWARDED to the 
low bidder, Vance Outdoors, Inc. dba/Vance’s Law Enforcement, of Columbus, OH, for an 
estimated net total cost of $27,975.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
December 22, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-9  Approval of Purchase Agreement, Roxann L. Klee – 2895 Clayton, Sidwell #88-20-

25-226-001 – Project No. 01.105.5, Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester to 
Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Roxann L. Klee, and the City of Troy, 
having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-001 for the acquisition of right-of-way from the property at 2895 
Clayton is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the right-of-
way in the Agreement referenced above and reimburse the homeowner for fence relocation in 
the total amount of $24,382, plus closing costs. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

E-10  Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 
Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) Congressional City Conference in Washington, DC 

 
Resolution #2005-01-023-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the 
National League of Cities 2005 Annual Congressional City Conference in Washington, DC from 
March 11-15, 2005 in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Board of 
Review and  b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Election Commission; Municipal 
Building Authority; Traffic Committee; and Liquor Committee 

 
 (a)  Mayoral Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-01-024 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Review 
Mayor, Council Approval (3) – 3 years 
 
Eileen Turner Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Resolution to Separate Vote 
 
Resolution #2005-01-025 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the vote for recommendations made to the Liquor Committee be 
SEPARATED due to the number of nominations exceeding the number of positions available. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-01-026 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Susan Werpetinski Term expires 11/01/2007 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
Patrick Carolan Term expires 09/30/2007 
 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council (3) – 1 year 
 
David C Anderson Term expires 01-31-06 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
Victor P Freliga Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Jan L. Hubbell Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Richard A Kilmer Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Pete Ziegenfelder Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

Roll Call Vote – Liquor Committee 
 

 Schilling Beltramini Broomfield Eisenbacher Howrylak Lambert Stine 
Unexpired Term: 
01-31-2006 Ehlert Ehlert Ehlert Ehlert Ukrainec Ukrainec Ukrainec 

Term Expires: 
01-31-2008 Godlewski Godlewski Godlewski Godlewski Godlewski Godlewski Godlewski 

Term Expires: 
01-31-2008 Howe Howe Ukrainec Ukrainec Ukrainec Ukrainec Ukrainec 

 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Persons to the Liquor Committee 
 
Resolution #2005-01-027 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Liquor Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Max K Ehlert Unexpired term expires 01-31-2006 
 
W. S. Godlewski Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
Yes: Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert Stine  
No: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-2 Parking Variance – 5991 Livernois 
 
Resolution #2005-01-028 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Parking Variance Request for 5991 Livernois be POSTPONED to the 
first Regular City Council meeting after appropriate public notice can take place subsequent to 
Board of Zoning Appeals action. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

F-3 City Council Resolution Regarding Concerns on Urban Area Security Initiative 
Funding and Area Determination 

 
Resolution #2005-01-029 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) grant for FY 2004 provided a direct grant 
to certain urban areas, specifically to the County of Wayne and the City of Detroit in Michigan, 
for an amount approximating $13.8 million; and  
 
WHEREAS, The cities, villages, and townships (CVTs) of Oakland County were excluded in the 
decision making process at the state level when the definitions of an ‘urban area’ were made as 
part of the State grant application process; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is aware of forthcoming UASI grant funds for homeland security 
which may expand the current ‘urban area’ from the original geographic boundaries of 
jurisdictions eligible to receive such funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, The federal government has increased the allocation of the UASI at the expense of 
the Office of Domestic Preparedness grants enjoyed by the County and its cities, villages and 
townships; and 
 
WHEREAS, The true urban area of Michigan is much more inclusive of other urban areas 
including Oakland County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County represents approximately 11% of the State’s population, 
approximately 19% of the State’s taxable value, significant critical infrastructure, and much of 
the economic development and related support to the entire State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The exclusion of Oakland County and other contiguous counties has adversely 
impacted the police, fire, emergency medical services, public health, public works and other first 
responders responsible for ensuring our citizens are properly covered in the event of a 
weapons of mass destruction or other devastating emergency. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy OBJECTS to 
the current definition of urban area which is only inclusive of Wayne County and the City of 
Detroit; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Oakland County, as well as other contiguous counties of 
Southeast Michigan, BE INCLUDED in the determination of the Urban Area; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Oakland County RECEIVE appropriate and proportionate 
UASI funding in accordance with their respective populations, critical infrastructure and 
identified threats, risks, and vulnerability assessments; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That this Resolution BE SUBMITTED to Michigan’s United States 
Senators, United States Congressmen, all members of the Michigan Legislature, the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

Governor’s office, appropriate Federal Government Committees, and the President of the 
United States. 
 
Yes: All-7 
  
F-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, 

North Side of Square Lake Road, East of John R, Section 1- R-1D 
 
Resolution #2005-01-030 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, and as 
recommended for approval by City Management and the Planning Commission, located on the 
north side of Square Lake Road, east of John R, in Section 1, including 27 home sites, within 
the R-1D zoning district, being 8.03 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-5 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Covington Estates Site Condominium, 

South Side of Long Lake Road, East of Livernois, Section 15 – R-1C 
 
Resolution #2005-01-031 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Covington Estates Site Condominium, and as 
recommended for approval by City Management and the Planning Commission, located on the 
south side of Long Lake Road, east of Livernois, in Section 15, including 5 home sites, within 
the R-1C zoning district, being 2.3 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-8 City Council Study Session 
 
Resolution #2005-01-032 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That a Study Session is SCHEDULED for the following date: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

Monday, January 17, 2005 at 7:30 PM; in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-9 Appointment of SOCRRA Delegate and Alternate 
 
Resolution #2005-01-033 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The appointments of delegate and alternate delegate to the SOCRRA Board 
expired on December 31,2004. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That  Brian Murphy is APPOINTED as delegate to the 
SOCRRA Board, effective immediately, until June 30, 2005; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Tim Richnak is APPOINTED as the alternate delegate to 
the SOCRRA Board, effective immediately, until June 30, 2005. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2774 E. Maple Rd. – January 24, 2005  
b) Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake Road, 

Section 3 – R-1B to R-1T (Z 696-B) – January 24, 2005 
c) Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – R-

1C to R-1T (Z 699-B) – January 24, 2005  
d) Rezoning Request – Northwest Corner of Maple Road and Livernois Road, Section 28 – 

O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 (Z 602-B) – January 24, 2005 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a)  Response to Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens Letter Regarding Community 

Center Catering 
Noted and Filed 

 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

H-1  Troy  Representation on the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority 
(ICCA).  Also Attached are Memoranda from City Administration Relative to This 
Matter – Referred by Council Member Martin Howrylak 

 
Resolution #2005-01-034 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That a Study Session is SCHEDULED for Monday, January 24, 2004 at 6:00 PM 
for the purpose of discussing public access television. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Schilling,  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 2, 2004  
b) Planning Commission/Final – November 9, 2004  
c) Library Board/Final – November 11, 2004 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – November 16, 2004  
e) Troy Youth Council/Final – November 17, 2004 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 7, 2004  
g) Special Meeting/Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Final – December 7, 2004   
h) Library Board/Draft – December 9, 2004 
i) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – December 13, 2004  
j) Planning Commission/Draft – December 14, 2004  
k) Troy Youth Council/Draft – December 15, 2004 
l) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 21, 2004  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Travel Expense Report – Council Member Lambert – National League of Cities 

Congress of Cities Meeting  
b) Travel Expense Report – Council Member Beltramini – National League of Cities 

Congress of Cities Meeting  
c) Permits Issued During the Month of October, 2004 – Building & Zoning Department 
d) Permits Issued During the Month of November, 2004 – Building & Zoning Department 
e) Bidcorp On-Line Auction – Ten (10) Computer Units and Workstations – Unassembled – 

Final Reporting  
f) Phosphorus Reduction in Lawn Care Practices – Residential and City-Owned Properties  
g) Park Board Action – Rotary Park Proposed Plan 

Noted and Filed 



CIL MINUTES - Draft January 10, 2005 

rs of Appreciation: None Submitted 
CITY COUN
 
J-3  Lette
- 24 - 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Request for Federal Aid Funding – FY 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  City Council Meeting Report 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items submitted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  
 
Resolution #2004-11-035 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Papadelis v. City of Troy; Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C.; 
Estate of Leslie McPherson v. City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
The meeting RECESSED on Tuesday, January 11, 2005 at 12:14 A.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED on Tuesday, January 11, 2005 at 12:26 A.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, January 11, 2005 at 12:27 A.M. 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 17, 2005 
 

-1- 

A Special Meeting/Study Session of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 17, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (arrived 7:38 PM) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

 
1. Organizational Positives 
 
2.  Goals and Objectives 
 
3. City Council’s Vision for a Preferred Future  (Based on Individual Interviews with 

Council Members) 
 
4. Interests Identified at Council Workshops – Facilitated by Dr. Lew Bender 
 

a) Mayor Louise Schilling’s Experimental Proposal Regarding Visitors 
There was consensus that staff would bring back modified Rules and Procedures to 
reflect: 
1) Public Comment: If more than 15 visitors are signed up to speak to one topic, City 

Council may modify their rules to adjust time permitted per speaker. 
2) A midnight adjournment requirement 
3) First two meetings of the month are regular business meetings with Public Hearings 

distributed between them.  The 3rd meeting of the month will be a study session. 
4) Minor revisions to the Rules and Procedures for Special Meetings  
     (Sections 6, 7 and 9) 

 
REPORT AND COMMUNICATION 
 
Memorandum, Re: Methodology Employed to Compile Public Input Regarding Minor League 
Baseball Stadium 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:07 PM. 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 

 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance & Administration 

 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



  
 

January 6, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy – Assistance City Manager / Services 

Carol Anderson – Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT:    Agenda Item – Arbor Day Proclamation 2005 - 2006 
 
 
In order for the City of Troy to be re-certified as Tree City USA by the National 
Arbor Day Foundation, a proclamation will need to accompany our application. 
 
As stated by Michigan Governor George Romney in 1965, “It is well that we bring 
attention to our trees and the need to continue to plant them about our homes, our 
places of business, our industries, our schools, our highways, and throughout the 
landscape so that their majesty will reflect our appreciation of the grandeur of nature 
and further the culture and economy of our state." 
 
Therefore, it is requested that a City Proclamation be issued declaring that the 
observance of Arbor Day in the City of Troy, will be: 
 

May 6, 2005 
May 5, 2006 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by RWH 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-03a



January 11, 2005 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 
 
 
The Mon Jin Lau (1515 E. Maple) requests that the City of Troy waive the city 
ordinances prohibiting the discharge of fireworks (Chapter 98.05.16 and Chapter 
93, 3301.1.3) for the purpose of celebrating Chinese New Year.  In the past, City 
Council has routinely approved this request.  The Police and Fire Departments 
do not object to the request.  
 
The Mon Jin Lau celebration is scheduled for February 7, 2005.   
 
Should you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-04



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: January 12, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Sunset Excavating, Inc. v. MDOT (as agent for the City of Troy)  
 

 
 

 
Sunset Excavating, Inc. has indirectly sued the City of Troy for an 

alleged change order in the Big Beaver Road Project (from I-75 to 
Rochester Road).  In the attached complaint, Sunset argues that the 
unexpected requirement to remove some of the existing soil and replace it 
with a finer grade of soil justifies an additional $190,000 in compensation.  
Since the Project was partially financed with federal funds, MDOT was 
required to serve as the coordinator of the project, and therefore signed 
the contract with Sunset Excavating, Inc.  As the contracting party, MDOT 
is actually the named defendant in this lawsuit, even though it is the City of 
Troy that assumes all liability for the Project.  Under Michigan law, this 
claim against MDOT must be litigated in the Michigan Court of Claims, 
and must be defended by the Attorney General’s Office.  Under this 
scenario, the City forfeited all control over the case, even though we were 
still required to pay for any judgments.  In addition, the City would have 
been required to reimburse the Attorney General’s Office for all attorney 
fees and costs incurred in the defense of the case.  Alternatively, the 
Attorney General could designate a qualified person to be a Special 
Assistant Attorney General, who could assume the defense of the case.   
This option would provide the City with some control over the ultimate 
disposition of the case, and could minimize the costs of the litigation.     

 
Attorney General Michael A. Cox has recently appointed me as a 

Special Assistant Attorney General of the State of Michigan.  (See 
attached).   With this designation, I am now able to aggressively defend 
the City’s position in this lawsuit.   

 
As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please 

let me know.          
     
  
 
    

bittnera
Text Box
E-05





















 
  
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager  
  
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
DATE:  January 18, 2005 
    
RE:  Agenda Item – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Deficit Elimination 

Plan 
 
One recommendation arising from the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) review of our June 30, 2003 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) was to present the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) as a 
discretely presented component unit. This involves no change in its operations, 
only the accounting presentation in the CAFR. Under this presentation, the “First 
Amendment to the Brownfield Redevelopment Plan Number 1” which provides 
for repayment of the developer’s environmental cleanup costs from future tax 
increment revenues is recorded as a current expenditure, and related note 
payable. 
 
This GFOA recommendation has been implemented with the June 30, 2004 
CAFR. The amount owed the developer, $1,185,358 ($860,855 as of November 
2004) will continue to be paid off as tax revenues are collected. The recognition 
of this liability creates a current deficit fund balance in the BRA, as the future tax 
receipts are not recognized as revenue until levied. Again, no change in 
operations, payment terms or amounts results from this implementation. 
 
It is a requirement of the State of Michigan that any fund or component unit which 
reports a negative fund balance shall file a deficit elimination plan. This plan is as 
follows: 
 
BRA Fund Balance, June 30, 2004   $ (1,180,834) 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 04-05  (a)       (158,178) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 04-05 (b)         678,178 
Estimated Fund Balance, June 30, 2005   $   ( 660,834) 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 05-06 (c)         (35,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 05-06 (d)         700,000
 
Estimated Fund Balance, June 30, 2006   $         4,166 
 

(a) Interest on note, $142,078; administration, $15,500; tax tribunal refunds, $600. 
(b) Tax increment revenue 
(c) Interest on note, $18,900; administration, $15,500; tax tribunal refunds, $600. 
(d) Tax increment revenue 
 
Under this plan, the deficit will be eliminated by June 30, 2006. Please advise 
if further information is requested. 

bittnera
Text Box
E-06



 
 

January 14, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licensed 

Business – Asia Mart 
  
 
 
MJMN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 2004 SDD & SDM licensed business located at 
36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from Asia Mart, Inc.  
 
Present to answer questions at the December 13, 2004, Liquor Advisory Committee meeting 
was Thomas Giachino, attorney for shareholder Masoud Matti.  If approved, the new business 
will be named “Atlas Market and Bakery”, and will be a full service grocery store and bakery, 
with space subleased for a pharmacy.  Extensive remodeling has been completed.  Mr. Matti 
currently owns a store in Highland Park and has many years of management experience. 
 
A background check of the shareholders did not reveal any disqualifying factors; consequently, 
the police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

bittnera
Text Box
E-07











LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                  December 13, 2004 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, December 
13, 2004 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member James R. Peard called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Anita Elenbaum (resigned) 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-132 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of December 13, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 8, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-133 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 8, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

Page 1 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                  December 13, 2004 
 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MJMN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD & SDM licensed 

business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689]    Inspections underway – proposed 
Atlas Market and Bakery 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Thomas Giachino, attorney for 
Atlas Market and Bakery.   
 
The owners of this business are planning to open a full service grocery and bakery, 
subleasing space for a pharmacy.  They are doing extensive remodeling and city 
inspections are nearly completed.  They currently own a store in Highland Park and 
have many years of management experience.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-134 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett  
 
RESOLVED, that MJMN, INC., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD & SDM 
licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689]     
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2.   MK 2, L.L.C., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD and SDM licensed 

business located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Faten A 
and A, Inc.   [MLCC REQ ID# 271602]    Inspections underway – sale of The 
Beer Barrel to Lucky’s Market 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Michael Konja, Sr. and Michael 
Konja, Jr. 
 

Page 2 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                  December 13, 2004 
 

This family has purchased this convenience store.  They plan to change the name and 
do exterior improvements.  The layout of the store will basically remain the same, with 
minor changes to the shelving.  This will be a seven day operation with just family 
members as staff.  They previously owned a convenience store in Waterford and 
received a liquor violation in 1997. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-135 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MK 2, L.L.C., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD and SDM 
licensed business located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Faten 
A and A, Inc.   [MLCC REQ ID# 271602]     
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney, Carolyn Glosby, distributed to Committee members a memo 
dated November 22, 2004 directed to the Mayor and Members of City Council.  This 
memo deals with the potential impacts and available alternatives for liquor license 
applicants once the quota licenses are depleted.  This memo was discussed by the 
Committee members. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 3 of 3 



Liquor Control Commission 57
(2) The fees provided in this act for the various types of licenses shall not be prorated for a
portion of the effective period of the license.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1527 Special license for nonprofit charitable organization; issuance;
nontransferable; fee; auction.
Sec. 527. (1) The commission may issue a special license to a nonprofit charitable organization
that is exempt from the payment of taxes under the internal revenue code for the purpose of
allowing the organization to sell, at auction, wine donated to the organization.
(2) A special license issued pursuant to subsection (1) is not transferable. The organization
applying for the special license shall pay the fee required under section 525(1)(r).
(3) An auction permitted under subsection (1) may occur upon premises which are otherwise
licensed under this act to allow the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption on the licensed
premises.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1529 Transfer of license or interest in license; notice of transfer of stock in licensed
corporation or licensed limited partnership; investigation to ensure compliance;
approval; transfer fee; inspection fee.
Sec. 529. (1) A license or an interest in a license shall not be transferred from 1 person to
another without the prior approval of the commission. For purposes of this section, the transfer
in the aggregate to another person during any single licensing year of more than 10% of the
outstanding stock of a licensed corporation or more than 10% of the total interest in a licensed
limited partnership shall be considered to be a transfer requiring the prior approval of the
commission.
(2) Not later than July 1 of each year, each privately held licensed corporation and each
licensed limited partnership shall notify the commission as to whether any of the shares of stock
in the corporation, or interest in the limited partnership, have been transferred during the
preceding licensing year. The commission may investigate the transfer of any number of shares
of stock in a licensed corporation, or any amount of interest in a licensed limited partnership, for
the purpose of ensuring compliance with this act and the rules promulgated under this act.
(3) Except as otherwise provided in subdivisions (a) through (f), upon approval by the
commission of a transfer subject to subsection (1), there shall be paid to the commission a
transfer fee equal to the fee provided in this act for the class of license being transferred. A
transfer fee shall not be prorated for a portion of the effective period of the license. If a person
holding more than 1 license or more than 1 interest in a license at more than 1 location, but in
the name of a single legal entity, transfers all of the licenses or interests in licenses
simultaneously to another single legal entity, the transfers shall be considered 1 transfer for
purposes of determining a transfer fee, payable in an amount equal to the highest license fee
provided in this act for any of the licenses, or interests in licenses, being transferred. A transfer
fee shall not be required in regard to any of the following:
(a) The transfer, in the aggregate, of less than 50% of the outstanding shares of stock in a
licensed corporation or less than 50% of the total interest in a licensed limited partnership
during any licensing year.
(b) The exchange of the assets of a licensed sole proprietorship, licensed general partnership,
or licensed limited partnership for all outstanding shares of stock in a corporation in which either
the sole proprietor, all members of the general partnership, or all members of the limited



Liquor Control Commission 58
partnership are the only stockholders of that corporation. An exchange under this subdivision
shall not be considered an application for a license for the purposes of section 501.
(c) The transfer of the interest in a licensed business of a deceased licensee, a deceased
stockholder, or a deceased member of a general or limited partnership to the deceased
person's spouse or children.
(d) The removal of a member of a firm, a stockholder, a member of a general partnership or
limited partnership, or association of licensees from a license.
(e) The addition to a license of the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of any of the following:
(i) A licensed sole proprietor.
(ii) A stockholder in a licensed corporation.
(iii) A member of a licensed general partnership, licensed limited partnership, or other licensed
association.
(f) The occurrence of any of the following events:
(i) A corporate stock split of a licensed corporation.
(ii) The issuance to a stockholder of a licensed corporation of previously unissued stock as
compensation for services performed.
(iii) The redemption by a licensed corporation of its own stock.
(4) A nonrefundable inspection fee of $70.00 shall be paid to the commission by an applicant or
licensee at the time of filing any of the following:
(a) An application for a new license or permit.
(b) A request for approval of a transfer of ownership or location of a license.
(c) A request for approval to increase or decrease the size of the licensed premises, or to add a
bar.
(d) A request for approval of the transfer in any licensing year of any of the shares of stock in a
licensed corporation from 1 person to another, or any part of the total interest in a licensed
limited partnership from 1 person to another.
(5) An inspection fee shall be returned to the person by whom it was paid if the purpose of the
inspection was to inspect the physical premises of the licensee, and the inspection was not
actually conducted. An inspection fee shall not be required for any of the following:
(a) The issuance or transfer of a special license, salesperson license, limited alcohol buyer
license, corporate salesperson license, hospital permit, military permit, or Sunday sale of spirits
permit.
(b) The issuance of a new permit, or the transfer of an existing permit, if the permit is issued or
transferred simultaneously with the issuance or transfer of a license or an interest in a license.
(c) The issuance of authorized but previously unissued corporate stock to an existing
stockholder of a licensed corporation.
(d) The transfer from a corporation to an existing stockholder of any of the corporation's stock
that is owned by the corporation itself.
(6) All inspection fees collected under this section shall be deposited in the special fund in
section 543 for carrying out of the licensing and enforcement provisions of this act.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1531 Public licenses and resort licenses; on-premise escrowed licenses; limitations
and quotas; additional licenses for certain establishments; license for certain events at
public university; economic development factors; exceptions as to certain veterans and
airports; special state census of local governmental unit; rules; availability of
transferable licenses held in escrow; on-premise escrowed or quota license; issuance of
available licenses; hotels; definitions.



January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION CLAIM, 

TAREK AND LINA M. NAGIA 
2943 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-229-004, 
PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to Dequindre, 
City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2943 Thames from 
Tarek and Lina M. Nagia as well as a claim for a price differential payment. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. and Mrs. Nagia are 
eligible for an additional relocation payment in the amount of $3,063.00.  This 
reimbursement is for costs associated with the acquisition of their new property located 
at 5167 Cherokee Ct, in Troy, Michigan.  These costs include incidental closing costs 
and moving expenses as shown on the attached claim form. 
 
They have filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed documentation 
to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the proposed project, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from Tarek and Lina 
M. Nagia in the total amount of $3,063, and authorize payment.  Funds will come from 
the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 

 

bittnera
Text Box
E-08



BIG BEAVER ROAD  
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE 

PROJECT #01.105.5 
 

 2943 Thames 
88-20-25-229-004  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CONDITIONED 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT-0F-WAY: SIDEWALK 
GAP PROJECT, SIDWELL# 88-20-01-476-030, 2903 E. SQUARE 
LAKE ROAD 

 
As part of the ongoing Sidewalk Gap Completion Project, an agreement has 
been reached with Richard L. and Sherry L. Hawkins, owners of the property 
located at 2903 E. Square Lake Road, to purchase 27 feet of right-of-way.  The 
property is located in Section 1, on the north side of Square Lake just west of 
Dequindre. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc., State 
Certified General Appraisers, and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Assistant City 
Assessor, management believes that $28,200, the compensation agreed upon, is 
justifiable for this 27 feet. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this right-of-way, 
management requests that City Council approve the attached Conditioned 
Purchase Agreement in the amount of $28,200. 
 
The right-of-way is being acquired under the Sidewalk New Construction budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-09



SQUARE LAKE SIDEWALK – NORTH SIDE 
SECTION – JOHN R TO DEQUINDRE 

 
 

 

2903 E. Square Lake Road 
Sidwell #88-20-01-476-030 
27’ ROW Acquisition 

 







 
 

January 14, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licensed 

Business – The Beer Barrel 
  
 
 
MK 2, L.L.C., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD-SDM licensed business from Faten A 
& A, Inc., located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County.   
 
This request, if approved, will transfer ownership of The Beer Barrel, located on John R, south 
of Long Lake Rd., to MK 2, L.L.C.  Present at the December 13, 2004 Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting to answer questions was Michael Konja, Sr., the new licensee, and his son, 
Michael Konja, Jr.  They have experience in the convenience store business, and plan to 
change the name of the store, and do some exterior improvements.  This will be a seven-day 
operation, with only family members as staff.  Michael Konja, Jr. has already attended TIPS 
training.  A convenience store previously owned by the family received a liquor violation in 1997, 
but there have been no other violations since. 
 
A background check of the shareholders did not reveal any disqualifying factors; consequently, 
the police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

bittnera
Text Box
E-10











LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                  December 13, 2004 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, December 
13, 2004 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member James R. Peard called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Anita Elenbaum (resigned) 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-132 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of December 13, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 8, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-133 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 8, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

Page 1 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                  December 13, 2004 
 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MJMN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD & SDM licensed 

business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689]    Inspections underway – proposed 
Atlas Market and Bakery 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Thomas Giachino, attorney for 
Atlas Market and Bakery.   
 
The owners of this business are planning to open a full service grocery and bakery, 
subleasing space for a pharmacy.  They are doing extensive remodeling and city 
inspections are nearly completed.  They currently own a store in Highland Park and 
have many years of management experience.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-134 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett  
 
RESOLVED, that MJMN, INC., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD & SDM 
licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689]     
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2.   MK 2, L.L.C., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD and SDM licensed 

business located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Faten A 
and A, Inc.   [MLCC REQ ID# 271602]    Inspections underway – sale of The 
Beer Barrel to Lucky’s Market 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Michael Konja, Sr. and Michael 
Konja, Jr. 
 

Page 2 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                  December 13, 2004 
 

This family has purchased this convenience store.  They plan to change the name and 
do exterior improvements.  The layout of the store will basically remain the same, with 
minor changes to the shelving.  This will be a seven day operation with just family 
members as staff.  They previously owned a convenience store in Waterford and 
received a liquor violation in 1997. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-135 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MK 2, L.L.C., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD and SDM 
licensed business located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Faten 
A and A, Inc.   [MLCC REQ ID# 271602]     
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney, Carolyn Glosby, distributed to Committee members a memo 
dated November 22, 2004 directed to the Mayor and Members of City Council.  This 
memo deals with the potential impacts and available alternatives for liquor license 
applicants once the quota licenses are depleted.  This memo was discussed by the 
Committee members. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 3 of 3 



Liquor Control Commission 57
(2) The fees provided in this act for the various types of licenses shall not be prorated for a
portion of the effective period of the license.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1527 Special license for nonprofit charitable organization; issuance;
nontransferable; fee; auction.
Sec. 527. (1) The commission may issue a special license to a nonprofit charitable organization
that is exempt from the payment of taxes under the internal revenue code for the purpose of
allowing the organization to sell, at auction, wine donated to the organization.
(2) A special license issued pursuant to subsection (1) is not transferable. The organization
applying for the special license shall pay the fee required under section 525(1)(r).
(3) An auction permitted under subsection (1) may occur upon premises which are otherwise
licensed under this act to allow the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption on the licensed
premises.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1529 Transfer of license or interest in license; notice of transfer of stock in licensed
corporation or licensed limited partnership; investigation to ensure compliance;
approval; transfer fee; inspection fee.
Sec. 529. (1) A license or an interest in a license shall not be transferred from 1 person to
another without the prior approval of the commission. For purposes of this section, the transfer
in the aggregate to another person during any single licensing year of more than 10% of the
outstanding stock of a licensed corporation or more than 10% of the total interest in a licensed
limited partnership shall be considered to be a transfer requiring the prior approval of the
commission.
(2) Not later than July 1 of each year, each privately held licensed corporation and each
licensed limited partnership shall notify the commission as to whether any of the shares of stock
in the corporation, or interest in the limited partnership, have been transferred during the
preceding licensing year. The commission may investigate the transfer of any number of shares
of stock in a licensed corporation, or any amount of interest in a licensed limited partnership, for
the purpose of ensuring compliance with this act and the rules promulgated under this act.
(3) Except as otherwise provided in subdivisions (a) through (f), upon approval by the
commission of a transfer subject to subsection (1), there shall be paid to the commission a
transfer fee equal to the fee provided in this act for the class of license being transferred. A
transfer fee shall not be prorated for a portion of the effective period of the license. If a person
holding more than 1 license or more than 1 interest in a license at more than 1 location, but in
the name of a single legal entity, transfers all of the licenses or interests in licenses
simultaneously to another single legal entity, the transfers shall be considered 1 transfer for
purposes of determining a transfer fee, payable in an amount equal to the highest license fee
provided in this act for any of the licenses, or interests in licenses, being transferred. A transfer
fee shall not be required in regard to any of the following:
(a) The transfer, in the aggregate, of less than 50% of the outstanding shares of stock in a
licensed corporation or less than 50% of the total interest in a licensed limited partnership
during any licensing year.
(b) The exchange of the assets of a licensed sole proprietorship, licensed general partnership,
or licensed limited partnership for all outstanding shares of stock in a corporation in which either
the sole proprietor, all members of the general partnership, or all members of the limited



Liquor Control Commission 58
partnership are the only stockholders of that corporation. An exchange under this subdivision
shall not be considered an application for a license for the purposes of section 501.
(c) The transfer of the interest in a licensed business of a deceased licensee, a deceased
stockholder, or a deceased member of a general or limited partnership to the deceased
person's spouse or children.
(d) The removal of a member of a firm, a stockholder, a member of a general partnership or
limited partnership, or association of licensees from a license.
(e) The addition to a license of the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of any of the following:
(i) A licensed sole proprietor.
(ii) A stockholder in a licensed corporation.
(iii) A member of a licensed general partnership, licensed limited partnership, or other licensed
association.
(f) The occurrence of any of the following events:
(i) A corporate stock split of a licensed corporation.
(ii) The issuance to a stockholder of a licensed corporation of previously unissued stock as
compensation for services performed.
(iii) The redemption by a licensed corporation of its own stock.
(4) A nonrefundable inspection fee of $70.00 shall be paid to the commission by an applicant or
licensee at the time of filing any of the following:
(a) An application for a new license or permit.
(b) A request for approval of a transfer of ownership or location of a license.
(c) A request for approval to increase or decrease the size of the licensed premises, or to add a
bar.
(d) A request for approval of the transfer in any licensing year of any of the shares of stock in a
licensed corporation from 1 person to another, or any part of the total interest in a licensed
limited partnership from 1 person to another.
(5) An inspection fee shall be returned to the person by whom it was paid if the purpose of the
inspection was to inspect the physical premises of the licensee, and the inspection was not
actually conducted. An inspection fee shall not be required for any of the following:
(a) The issuance or transfer of a special license, salesperson license, limited alcohol buyer
license, corporate salesperson license, hospital permit, military permit, or Sunday sale of spirits
permit.
(b) The issuance of a new permit, or the transfer of an existing permit, if the permit is issued or
transferred simultaneously with the issuance or transfer of a license or an interest in a license.
(c) The issuance of authorized but previously unissued corporate stock to an existing
stockholder of a licensed corporation.
(d) The transfer from a corporation to an existing stockholder of any of the corporation's stock
that is owned by the corporation itself.
(6) All inspection fees collected under this section shall be deposited in the special fund in
section 543 for carrying out of the licensing and enforcement provisions of this act.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1531 Public licenses and resort licenses; on-premise escrowed licenses; limitations
and quotas; additional licenses for certain establishments; license for certain events at
public university; economic development factors; exceptions as to certain veterans and
airports; special state census of local governmental unit; rules; availability of
transferable licenses held in escrow; on-premise escrowed or quota license; issuance of
available licenses; hotels; definitions.



January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CONDITIONED 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT-0F-WAY: SIDEWALK 
GAP PROJECT, SIDWELL# 88-20-01-476-056, 2679 E. SQUARE 
LAKE ROAD 

 
As part of the ongoing Sidewalk Gap Completion Project, an agreement has 
been reached with Kimberley Bernia, owner of the property located at 2679 E. 
Square Lake Road, to purchase 27 feet of right-of-way.  The property is located 
in Section 1, on the north side of Square Lake west of Dequindre and east of 
Evanswood. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc., State 
Certified General Appraisers, and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Assistant City 
Assessor, the compensation offered was $23,500.00 
 
Ms. Bernia has signed and returned the Agreement to Purchase with an 
additional request of $4,450 for landscape improvements not included in the 
appraisal and installed prior to our offer to purchase. A copy of the landscaping 
invoice was provided. 
 
The Real Estate & Development department has conferred with the Law and 
Public Works Departments.  City staff believes it would be in the City’s best 
interest to approve this Agreement to Purchase with a total compensation 
amount of $27,950.   
 
The right-of-way is being acquired under the Sidewalk New Construction budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-11



SQUARE LAKE SIDEWALK – NORTH SIDE 
SECTION – JOHN R TO DEQUINDRE 

 
 
 

 

2979 E. Square Lake Road 
Sidwell #88-20-01-476-056 
27’ ROW Acquisition 







January 18, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST TO OFFER TO SELL SURPLUS 

PARCEL # 1 AT APPRAISED VALUE TO TOM OBERTYNSKI 
AND AGATHA OBERTYNSKI – CONSENT JUDGMENT DATED 
JANUARY 21, 2004 

 
 
The Real Estate and Development Department has had surplus parcel #1, 
Sidwell #88-20-01-476-032 appraised at a value of $340,000.00.  Surplus parcel 
#1 is a B-1 zoned vacant parcel located at the northwest corner of Square Lake 
and Dequindre. 
 
In section 10 of a consent judgment dated January 21, 2004, the Obertynski’s, 
who own the property abutting to the north, were given the right of first refusal to 
purchase this property upon sale by the city. 
 
In compliance with the Consent Judgment, the Real Estate and Development 
Department would now like to formally offer this parcel to the Obertynski’s at the 
appraised value and sell the parcel to them at the offered price of $340,000.00. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative  

bittnera
Text Box
E-12



 
 
                                            Surplus Parcel #1 











January 18, 2005 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:       Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
                   Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
 
RE:             AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST TO PUBLISH AND SOLICIT FOR 

PUBLIC SEALED BID – SALE OF 5 SURPLUS PARCELS 
 
 
The Real Estate and Development Department has had 5 surplus parcels 
appraised, which are listed below. 
 
Parcel#               Sidwell#               Appraised Value              Type Property 
 
  6                  20-10-477-017           $200,000.00               Vacant Residential 
  7                  20-13-227-008           $87,000.00                 Vacant Residential 
  8                  20-15-352-006           $170,000.00                Improved – House 
 18                 20-24-352-041           $102,000.00               Vacant Residential 
 19                 20-24-451-029           $82,500.00                 Vacant Residential 
 
The Real Estate and Development Department, in conjunction with the 
Purchasing Department would request approval to advertise to sell these 5 
surplus parcels by public sealed bid, with a minimum acceptable bid at the 
appraised value. 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-13



 
 
                                                      Surplus Parcel #6 



 
 
                                               Surplus Parcel #7 



 
 
                                                    Surplus Parcel #8 



 
 
                              Surplus Parcel #18 



 
 
                                                Surplus Parcel #19 



SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE

LAKE

BE
A

C
H

NO
RT

HF
IE

LD
PA

RK
W

AY

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

NORTHFIELD PARKWAY

SQUARE  LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

LONG LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

BE
A

C
H

LONG LAKE

AD
A

M
S

N
O

R
TH

FI
EL

D
PA

R
K

W
A

Y

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

NO
RT

HF
IE

LD

WATTLES

KIRTS

 

KIRTS

MAPLE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

MAPLE

ELMWOODLI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

ST
E

P
H

E
N

S
O

N
H

W
Y

.

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

MEIJER
INDUSTRIAL  ROW

TROY OAKLAND
AIRPORT

COMMUNITY
CENTER

LIBRARY

CITY
 HALL

CITY OF TROY
POST OFFICE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R
R

O
C

H
ES

TE
R

C
O

U
R

T

DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS
YARD

TROY
MUSEUM

LONG LAKE

WATTLES

SOUTH BLVD.

SOUTH  BLVD.

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

LAKELONG

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

LONG LAKE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

SOUTH BLVD.

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

SQUARE LAKE
SQUARE LAKE

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

AD
A

M
S

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

MAPLE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

WATTLES
WATTLES

MAPLE

MAPLE

STEPHENSO
N

PA
R

W
A

Y
K

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

COURT
BUILDING



NOTE:  THE INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THIS PROGRAM
              HAS BEEN COMPILED FROM RECORDED DEEDS, PLATS, 
             TAX MAPS, SURVEYS, AND OTHER PUBLIC RECORDS 
              AND DATA.  IT IS NOT A LEGALLY RECORDED MAP OR
             SURVEY.  USERS OF THIS DATA ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED
             THAT THE SOURCE INFORMATION REPRESENTED
             SHOULD BY CONSULTED FOR VERIFICATION.

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000500

Feet

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 01-18-05

6

8

7

18 19

Legend
SURPLUS PARCELS

SAFETY PATH PLAN

CITY OF TROY PARKS & FUTURE PARKS



January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION CLAIM, 

MICHAEL G. LEINONEN AND CATHERINE HELENA LEINONEN 
2803 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-226-002, 
PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to Dequindre, 
City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2803 Thames from 
Michael G. Leinonen and Catherine Helena Leinonen and a closing was held on 
September 13, 2004.  They have found a replacement dwelling at 3427 Byrd, in Sterling 
Heights, Michigan. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. and Mrs. Leinonen are 
eligible for an additional payment for moving expenses in the amount of $6,636.00. 
 
They have filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed documentation 
to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the proposed project, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from Michael G. 
Leinonen and Catherine Helena Leinonen in the amount of $6,636.00, and authorize 
payment.  Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road – Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-14



BIG BEAVER ROAD 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE 

PROJECT #01.105.5 
 

 

Sidwell #88-20-25-226-002 
2803 Thames 







 
 
 
 
January 12, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate  Development Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A 

WARRANTY DEED – PULTE LAND COMPANY, L.L.C. 
WYNGATE OF TROY SUBDIVISION
Sidwell #88-20-05-300-002 

 
 
In connection with the development of the Wyngate of Troy Subdivision located 
in the Southwest ¼ of Section 5, north of Square Lake and East of Coolidge, the 
Real Estate and Development Department has acquired a Warranty Deed from 
the property owner, Pulte Land Company, L.L.C.  This parcel is approximately 
.11 acres and is to be used for public park, storm water drainage and retention 
purposes.  The consideration on the document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached deed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-15









January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CONDITIONED 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT-0F-WAY: SIDEWALK GAP 
PROJECT, SIDWELL# 88-20-01-300-016, TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
As part of the ongoing Sidewalk Gap Completion Project, an agreement has been 
reached with the Troy School District, owner of the vacant property located on East 
Square Lake Road, to purchase 27 feet of right-of-way.  The property is located in 
Section 1, on the north side of Square Lake, between Silverstone and Evanswood.  
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc., State Certified 
General Appraisers, and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Assistant City Assessor, 
management believes that $69,700, the compensation agreed upon, is justifiable for this 
27 feet. 
 
The Troy School Board accepted the City’s offer at their November 16, 2004 meeting, a 
copy of the resolution is attached. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this right-of-way, management 
requests that City Council approve the attached Conditioned Purchase Agreement in 
the amount of $69,700. 
 
The right-of-way is being acquired under the Sidewalk New Construction budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-16



SQUARE LAKE SIDEWALK – NORTH SIDE 
SECTION – JOHN R TO DEQUINDRE 

 
 

 

Troy School District 
Sidwell #88-20-01-300-016 

27’ acquisition 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of 
November, 2004 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF TROY, whose 
address is 500 West Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084 (“Purchaser”) and TROY 
SCHOOL DISTRICT, whose address is 4400 Livernois Road, Troy, Michigan 48098 
(“Seller”). 

RECITALS

 WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to purchase and Seller desires to sell certain real 
property situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, more particularly 
described in the attached Exhibit A, subject to the existing building and use restrictions, 
easements, and zoning ordinances, if any (the “Property”) for the purpose of installing a 
public sidewalk on the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Purchaser is willing to remove Seller’s chain link fence currently 
located on the Property and to erect the same or a similar chain link fence on Seller’s 
property north of and adjacent to the Property (the “Replacement Fence”). 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, for valid consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

1.  Offer; Purchase Price; Replacement Fence.  Subject to the terms and conditions 
set forth in this Agreement, Purchaser shall acquire from Seller, and Seller shall convey to 
Purchaser, the Property.  The purchase price for the Property shall be the sum of Sixty-
Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($69,700.00), payable by Purchaser at closing in 
cash, certified check, or direct wire transfer at the option of Seller (the “Purchase Price”).  
In addition to the Purchase Price, Purchaser shall remove the chain link fence from its 
current location on the Property, at its sole cost and expense.  The Purchaser shall 
erect the Replacement Fence on the Seller’s property within thirty (30) days after the 
installation of the sidewalk, weather permitting, at or behind the new sixty (60) foot right-
of-way line at a location mutually agreeable to the parties except if MDEQ requires that 
all or part of the fence be located in a different location. At closing, Seller shall delivery a 
Warranty Deed in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B conveying 
marketable title to Purchaser.   

 
2. Title.  As evidence of title, within twenty (20) days of the Effective Date, Purchaser 
shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, a Commitment for Title Insurance in an amount 
not less than the purchase price bearing date later than the Effective Date with policy 
pursuant thereto to be issued insuring Purchaser and shall provide a copy of the same to 
Seller, along with any supporting documentation requested by Seller.   
 
 If Purchaser provides Seller written objection to the Title within five (5) days of 
delivery of the Commitment for Title Insurance, that the Title is not in the condition required 
for performance hereunder, Seller shall have thirty (30) days from the date it receives 

 3



notice in writing of the particular defects claimed either: (a) to remedy the title defects set 
forth in said written notice; or (b) to rescind and terminate this Agreement if unable to 
furnish satisfactory Title.  Notwithstanding the above, Purchaser may, at any time during 
the thirty (30) day cure period, waive the conditions of this Paragraph 2 and accept the title 
“As Is”.  If Purchaser makes no objection or Seller is able to remedy such defects within 
the time specified as evidenced by written notification, revised commitment or 
endorsement to commitment, Purchaser agrees to complete the sale in accordance with 
Paragraph 5 below. 
 
3. Default.  In the event of default by Seller hereunder, Purchaser may, at its option, 
elect to enforce the terms hereof.  In the event of default by Purchaser hereunder, Seller 
may, at its option, elect to enforce the terms hereof. 
 
4. Assessments.  All special assessments which have been assessed upon the 
Property as of the Effective Date shall be paid by Seller.  All special assessments which 
arise after the Effective Date shall be paid by Purchaser.  All real property taxes on the 
Property shall be prorated and adjusted as of the date of closing in accordance with DUE 
DATE basis of the municipality or taxing unit in which the property is located, under the 
assumptions that taxes are paid in advance and that summer and winter taxes are due 
and payable July 1 and December 1 respectively.  Purchaser shall pay any applicable 
transfer taxes associated with this transaction, all applicable recording fees, the premium 
for the Owner’s Policy and the cost of the title company to prepare the closing documents. 
 
5. Closing.  The closing of this sale occur within ten (10) days of the later of the 
satisfaction of: (a) the conditions listed in Paragraph 2 above; (b) the conditions listed in 
Paragraph 6 below; or (c) Purchaser obtaining from the City of Troy written confirmation of 
the lot split approval and obtaining a separate tax parcel number for both the Property and 
the remaining parcel in accordance with Paragraph 10 hereof.  Closing shall take place at 
the Birmingham offices of Clark Hill PLC, or such other location as otherwise agreed to by 
the parties. 
 
6. Inspection of Property.  This Agreement and all of Purchaser’s obligations 
hereunder are contingent upon Purchaser’s satisfaction with the Property following 
Purchaser’s testing, analysis, inspection and evaluation of the Property (“Purchaser’s 
Evaluations”).  Purchaser shall have sixty (60) days after the Effective Date (“Inspection 
Period”) in which to conduct such investigations, evaluations and testing of the Property 
(both above ground and below ground) as Purchaser deems appropriate in order to 
determine if the Property are satisfactory and suitable for Purchaser’s intended use and 
enjoyment.  Purchaser’s Evaluations may include, but shall not be limited to: (i) a 
physical inspection of all aspects of the Property; (ii) an environmental analysis and 
investigation of the Property; (iii) an analysis of the availability of any federal, state or 
local tax abatements or property tax reductions for the Property; (iv) a verification that 
there are no existing special assessments affecting the Property; (v) investigating the 
availability and condition of utility and sewage services and systems including, but not 
limited to, gas, water, electricity, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and telephone services 
and systems; (vi) making soil tests, borings and other engineering, environmental and 

 4



architectural tests and evaluations; (vii) reviewing and analyzing all applicable building 
and use restrictions, building codes and all other federal, state and local statutes, 
codes, ordinances, rules and regulations relating to the ownership, development or use 
of the Property; and (viii) analyzing the results of any survey.  Upon completion of 
Purchaser’s Evaluations, Purchaser shall, at its sole cost and expense, restore the 
Property to a condition as good as its condition prior to such Evaluations.  During the 
term of the Inspection Period and at all times prior to closing, Purchaser, its employees, 
agents, representatives, engineers, inspectors and surveyors (collectively 
“Representatives”), shall have the right of access to the Property at all times for the 
purposes of performing Purchaser’s Evaluation provided Purchaser has executed the 
attached Release and obtained such a Release from its Representatives, which 
Release is attached hereto as Exhibit C.  Purchaser shall indemnify and hold Seller 
free and harmless from and against any liability arising therefrom except as caused by 
the acts or omissions of Seller or Seller’s agents and employees.  In the event that 
Purchaser is dissatisfied with the results of Purchaser’s Evaluations and Purchaser has 
notified Seller in writing within said sixty (60) day period, Purchaser shall have the 
option to rescind and terminate this Agreement without penalty or liability and Purchaser 
shall deliver to the Seller, free of charge, a copy of any and all reports or surveys 
prepared in accordance with this Paragraph 6.  All of Purchaser’s Evaluations shall be 
performed at the Purchaser’s sole cost and expense. 
 
PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT TAKES THE PROPERTY “AS IS”, AND 
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN PARAGRAPH 7 BELOW, SELLER HAS NOT MADE ANY 
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES AS TO ANY MATTER, INCLUDING BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, SOIL CONDITIONS OF THE PROPERTY, EASEMENTS, 
BUILDING AND USE RESTRICTIONS, AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES, OR ANY 
OTHER MATTER, AND THAT PURCHASER ASSUMES ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
ANY DAMAGES CAUSED BY ANY SUCH MATTERS UPON TRANSFER OF TITLE. 
 
7. Seller’s Representations. 
 

A. Seller represents and warrants, and this representation shall survive the 
closing for a period of six (6) months only, that, to the best of its present knowledge, 
without any independent inquiry, investigation or testing for Hazardous Materials or any 
other matter, that: 
 

(i) The Property is free of Hazardous Materials to the extent that any 
such presence of Hazardous Materials would have a material adverse effect on the 
Property.  Purchaser understands and acknowledges that Seller has not conducted, nor 
shall Seller be obligated hereunder to conduct, Phase I or Phase II investigations of the 
Property.  “Hazardous Materials” means any toxic or hazardous substance, waste, 
chemical or material, or any pollutant or contaminant, defined, regulated or subject to 
liability under any Environmental Law, including without limitation, petroleum, petroleum 
products, radioactive materials, polychlorinated biphenyls, asbestos-containing material, 
flammables, and explosives.  “Environmental Laws” mean federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, rules, orders and common law requirements relating to Hazardous 

 5



Materials or the protection of health, safety or the environment, now or hereafter in 
effect, including, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.), the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act 
(49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.), 
the Occupational Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. 651 et seq.), and the Natural 
Resource and Environmental Protection Act (M.C.L. 324.101 et seq.); and 

 
(ii) Seller has not used the Property for the purpose of using, 

generating, manufacturing, transporting, treating, storing, processing, disposing, 
discharging, emitting or releasing Hazardous Materials, except for Hazardous Materials 
which are used in the ordinary course of Seller’s business in a manner which is in 
material compliance with Environmental Laws. 
 
 B. Seller represents and warrants that to the best of its present knowledge 
there are no judicial or administrative proceedings pending or threatened against the 
Property and Seller is not aware of any facts which might result in any action, suit or other 
proceedings. 
 
8. Purchaser’s Representations. 
 
 A. Purchaser represents and warrants that it is authorized to consummate this 
transaction and to purchase the Property and that the performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement will not violate any contract, ordinance, judicial or administrative order, or 
judgment applicable to Purchaser or the Property. 
 
 B. Purchaser represents and warrants that it shall comply with any and all 
Federal, State and local laws, statutes, regulations, ordinances, codes, orders and rules 
relative to the preservation of the wetlands located on Seller’s real property that is located 
north of and adjacent to the Property during the installation of the sidewalk or the Fence 
Replacement. 
 
9. Indemnification.  Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any 
claims, suits, damages, costs, losses and any expenses resulting and arising from and out 
of Purchaser’s or their officers, directors, agents and/or employees’ occupancy, 
possession, use, evaluations and ownership of the Property after the closing date, except 
for such matters arising from the acts or negligence of Seller or Seller’s agents and 
employees. 
 
10. Correction of Legal Description.  After closing, Purchaser shall file a copy of the 
Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Property Description Department with a corrected 
legal description of the real property retained by the Seller.  The parcel identification 
number of the property retained by the Seller shall remain the same; however, the new 
legal description shall contain language which excepts that portion of the property taken 
for roadway purposes or similar language.  
 

 6



11. No Broker.  Seller represents and warrants that no broker or real estate agency is 
involved in the negotiation or consummation of this transaction.  Purchaser warrants and 
represents to Seller that it is not obligated to pay any fee or commission to any broker or 
real estate agency in the negotiation or consummation of this transaction.  Each party 
agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the other harmless from any expense, claim or 
cause of action arising out of the breach of the foregoing warranty. 
 
12. Zoning.  From and after the Effective Date until the closing date, Purchaser shall 
not initiate a zoning change or other proceeding affecting the Property or do anything else 
which may tend to jeopardize or lessen Seller’s interest in or the condition of the Property 
without first obtaining prior written consent from Seller. 
 
13. Notice.  Whenever in this Agreement it is provided that notice must be given or an 
act performed or payment made on a certain date, and if such date falls on a Saturday, 
Sunday or holiday, the date of the notice of performance or payment shall be the next 
following business day. 
 
14. Binding Effect.  The covenants herein shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 
parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 
15. Waiver.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or 
shall constitute a waiver of any other provisions, whether or not similar, nor shall any 
waiver be a continuing waiver.  No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by 
the party making the waiver. 
 
16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan regardless of whether any party may or 
hereafter become domiciled in another state. 
 
17. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of 
which together will for all purposes constitute one Agreement binding upon the parties.  
This Agreement may be executed by the parties and may be effective when sent by 
facsimile. 
 
18. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This Agreement along with all attachments 
constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter herein and 
supersedes and terminates any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, understandings or dealings between the parties, either oral or written.  
This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by the parties. 
 
WHEREFORE, the respective duly authorized representatives of the parties have 
executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 
 
IN THE PRESENCE OF:   PURCHASER: 
 
      CITY OF TROY 

 7



 
     
_____________________________  By: ______________________________ 
 
_____________________________  Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
IN THE PRESENCE OF:   SELLER: 
 
      TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
_____________________________  By: ______________________________ 
 
_____________________________  Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
5162066v1 
 

 8



 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 

EXHIBIT “A”
 
 
 
Description of Parcel: (From Tax Record Data) 
 
The East ½ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 1, T2N-R11E, City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan.  Except the East 250.00 feet of the South 350.00 feet, also except the West 
210.00 feet of the East 460.00 feet of the South 415.00 feet, also the South 16 acres of 
the East Fractional ½ of the Northwest Fraction ¼ except beginning at a point distant 
North 00 degrees 03 minutes 42 seconds East 2,458.81 feet and North 00 degrees 04 
minutes 22 seconds East 75.05 feet from the South ¼ Corner of said section; thence 
South 87 degrees 54 minutes 28 seconds West 1,327.32 feet; thence North 01 degrees 
06 minutes 26 seconds East 460.19 feet; thence North 88 degrees 12 minutes 13 
seconds East 1,318.86 feet; thence South 00 degrees 04 minutes 22 seconds West 
452.99 feet to the point of beginning.  Containing 70.30 acres.  The South 33.00 feet of 
which is currently being used for roadway purposes. 
 
Description of Right of Way Acquisition: (Created from Tax Record Data) 
 
The South 60.00 feet of the following described parcel:  The East ½ of the Southwest ¼ 
of Section 1, T2N-R11E, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan.  Except the East 
250.00 feet of the South 350.00 feet, also except the West 210.00 feet of the East 
460.00 feet of the South 415.00 feet, also the South 16 acres of the East Fractional ½ of 
the Northwest Fraction ¼ except beginning at a point distant North 00 degrees 03 
minutes 42 seconds East 2,458.81 feet and North 00 degrees 04 minutes 22 seconds 
East 75.05 feet from the South ¼ Corner of said section; thence South 87 degrees 54 
minutes 28 seconds West 1,327.32 feet; thence North 01 degrees 06 minutes 26 
seconds East 460.19 feet; thence North 88 degrees 12 minutes 13 seconds East 
1,318.86 feet; thence South 00 degrees 04 minutes 22 seconds West 452.99 feet to the 
point of beginning.  Containing 23,220 Square Feet or 0.533 Acres, more or less. 
The South 33.00 feet of which is currently being used for roadway purposes. 
 
 
 
 
Parcel Identification Number:88-20-01-300-016 
 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

 

 

WARRANTY DEED 

 
 This Indenture, made the _____ day of _____________, 2004 between the TROY 
SCHOOL DISTRICT, (hereinafter called the “Grantor”), whose address is 4400 Livernois Road, 
Troy, Michigan 48098, and the CITY OF TROY, (hereinafter called Grantee”), whose address is 
500 West Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084.  The Grantor hereby conveys and warrants to the 
Grantee the following described premises situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, to 
wit: 
 

See Attached Legal Description 
 
 Together with all tenements, hereditaments, appurtenances and improvements thereunto 
belonging or in any way appertaining for the sum of Sixty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars 
($69,700.00) paid to the Grantor. 
 
 Subject to: 
 
 1. Easements and building and use restrictions, if any; 
 
 2. Rights of the public, and any governmental authority in any part of the land taken, 

deeded, or used as a street, road or highway; 
 
 3. Restrictions imposed by zoning ordinances or as part of a general plan. 
 
 Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make zero (0) divisions under Section 108 of the 
Michigan Land Division Act, being Act No. 288 of the Public Acts of 1967, as amended. 
 
 This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation.  Generally 
accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, dust, odors and other 
associated conditions may be used and are protected by the Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set his hand the day and year first 
above written. 
 
       GRANTOR: 
 
       TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
 
       Its: ______________________________ 
 
 

[NOTARY JURAT FOLLOWS NEXT PAGE] 
 

 



STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
                                )SS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 
 On ______________, 2004, before me, the undersigned notary public in and for said 
County, personally appeared *_________________________, *____________________ of the 
Troy School District, to me known to be the same person who executed the within instrument on 
behalf of the Troy School District and who acknowledges the same to be the free act and deed of 
*____________________________________________. 
 
 
      
 __________________________________ 
          , Notary Public 
          County, 
Michigan 
       My commission expires:  
       Acting in the County of: 
 
 
This Instrument Drafted By and  
When Recorded Return to: 
 
Dana L. Abrahams, Esq. 
CLARK HILL PLC 
255 S. Old Woodward 
Third Floor 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 
(248) 988-5840 
 
 
Recording Fee:  $__________________ 
 
Transfer Tax: Exempt pursuant to MCLA 207.505(h)(i) and 207.526(h)(i) 
 
Sidwell No.: Part of 20-01-300-016 
 
 
 

 



EXHIBIT C 
 

RELEASE AND HOLD HARMLESS 
 

 The undersigned, in consideration of the permission of TROY SCHOOL 

DISTRICT (“Owner”) to enter upon the Property owned by the Owner for 

purposes of inspecting the subject Property in the furtherance of the 

undersigned’s relationship with any prospective purchaser of real property of the 

Owner, does hereby release and hold the Owner harmless from any and all 

damages, losses, liabilities, expenses, costs (including attorney fees) and claims 

incurred by the undersigned resulting in any way from the undersigned’s entering 

upon and inspecting any real property owned by the Owner except as may arise 

from the acts or omissions of Owner or Owner’s agents or employees. 

 

WITNESSES:  

 

______________________________

 _______________________________________ 

 

______________________________ 

 
 

 







 
January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  
RE: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST TO APPROVE PAYMENT FOR AN 

ABOVE GROUND POOL NOT INCLUDED IN THE REAL 
ESTATE APPRAISAL,  SAOUD JAMO AND NIDHAL JAMO, 
2907 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-229-001, BIG BEAVER, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE ROAD PROJECT #01.105.5 

 
 

As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, to purchase property at 2907 
Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001. Unfortunately, due to some mortgage 
complications, the property owners were not in a position to provide clear title to 
the City and City Council authorized us to initiate a condemnation action to resolve 
the title problems. A lawsuit has been filed and we anticipate that we will be 
awarded possession in late January of 2005.   
 
The Jamos have an above ground swimming pool, which according to real estate 
appraisal practice is considered personal property, therefore, was listed as an 
amenity, but was not given any value because it is personal property. 

 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the property owners 
should be paid to move personal property, or be reimbursed if it cannot reasonably 
be moved, therefore reimbursement for the pool is necessary.  
 
The cost of having a replacement pool installed is $3,605.38, plus installation cost 
of $850.00 for a total of $4,455.38. 
 
The property owners are eligible for additional relocation costs, including such 
expenses as mortgage differential payments, storage, and closing costs connected 
to the replacement dwelling.  Submission of these claims will be made at a later 
date. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff requests that 
City Council, approve the amount of $4,455.38 for replacement and installation of 
the above ground pool.  
 
Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 

 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-17









January 11, 2005 
 
 

 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Macomb County 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement —Fleet Vehicles 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends approval and authorization to purchase two (2) fleet 
vehicles through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement from 
Signature Ford, L-M Jeep Eagle at an estimated total cost of $47,840.00.   
 
The equipment will replace vehicles due to come out of service from the Public 
Works Department, and are as follows: 
 
 ITEM BUDGET UNIT COST TOTAL
     
SIGNATURE FORD, L-M JEEP 
EAGLE

    

2   Ford F-450 Crew Cab  
     (Cab & Chassis) 

A-6 $60,000.00 $23,920.00 $47,840.00 

TOTAL  $60,000.00  $47,840.00 
     
 
If you have any questions regarding this recommendation, please feel free to call me 
at your convenience. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Vehicle Motor Pool Capital Account 565.7981. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 
 
 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 01-24-05 SR4 Award Vehicles-Macomb.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
E-18



January 10, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew –  
  Office Supplies 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
After a thorough review of the contract extension offered by Office Depot, City management 
recommends extending the current contract for office supplies, an additional twelve (12) months 
under the same discounts, terms, and conditions as the original contract with amendments expiring  
March 4, 2006. 
 
Troy City Council approved a three-year contract and option to renew for office supplies to the City of 
Troy and participating MITN Purchasing Cooperative Members (formerly known as the Tri-County 
Purchasing Cooperative) from Office Depot through a “piggyback” agreement with Los Angeles 
County, contract #41421 and made available through the U.S. Communities Program. (Council 
Resolution #2001-03-160-E4 and #2004-02-040-E6) 
 
It should be noted that if Los Angeles County, as the lead agency, enters into a new agreement prior 
to the scheduled termination of the extension, the new contract will be brought forward for review and 
possible approval. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Core List – Frequently Ordered Items –   300+ Up to 80% off List 
Catalog of Frequently Ordered Items – 4,000 Up to 63% off List Price 
Remainder of BSD Catalog Up to 45% off List Price 
Business Machines Retail Store Pricing 
Paper Cost + 15% Gross Profit; floats w/market 
 
The core list pricing for the 300+ items is held for one year.  The price plan available for the catalog of 
frequently ordered items is updated twice each year, in March and October. 
 
The contract allows for participation by the entire MITN Cooperative membership of which Troy is the 
host city.  Thirty-four political subdivisions have committed to the program and include:   Auburn Hills, 
Birmingham, Dearborn, Eastpointe, Farmington Hills, Huntington Woods, Livonia, Madison Heights, 
Northville, Novi, Oak Park, Pontiac, Riverview, Rochester Hills, Romulus, Roseville, Royal Oak, Saint 
Clair Shores, Southfield, Sterling Heights, Troy, Warren, Westland, Huron-Clinton Metro Parks, Metro 
Airport Authority, RCMC, SMART, SWOCC, Livingston and Wayne County, and the townships of 
Macomb, Shelby, Waterford and West Bloomfield.  
 
2004 annual purchases for the entire cooperative were $2.4 million of which Troy spent $180,605.40.  
Additional savings are realized through program incentives for volume, as direct rebates against total 
sales of the entire MITN Cooperative, as well as e-commerce transactions. 
 
SUMMARY 
More than 5,000 public agencies utilize this office supply contract.  Savings are made possible by 
Office Depot’s buying power and massive collective purchasing power nationwide. 
 
Prepared by:  Susan Leirstein CPPB, Purchasing Systems Administrator 
 
G:/Bid Award 05-06/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – OfficeSuppliesCooperative 01-05.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
E-19











December 22, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
   
RE:  Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low 

Bidders  – Concrete Pavement Repair  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
On December 10, 2004, bids were received for Concrete Pavement Repair under 
three proposals: A)- Major Roads, B)- Local Roads, and C)- Scattered Locations 
on Stephenson Highway.  City management recommends awarding the contract 
by proposal to three separate low bidders, Major Cement Company – Proposal 
A, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. – Proposal B, and Six S, Inc. – Proposal C, at 
estimated total costs of $824,775.00, $458,975.00, and $507,865.00 respectively 
for completion by June 30, 2005, at unit prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation. 
 
In addition, staff requests authorization to change the quantity of work either 
additive or deductive at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation, not to 
exceed 25% of the total project cost and within budgetary limitations.    
 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidders submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.   
 
SUMMARY 
Major roads covered under Proposal A include Rochester Road, Coolidge 
Highway, and scattered locations.  Local Roads under Proposal B include streets 
in Sections #23, #24, and other scattered locations.  While Proposal C will repair 
scattered locations on Stephenson Highway northbound and southbound starting 
from I-75 and going south. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this project are available in the 2004/05 Capital Accounts for Public 
Works Construction for Major Roads (401479.7989.500), Local Roads 
(401499.7989.500) and Stephenson Highway (401479.7989.022015). 
 
89 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  7 Bid Responses Rec’d 
   
  
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 

bittnera
Text Box
E-20



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-38
Opening Date -- 12/10/04 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 5
Date Prepared -- 12/21/04 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: MAJOR CEMENT HARD ROCK SIX-S DILISIO
 COMPANY CONCRETE INC INC CONTRACTING

Ck Number 699867280-8 257897374 7181639622 4434455102
Ck Amount 10,000.00$      10,000.00$      10,000.00$       10,000.00$       

Proposal A –Rochester Rd, Coolidge Hwy & Scattered Locations( Major Roads) to be completed by June 30, 2005
Year 2005 Year 2005 Year 2005 Year 2005

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type P-NC, - 9" Non-reinforced 9900 S.Y. $49.75 NO BID $51.50 $62.20
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type P-NC, - 8" Non-reinforced 6000 S.Y. $47.00 $48.53 $59.67
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

7" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $42.00 $52.15 $35.00
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $41.00 $42.11 $34.00

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $39.00 $36.30 $33.00

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $300.00 $219.34 $250.00
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 Feet $150.00 $217.26 $250.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $250.00 $219.33 $250.00
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 Feet $150.00 $217.26 $250.00

10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 
to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 CY $27.00 $34.44 $20.00

11 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 200 L.F. $10.00 $8.82 $8.00

12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 500 L.F. $25.00 $15.00 $18.00
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Each $350.00 $277.95 $500.00
14 Class F Fly Ash if needed 1450 Ton N/A $0.01 $0.10
15 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $824,775.00 NO BID $851,654.54 $1,016,845.00

Proposal B  – Sec #24,23, and Scattered Locations (Local Roads) Completed by June 30, 2005
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, 8" Non-reinforced 2800 S.Y. $43.00 $33.00 $46.11 $57.25

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, 7" Non-reinforced 10800 S.Y. $41.00 $31.00 $42.57 $49.62

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $42.00 $30.00 $42.11 $34.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 4" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. $41.00 $28.00 $36.30 $33.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $300.00 $275.00 $219.34 $250.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 Feet $150.00 $75.00 $217.26 $250.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $250.00 $275.00 $219.33 $250.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 Feet $150.00 $75.00 $217.26 $250.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 800 CY $27.00 $21.00 $34.44 $20.00
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $10.00 $12.00 $8.82 $8.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $25.00 $22.00 $24.24 $18.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 each $350.00 $450.00 $277.95 $500.00
13 Class F Fly Ash if needed 1000 Ton N/A $0.00 $0.01 $0.10
14 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B $598,775.00 $458,975.00 $628,778.29 $728,321.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-38
Opening Date -- 12/10/04 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 5
Date Prepared -- 12/21/04 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: MAJOR CEMENT HARD ROCK SIX-S DILISIO
 COMPANY CONCRETE INC INC CONTRACTING
Proposal C  – Scattered Locations S.B. & N.B. of Stephenson Hwy Completed by June 30, 2005
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching Type P-NC-10" Non-rein 8700 S.Y. 54.50$                 NO BID 53.78$              67.32$               

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 25 S.Y. 52.00$                 58.89$              62.20$               

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 50.00$                 54.71$              36.00$               

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 53.91$              35.00$               

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 39.00$                 42.10$              34.00$               

6 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 35.00$                 36.30$              33.00$               

7 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 300.00$               219.34$            250.00$             
8 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 Feet 150.00$               217.26$            250.00$             
9 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 250.00$               219.33$            250.00$             

10 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 Feet 150.00$               217.26$            250.00$             
11 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 750 C.Y. 27.00$                 34.44$              20.00$               
12 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 10.00$                 8.82$                8.00$                 
13 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 2350 L.F. 25.00$                 0.01$                18.00$               
14 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$               277.96$            500.00$             
15 Class F Fly Ash if needed 950 Ton N/A 0.01$                0.10$                 

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $568,075.00 NO BID $507,864.99 $660,634.00

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Y or N EVERY TWO WEEKS N/A SEMI-MONTHLY EVERY TWO WEEKS

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. (313)532-3212 7-7 8-5 9-5
Phone (248)388-1168 (734)564-0925 (248)673-0585 (586)405-4578

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX XX XX
                                                  Partial Contract: Proposal A

Proposal B XX
Proposal C

TERMS: 30 DAYS BLANK 10 DAYS OF INVOICE BLANK

WARRANTY: ONE YEAR BLANK BLANK BLANK
CLASS F FLY ASH IS NOT

AVAILABLE. WE CANNOT

EXCEPTIONS: PUT A # TO THE UNIT. N/A BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: YES YES YES YES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N YES YES YES YES

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N YES YES YES YES
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N YES YES YES YES



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-38
Opening Date -- 12/10/04 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 5
Date Prepared -- 12/21/04 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: CENTURY HARTWELL FLORENCE
 CEMENT CO CEMENT CO CEMENT CO

Ck Number 589562073 649185516 649368106
Ck Amount 10,000.00$      10,000.00$      10,000.00$       

Proposal A –Rochester Rd, Coolidge Hwy & Scattered Locations( Major Roads) to be completed by June 30, 2005
Year 2005 Year 2005 Year 2005 Year 2005

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type P-NC, - 9" Non-reinforced 9900 S.Y. NO BID NO BID NO BID
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type P-NC, - 8" Non-reinforced 6000 S.Y.
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

7" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y.
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y.

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y.

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 Feet
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 Feet

10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 
to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 CY

11 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 200 L.F.

12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 500 L.F.
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Each
14 Class F Fly Ash if needed 1450 Ton
15 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A NO BID NO BID NO BID

Proposal B  – Sec #24,23, and Scattered Locations (Local Roads) Completed by June 30, 2005
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, 8" Non-reinforced 2800 S.Y. $48.00 $38.50 NO BID

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, 7" Non-reinforced 10800 S.Y. $44.00 $36.45

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $34.50

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 4" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. $32.00 $32.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $400.00 $75.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 Feet $400.00 $75.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $300.00 $75.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 Feet $300.00 $75.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 800 CY $40.00 $10.00
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $15.00 $9.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $30.00 $18.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 ea. $150.00 $200.00
13 Class F Fly Ash if needed 1000 Ton $8.00 $0.50
14 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B $661,200.00 $518,847.50 NO BID



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-38
Opening Date -- 12/10/04 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 5
Date Prepared -- 12/21/04 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: CENTURY HARTWELL FLORENCE
 CEMENT CO CEMENT CO CEMENT CO
Proposal C  – Scattered Locations S.B. & N.B. of Stephenson Hwy Completed by June 30, 2005
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching Type P-NC-10" Non-rein 8700 S.Y. 63.00$                 NO BID 68.15$              

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 25 S.Y. 63.00$                 70.00$              

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 67.50$              

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 40.00$                 65.00$              

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 36.00$                 50.50$              

6 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 34.00$                 44.50$              

7 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 400.00$               300.00$            
8 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 Feet 400.00$               225.00$            
9 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 300.00$               300.00$            

10 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 Feet 300.00$               200.00$            
11 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 750 C.Y. 30.00$                 25.00$              
12 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 15.00$                 11.25$              
13 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 2350 L.F. 28.00$                 24.25$              
14 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 150.00$               1,000.00$         
15 Class F Fly Ash if needed 950 Ton 10.00$                 0.01$                

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $658,250.00 NO BID $698,964.50

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Y or N MONTHLY MONTHLY BI-WEEKLY

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 7:30-3:15 8-4:30 BLANK
Phone (734)284-8770 (248)789-4156 BLANK

AWARD                       100% of Contract
                                                  Partial Contract: Proposal A

Proposal B XX XX
Proposal C XX XX

TERMS: MONTHLY NET 30 DAYS PER CONTRACT

WARRANTY: ONE YEAR ONE YEAR PER CONTRACT

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: YES YES YES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N YES YES YES

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N YES YES YES
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N YES YES YES



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-38
Opening Date -- 12/10/04 BID TABULATION Page 5 of 5
Date Prepared -- 12/21/04 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS

ATTEST:
 Robert Robertson
 MaryAnn Hays Jeanette Bennett
 Marina Basta-Farouk Purchasing Director
 Linda Bockstanz

G: ITB-COT 04-38Concrete Pavement Repair









January 14, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Election of Planning Commissioner Officers for 2005 
 
Article II, Section 1, of the Planning Commission By-Laws provides the Planning 
Commission selects a Chair, Vice Chair, and Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
Representative and Alternate.  Article II, Section 1, requires that the election of 
officers shall occur at the January Regular Meeting.  The By-Laws state that the 
officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair and a Vice Chair.  The Board of 
Zoning Appeals Representative and Alternate must be approved by City Council as 
per the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
At their January 11, 2005 Regular Meeting, the following Resolution was adopted by 
the Planning Commission. 

 
Resolution # PC-2005-01-006 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Thomas Strat and Robert Schultz be nominated to 
serve as Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, 
for 2005, and that Wayne Wright and Lynn Drake-Batts be recommended 
to the City Council as the Commission’s Board of Zoning Appeals 
representative and alternate, respectively, for 2005, and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these 
officers be elected and representatives recommended, as indicated. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
Prepared by:  K. Czarnecki 
 
G:\Planning Commission\Board of Zoning Appeals\Election of PC & BZA Rep_2005.doc 
 

bittnera
Text Box
F-01c



January 18, 2005 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item – Regular Business – Approval of Poverty Exemption 

Guidelines   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that you present the attached 2005 
Poverty Exemption Guidelines to City Council, along with the attached resolution, 
for approval. 
 
Detail:  MCL 211.7u states:  “The real property of persons who in the opinion of 
the Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this act.” 
 
The Assessing Department has updated the guidelines that assist in determining 
if a person qualifies for an exemption from real property taxation for a one year 
period. 
 
The Michigan Tax Tribunal has ruled that income guidelines may not be set 
below the Federal Poverty guidelines.  As is the case since 2001, our guidelines 
still average approximately $4,000 higher, per category, than the 2005 Federal 
guidelines.   
 
Staff, again, recommends no change to our established income guidelines, until 
the Federal income guidelines catch up to ours. 
 
Staff again proposes increasing the maximum assessed value limit of the 
homestead by the average increase in residential values in the City (2.8%).  This 
will set the 2005 Assessed Value limit at $111,950 (from $108,900). 
 
Staff proposes no change to the total asset limit of $262,000 (including the home, 
excluding an automobile). 
 
There were 19 Poverty Exemptions applied for in 2004, and 15 of them were 
approved (exemptions may also be applied for at the July and December Boards 
of Review).  This number is relatively constant over the last 10 years.  
Approximately $745,840 in Taxable Value was exempted, at an estimated cost of 
$7,048 to the City of Troy. 
 
NL/nl 

bittnera
Text Box
F-02



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 

INCOME STANDARDS 2005  
 
 
 The following are the Poverty thresholds as of 12-31-04 for use in setting poverty 
 exemption guidelines for 2005 assessments: 
 
 
Number of Persons Poverty  
Residing in Homestead Threshold 
 
1 person                                                                  13,959 
2 persons     16,531 
3 persons 18,470 
4 persons    22,761 
5 persons    26,419 
6 persons    29,636 
7 persons    33,347 
8 persons    36,704  
9 persons (or more) add 3,180 for each additional person     

 



 
CITY OF TROY 

POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES – 2005  
 

MCL 211.7u The real property of persons who in the judgment of the 
Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this 
Act. 

 
   The City of Troy’s standard for approving an exemption under the statute is 
based on an individual determination of hardship. 
 
   This is an exemption from taxes.  If you claim poverty under the statute, you 
must file your claim with a Poverty Exemption Affidavit.  This exemption is good 
for one year. 
 
STANDARD #1 Applicants must file a Poverty Exemption Affidavit in order to    

be considered for any exemption.  Documentation such as, 
Income Tax Forms, W-2 Forms, Deeds or Land Contracts 
and personal identification is mandatory, and must be 
attached to the Affidavit. 

 
STANDARD #2 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the household 

income is greater than the Income Standards Guideline. 
 

STANDARD #3 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the Assessed 
Value of the home exceeds $111,950. 

 
STANDARD #4 Applicants total assets cannot exceed $262,000.  This 

includes the value of your home. 
 
 
 
*The Board of Review may require a home audit and inspection, done by the 
Assessing Department, as part of the exemption process. 
 
 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT (for 2005 A/V Year) 

 
_________________________  ___________________ 
(Address)                        (Sidwell #) 

 
1. Household Income:  List all prior year income from: 

a)Wages/Tips                                 ________________ 
b) Social Security                            ________________ 
c) Soc. Sec. for resident minors       ________________ 
d) Pensions                                      ________________ 
e) Interest/Dividends                       ________________ 
f) Unemployment Compensation   ________________ 
g) Sub-Pay                                      ________________ 
h) Workman's Compensation         ________________ 
i) Aid to Dependent Children          ________________ 
j) Medical Disability Benefits         ________________ 
k) Lottery/Contest/Raffle               ________________ 
l) Annuities                                    ________________ 
m) Governmental Assistance          ________________ 
n) Insurance/Lawsuit Payouts        ________________ 
o) Alimony/Child Support              ________________ 
p) Rental Income                            ________________ 

 
2. Supplemental Assistance:   List monthly amount of: 

a) Food Stamps                              ________________ 
b) Surplus Food                              ________________ 
c) Transportation                            ________________ 

 
3. Residence Information: 

Is your home paid for?         Yes____    No____ 
  If No: 
  What is your mortgage/land contract balance? ___________ 
  What is your monthly payment?                        ___________ 
  Who holds your mortgage/land contract?          ___________ 
  Do you own any other property?             Yes______  No____ 
  If Yes: Attach a copy of your last tax bill. 

 
4. Employment information: 

Are you or your spouse currently employed? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Are your or your spouse unable to work (disability, etc.) ? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
If Yes: Is this condition permanent? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Provide medical documentation of the disability. 



 
 
5. Children/Relatives/Boarders: 

How many children, relatives, or non-related boarders share 
your home?                                              _____________________ 
Do any of the above, or anyone outside of your home, contribute 
Financially to your living expenses?           Yes ___   No___ 
If Yes:  How much:   per month __________  year_____________ 
 

6. Transportation: 
Do you own any automobiles?                           Yes____    No____ 
If Yes:  Please provide the following information: 

 
Year & Make  Price to you    Balance          Monthly payment 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 

 
 
7. Additional Assets: 

Please provide information about any additional assets listed. 
Checking Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
I.R.A.         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Keogh         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Deferred Comp        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Annuities        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Stocks/Bonds/Funds      Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Money Market       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Treasury Bills       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Bonds       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 

 
 
8. Attach copies of the following: 

a) Federal Income Form 
b) State Income Tax Form 
c) Property Tax Credit Form 
d) W-2 Forms 
e) Copy of Deed or Land Contract 
f) Identification: Driver's License 
g) A listing of your household living expenses for the prior year.   
(examples: heat, electric, insurance, etc.) 

 
You must provide proof of income and other records to be considered for 
an exemption. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
I (We), __________________________________________[print name(s)] 

the undersigned, do hereby affirm that the above information is, 
to the best of my (our) knowledge, true. 
______________________________ 
(Signed) 
______________________________ 
(Signed) 
 

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _________,   _______. 
My commission expires________________ 
Notary Public   ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED:     NOT APPROVED: 
Assessor:  _______________ Assessor:              ___________ 
Board Chairperson __________ Board Chairperson___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 

 
Year______ Assessment________  Board of Review A/V________ 

 
  

 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: January 18, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Donation of Historic House by Harriet Barnard 
 

 
 

 
Harriet Barnard has announced that she is willing to conditionally donate her house (located 

at 5945 Livernois Road) to the City of Troy.  This house was initially owned by one of Troy’s 
founding families, the Niles Johnson family, and has substantial historical value for that reason and 
also in light of the contributions of Norman and Harriet Barnard to the City of Troy.  This donation 
requires, among other things, that the house be relocated to the Troy Museum and Historic Green 
(60 W. Wattles Rd.) within five years.  Although it is possible to re-arrange the current structures on 
the Green, the preferred approach is to acquire one or both parcels to the west of the Museum and 
Historic Green for expansion and proper accommodation of the structure and additional parking.   
 

The City does not currently have money expressly designated for the acquisition of additional 
property for the Green.  The City currently has $140,000 designated for the purpose of locating a 
barn on the Museum and Historic Green, which Council could transfer towards the relocation of the 
home.  The Troy Historical Society Heritage Foundation has committed to raising the additional 
funds that would be required to relocate the Barnard house to the Troy Museum and Historic Green.     

 
  Attached is a proposed agreement that has been signed and approved by Mrs. Barnard.  
Under the terms of this proposal, Mrs. Barnard will convey her home to the City of Troy with a bill of 
sale, which will be held in escrow and delivered when and if the house is relocated to the Troy 
Museum and Historic Village.  If the Troy Historical Society Heritage Foundation is unsuccessful in 
raising the necessary funds within the five-year period, then the City could enter into a subsequent 
agreement providing additional time to obtain the necessary funding for the relocation of the home. If 
the funding is insufficient, and the parties are unable to reach a subsequent agreement, then the 
historical home reverts back to Mrs. Barnard or her estate, and the City has no further obligation.   
 

Mrs. Barnard’s attorney, Thomas Sawyer, has requested the City publicly acknowledge Mrs. 
Barnard’s generous gift.  It is our recommendation this be done at a date subsequent to the City 
Council meeting of January 24, 2005.  Some suggestions include the Annual Appreciation Banquet 
for Boards and Committees on February 12, 2005 and the City of Troy 50th Birthday Celebration at 
Boulan Park on June 19, 2005.  It is our recommendation City Council approve the proposed 
agreement.  

bittnera
Text Box
F-03























January 19, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Niles-Barnard House Agreement 
 
 
The proposed agreement between the City and the Barnard family concerning 
the move of the Niles-Barnard House to the Historic Village Green is based on 
four essential points from the City’s perspective as to costs that may be incurred 
during the project.  These four points are: 
 

1. The $140,000 currently in the Barn Reserve Fund #401804.7975.150 
would be transferred to a Niles-Barnard House Moving/Property 
Acquisition Fund. 

2. The balance of the necessary funds for the project would be the 
responsibility of the Troy Historical Society’s Heritage Committee 
campaign.  Adequate funding is to be amassed over a five-year period. 

3. Once all the funding is in hand, the move can commence. 
4. If sufficient funds are not raised by the Heritage Committee at the end of 

the five-year period, then the City would be reimbursed by that Committee 
for any expenses the City incurred during the five-year period connected 
with the project, including necessary major repairs to the House. 

 
These four essential points were discussed with, reviewed by and agreed to with 
the Heritage Committee as the basis from which the formal could be pursued.  
 



 
 
 
 
January 18, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
   
SUBJECT: Possible Acquisition of Land Adjacent to the Troy Museum and 

Historic Green
 
 
Today I met with Danny and Diane Lee, the owners of the property at 109 Lange 
(adjacent to the Troy Museum and Historical Green).  I told them about Harriet 
Barnard’s donation of the historic Niles Johnson family home and about the 
requirement to relocate the home to the Green within five years.  I also explained 
that it would be possible to rearrange the existing buildings on the Green, but the 
preferred alternative would be to acquire additional adjacent property with funds 
raised by the Historical Society Heritage Foundation. 
 
Mr. Lee is retired and Mrs. Lee runs a day care business out of her home, two 
days per week.  Their 27-year old daughter lives with them.  They have 
purchased vacant property in Dotham, Alabama, where they plan to build a 
retirement home.  They are very interested in selling their property for a fair 
market value.   
 
I have left a couple of messages for Katharyn Jensen, the owner of the property 
at 100 West Wattles (also adjacent to the Troy Museum and Historical Green).  
The Lees said that Ms. Jensen is out of town visiting relatives, and they don’t 
know what date she is expected to return. 
 
Please advise me if we should proceed with an appraisal of the property at 109 
Lange. 
 
 
cc:   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 





   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: January 19, 2005 
Subject: Agenda Item: Participation in the Administration of School District 

Elections 
 
 
As part of the implementation of the Election Consolidation Laws an Election 
Coordinator for each school district must be determined and an agreement must 
be signed by the City Clerk indicating participation of the local municipality for 
each school district. The Macomb and Oakland County Clerks have determined 
that they will be the Election Coordinator for their respective school districts 
within Troy.  
 
The City of Troy participation in the administration of the Oakland County school 
districts will be very similar to all statewide election participation levels. The level 
of participation for the Warren Consolidated Schools will be at a higher level and 
will be similar to the conduct of a local election. This increase in participation is 
due to the Macomb County Clerk not wishing to participate at the level 
demonstrated by the Oakland County Clerk. It should be noted that the two 
Intermediate School Districts (ISD), which fall within Troy, would be similarly 
administered with the Macomb ISD requiring more participation than the Oakland 
ISD.  
 
The Troy School District is the exception provided for in Law. The Law indicates 
that because the Troy School District falls totally within the Troy municipal 
boundaries, the Coordinator should be the Troy City Clerk. However, in the three 
districts in Oakland County where this situation exist, the Oakland County Clerk 
has agreed to be the Coordinator. It is the belief that having Oakland County 
serve as the Coordinator that the Troy voter would be better serviced as the 
elections will run very similar to the statewide elections held every even-year 
August and November.  
 
The attached resolution has been forwarded to the City Council for their approval 
to permit the Troy City Clerk to sign an agreement to allow for the participation of 
the City of Troy in the administration of the seven school district elections which 
will be conducted by Macomb and Oakland Counties as outlined above. 

bittnera
Text Box
F-04



bittnera
Text Box
F-05





Date:  January 14, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager-Services 
  Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
  Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item

Final Engineering Proposal for Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
Streambank Stabilization  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is our recommendation that the City of Troy proceed with finalizing the plans 
and specifications for the proposed Sylvan Glen Golf Course streambank 
stabilization project to be completed by Hubbell, Roth & Clark in accordance with 
the general engineering contract, as authorized by City Council Resolution No. 
2002-06-379, dated June 17, 2002.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The Gibson Renshaw West drain that runs through Sylvan Glen Golf Course has 
experienced severe streambank erosion over the last few years.  Hubbell, Roth & 
Clark was hired to study the problem and develop alternatives to resolve the 
issue.  The study with alternatives was presented to city staff during the early 
spring of 2004.  During the spring rains in May of 2004, the problem became 
more severe when additional property was lost to the streambank erosion and 
several tees and greens became threatened to being eroded into the stream.          
 
Enclosed with this memo is a copy of the proposal for engineering services from 
Hubbell, Roth & Clark to finalize the plans, prepare specifications, obtain soil 
borings and the necessary permits to construct the proposed streambank 
stabilization project on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 
 
FUNDING: 
 
The final engineering plans and specifications are estimated to cost $65,000, 
plus an additional $5000 to obtain the necessary permits from the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), and an estimated $5000 will be 
needed for the necessary soil borings.  These fees will not be exceeded without 
prior authorization and will be paid for out of the Capital Drains Account 
#401516.7989.013024.  Work would commence upon our authorization to 
proceed.  
  
Prepared by Dana Calhoun, Storm Water Engineer  

bittnera
Text Box
F-06







 1

January 17, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (FEBRUARY 7, 

2005) – PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW AND AMENDED CONSENT 
ORDER AND JUDGMENT (SP 883-C) – Heartland Health Care, southeast 
corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The parcel is an appropriate location for a 120-bed nursing home.  The impact of this 
development is less than that of the 50,000 square foot medical office building that 
received Preliminary Site Plan Approval in 2002.  The medical office building was more 
massive and the parking area had over 7 times the number of parking spaces than the 
proposed Heartland Health Care project.  In addition, the traffic generated by the nursing 
home will be significantly less than the proposed medical office. 
 
The proposed development is generally consistent with the Consent Order and Judgment, 
Case No. 83-265736 CZ, dated December 26, 1986.  Representatives of the Meadowland 
Estates Homeowners Association met with the applicant at the beginning of the design 
process and provided input into the design of the site.  The Association has provided a 
letter of support for the proposed development.  
 
At the December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the Preliminary Site Plan as submitted, with two conditions: 

 
1. That City Management review the detention pond located to the southeast of the 

proposed development for proper construction, as it appears that water is being 
retained on site.   

 
2. That the trees along the South Boulevard sidewalk as shown by the petitioner, 

being that they are ornamental and evergreens, be moved away from the 
sidewalk so that their ultimate growth size shall not impede the use of the 
sidewalk. 

 
City Management shall review the detention pond located southeast of the proposed 
development for proper construction prior to Final Site Plan Approval.  The proposed site 
plan has been amended to move the trees away from South Boulevard, as requested by 
the Planning Commission. 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01a



 2

City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the 
Preliminary Site Plan and amended Consent Order and Judgment.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Rodney Hyduk.  The applicant is Brion Harrigan of ManorCare Health 
Services Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, in section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.78 acres in area.  This represents a portion of the parent 
parcel, which is 5.48 acres in area.  The western 180.01 feet of the parent parcel will be 
split from the subject parcel.    
 
Proposed Use of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 120-bed nursing home on the property. 
 
Parcel History: 
The use of the parcel is controlled by a consent order and judgment of the Circuit Court for 
the County of Oakland of December 26, 1986, Case No. 83-265736 CZ (see attached).  
The proposed development is inconsistent with the consent judgment, which therefore 
must be amended to permit this development.  City Council is responsible for approving 
the amended consent judgment, which includes Preliminary Site Plan Approval authority. 
 
At the October 21, 2002 Regular Meeting, City Council approved a Preliminary Site Plan 
and amended consent agreement for a medical office building on the parent parcel.  The 
proposed development included a 2-story, 50,000 square foot medical office building with 
426 constructed parking spaces and 43 landbanked spaces. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The western 310 feet of the parcel is zoned O-1 Office Building.  The remainder of the 
parcel is zoned R-1B One Family Residential.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Animal Medical Center (City of Rochester Hills). 
 
South: Single family residential (Meadowland Estates Subdivision). 



 3

East: Single family residential (Meadowland Estates Subdivision). 
 
West: Val’s Pet Supplies and the Meadowbrook Pre-School and Kindergarten. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 General Business and R-2 One Family Residential (City of Rochester Hills) 
 
South: R-1B One Family Residential.  
 
East: R-1B One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1B One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Rise Office. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the RM-1 district: 
 
The property is zoned O-1 and R-1B; however, the applicant is proposing a 120-bed 
nursing home.  “Convalescent Homes” are permitted subject to special conditions under 
the RM-1 Multiple Family Low Rise Residential Zoning District (Section 15.25.04).     
 
Lot Area: Not applicable in the RM-1 district. 
 
Lot Width: Not applicable in the RM-1 district. 

 
Height: Maximum permitted height is 2 stories.  The applicant is proposing a 2-story 

building. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  50-foot minimum setback required.  The building is set back 75 feet; 

however, the fixed entrance canopy is set back only 38 feet. 
Side:  50-foot minimum setback required; 88 feet provided.   
Rear:  50-foot minimum setback required; 70 feet provided.  

 
Landscaping: The applicant meets the requirement of at least 800 square feet of lot 

area and 300 square feet of open space per bed. 
 
The applicant does not meet the 50-foot front setback required for convalescent homes in 
the RM-1 district, because the canopy is considered part of the building. 



 4

Compliance with the Consent Order: 
 
The proposed development is generally consistent with the Consent Order and Judgment.  
The most significant exception is the use of the parcel.  The consent order permits all uses 
that are permitted in the O-1 district.  Convalescent homes are not permitted in the O-1 
district.  The impact of a 120-bed convalescent home will be significantly less than a 
50,000 square foot medical office building. 
 
The application meets the following requirements of the Consent Order: 
 

1. A 70-foot minimum building setback from the south property line. 
2. A 50-foot minimum building setback from the east property line. 
3. A 30-foot minimum building setback from the west and north property lines. 
4. Buildings shall not exceed 2 stories in height. 
5. A minimum 10-foot wide greenbelt on the east side of the property, west of the 

right-of-way. 
6. There shall be no screening wall on the east property line, although the screen 

wall is required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

The Consent Order calls for a 6-foot brick-faced screen wall along the south property line, 
except for the western 30 feet, which is to be only 2-½ feet in height.  At the request of 
abutting homeowners to the south, a berm has been proposed in lieu of the wall.  
 
Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements:  
The 120-bed facility requires 1 space per 2 beds, or 60 spaces.  The applicant is providing 
80 spaces.  The applicant exceeds the off-street parking requirement by 20 spaces. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on South Boulevard.  Access will be provided by a boulevard entry drive. 
 
A cross-access easement is proposed for the southwest corner of the parcel. 
 
The applicant is providing an 8-foot wide sidewalk along South Boulevard.  In addition, 5-
foot wide connecting sidewalks are also provided.  An alternative is provided for the 
required sidewalk along Fieldstone Drive.  
 
Midwestern Consulting prepared a Traffic Impact Study for the development.  The report 
shows the AM peak hour trips to be between 17 and 20 vehicles per hour and the PM peak 
hour trips to be between 28 and 61 vehicles per hour.  In comparison, the Environmental 
Impact Statement for the proposed medical office building on the site anticipated 135 AM 
peak hour trips and 204 PM peak hour trips.  The impact in terms of traffic is significantly 
less for the nursing home than for the medical office building. 
 
Storm Water Detention: 
Storm water detention will be provided by a detention pond in the southeast corner of the 
parcel. 



 5

Environmental Provisions: 
The applicant is proposing a screened dumpster on the west side of the building. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are some woodlands located on the property. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Consent Order and Judgment, dated December 26, 1986. 
3. Amended Consent Order and Judgment. 
4. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
5. Letter of support from Meadowlands Estates Homeowners Association, dated 

October 27, 2004. 
6. Traffic Impact Study prepared by Midwestern Consulting, dated October 12, 2004. 

 
 

cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP-883-C 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 883 Heartland Health CJ Sec 3\Announcement CC Public Hearing Heartland 02 07 05.doc 























































bittnera
Text Box
G-02a

































   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: January 20, 2005 
Subject: Agenda Item: Voter Identification Cards and Absentee Voter 

Applications 
 
 
As part of the implementation of the Election Consolidation Laws, the Oakland 
County Clerk has determined that all municipalities within Oakland County will 
utilize the local precincts for all elections. Voter identification cards will be mailed 
to all Troy voters indicating the change in their School Precinct voting locations. 
The cost for the mailing will be divided according to the number of residents in 
each district and then charged to the respective School Districts.  
 
The Election Consolidation Laws indicated that Absentee Voter Applications 
must be mailed for all elections, including school elections. The State Law 
mandates that minimally that the existing City of Troy Permanent Absent Voters 
Request List must be utilized. The Oakland County Clerk has asked that all 
voters 60 and over, physically unable and existing permanent lists be merged in 
every community in Oakland County. She is asking that this be done to 
standardize the election environment throughout the County. In order to 
accommodate her request, the Troy list would need to be expanded to include all 
voters 60 and over who are not currently on the permanent mailing list. It is 
expected that our permanent voter list would grow from approximately 4,000 to 
slightly under 13,000. It should be noted that 13,000 is in line with the number of 
AV applications currently being distributed by similar size communities in 
Oakland County. 
 
The City of Troy will also notice an increase in the costs associated with the 
mailing of the applications.  At this time it is undeterminable the effect of the 
mailing however it is anticipated that voter participation will increase. The costs 
associated with the mailing of the Absent Voter Applications for school elections 
as well as all other school election costs will be charged to the corresponding 
school districts. 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02b



January 19, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
   
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Recommendation to Reject Proposal for Nature 

Center Exhibits and Fabrication 
 
Under Mr. Chuck Barnes’ tutelage, we have excellent programming at the Lloyd A. 
Stage Nature Center facility.  And we were going to take it to the next level this current 
fiscal year by including nature exhibits.  We budgeted $350,000 for this endeavor and 
took requests for proposals (RFP’s).  After staff review, a recommendation was ready to 
be advanced to City Council awarding Taylor Studios, Inc. approximately $350,000 for 
exhibit fabrication and installation.   
 
Initially, I was going to have Council deliberate this project as a study item, and then 
provide direction on whether to proceed.  However, based on our study session of 
January 17, 2005 our objective is to strive for the same level of service without a tax 
increase.  As such, I think it would be most prudent not to proceed with this expenditure 
for two reasons: 
 

1. The 2004/2005 budgeted amount of $350,000 for exhibits would be channeled to 
the Capital Fund balance and could thus be used as a revenue source for the 
fiscal year 2005/2006 General Fund Budget.  This has salience because 
projected municipal expenditures are rising at a higher rate than projected 
revenues.  As you know, this condition is prevalent among aging communities. 

 
2. The proposed exhibits represent a level of service enhancement, and our 

budgetary task is difficult enough maintaining our existing level of service. 
 
As a point of information, I am including the staff memo on this matter.  Please know, 
however that I will be asking Council to rescind bid proposals for the Nature Center 
exhibit at the February 7th, 2005 City Council meeting.   
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
c:   Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 

Chuck Barnes, Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center Manager 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
 
 

JAS/bt\AGENDA\2005\01.24.05 – Recommendation to Reject Proposal for Nature Center Exhibits and Fabrication 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02c





























January 14, 2005    
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager   
 

FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 

  James Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Report and Communication - Recreation Pass Fee Recommendations for 2005   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Manager approve adjustments for recreation pass fees 
beginning February 1, 2005 for new members and March 1 for current pass holders (as 
in 2004) in order to account for projected increases in operating costs at the Community 
Center.  As previously authorized, the City Manager can establish fees for services in 
the Recreation Program Division (Resolution #2003-11-596).   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
While the City Manager is authorized to approve rate adjustments for the Community 
Center, this memo serves to inform Council of these proposed adjustments. 
 
The Community Center pass sales and fitness use have increased steadily since the 
new building opened.  Expenses, too, have increased.  The Community Center 
expenses are covered by user fees and the allocated subsidy ($1 million).  Since 
opening the new Community Center, the budget has been developed to use less than 
the subsidy and that the surplus would be used to offset future capital projects. To this 
point, however, no fund balance has been maintained specifically for the Community 
Center.   
Two options exist to increase revenues; increase pass sales or increase pass fees.  As 
pass sales have increased and use is nearly at capacity, the better alternative is to raise 
fees.  This increase, is minimal and affects only one category of user, the second and 
subsequent adult members of each household, but will maintain the balance if pass 
sales remain the same.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Overall operating costs increased approximately 10% from 2002-03 to 2003-04 as a 
result of higher utilities (11%), personnel (10%) and contractual services (6%).  To 
account for this, pass fees were raised in February 2004 by 10% for the first time since 
the Community Center opened in March 2002.  It is projected that a similar increase in 
operating costs will exist in 2004-05.  To account for this increase, a new pass fee 
structure is being proposed that will result in a 12% increase in pass fee revenue which 
will make up 79% of this projected operating cost increase.   The remaining 21% will be 
made up with increases in rent and recreation program revenue associated with the 
Community Center.  
 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02d



Pass sales and facility usage has increased steadily since the facility has opened in 
2002.  Based on the same time last year, there are approximately 1800 more active 
memberships (7780) and attendance in the fitness room and gym is up approximately 
23%.  In December 2004, 18 cardiovascular machines were purchased and an 
additional 900 square feet and was converted into fitness room space to accommodate 
the demand.  These increases in memberships and usage occurred after a 10% 
increase in pass fees last February which indicates that the membership is still a 
perceived value from residents.   

 
Under this proposal, the recreation pass fee remains the same for the head of the 
household but increases for additional family members 18 and older from half price to 
full price.  If there is a full paying family member, all individuals under the age of 18 
would still receive the immediate family member discount.  For example, a family of 
three (husband, wife and 16 year old son) that now pays $16.50, $8.25 and $8.25 per 
month for their respective passes would now pay $16.50, 16.50 and $8.25.  The 
monthly fee stays the same for all pass holders except for the additional household 
members age 18 and older.  Other pass fees, including the monthly and daily passes, 
would remain the same.  A financial breakdown of this proposed pass plan as it 
compares to the current pass plan is attached.  Further details of this pass plan are 
listed below: 

 
1. Positives 

a. New fee structure will result in more revenue (assuming pass 
holder level remains constant) that will offset increased operating 
expenses.  

 
b. Fees will remain the same for primary pass holder and individuals 

17 and younger (unless they are the classified as the primary pass 
holder of the family).  There are approximately 1062 members 
between 3-17 years of age. 

 
c. Will avoid confusion when classifying pass holders as primary and 

secondary pass holders.  If primary person cancels membership, it 
creates extra work by staff to reclassify the secondary pass holder 
as the primary, and this sometimes is not even caught.  In addition, 
the discounted fee structure is confusing to explain to patrons. 

 
d. Since all pass holders have the same access to services and 

equipment, it stands to reason they should pay the same.  While 
those children 17 and under do not utilize the fitness room on a 
consistent basis, we find the opposite true for members 18 and 
older. 

 
e. Pricing structure would be similar to other municipalities and private 

industry in the fitness community. 
 

2. Disadvantages 
a. May lose pass holders who are infrequent users or those who have 

additional family members above the age of 17 and do not feel that 



the additional costs are worth it.  Based on a full price of $198 per 
year, the average cost is still less than $2 per day for a user 
($1.84). 

 
b. Although the primary household member does not reflect an 

increase, additional members age 18 and over bear the projected 
fee increase. 

 
In addition to the pass fee proposal, the following changes are recommended for new 
pass holders and renewals to increase customer satisfaction with the facility and 
improve the efficiency of our staff: 

 
1. Eliminate the reinstatement fee for pass holders enrolled in the Electronic 

Fund Transfer (EFT) service.  This fee was originally established to prevent 
pass holders from starting and stopping their membership on multiple 
occasions throughout the year while still benefiting from the low on-going 
monthly rate.   

 
2. Charge three full months (instead of one) in advance for new pass holders 

who pay their fees on a monthly basis.  This would eliminate the confusion 
pass holders have between the single month pass and on-going pass, and 
prevent pass holders from canceling right after they start their pass.  This 
would also act as an initiation fee in a sense that it would encourage a long-
term commitment. 

 
3. Eliminate the ability to pay at the desk each month and require either a lump 

sum annual payment or enrollment in the EFT service.  There were 44 pass 
holders who did not pay their November pass fees by the 1st of the month.  
This required our staff to assess a $10 late fee, suspend the account and mail 
past due invoices.  Additional work is required to un-suspend the account 
when pass holder actually submits the late payment.  In addition, it is difficult 
to require patrons to honor the contract that states they are responsible for 12 
months of payments.  If they are moving from the city, there is no easy way to 
get the remaining months of payment 

 
4. Establish a “Summer Pass” for pass holders, particularly high school and 

college students. The pass would be priced at $75 (versus $99 if a three 
single month passes were purchased) and be good for approximately 3 
months beginning between May 1 and expiring September 11.  This would be 
more affordable for students and encourage them to purchase the Summer 
Pass instead of signing up for the on-going pass at the beginning of the 
summer and canceling at the end of summer. 

 
5. Improve retention of existing members through the following methods: 

 
a. Offer an incentive to renew (i.e. two complimentary guest passes at the 

one year anniversary date).  These free guest passes issued to our 
existing members will help expose our facility to potential members 
and encourage pass renewal.   



 
b. Allow members to use the outdoor pool during the week that the 

Community Center is closed for annual maintenance (week prior to 
Labor Day). 

 
c. Sponsor a customer appreciation day where residents may use the 

facility for no charge.  The first one would be on January 23, 2005 as 
part of the annual Community Kaleidoscope event, which is also 
showcasing the city’s 50th Anniversary. 

 
d. Establish several special event days throughout the year where the 

daily pass rate is discounted. 
 
 
 
Approved:   ______________________________ 
  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Kraig Schmottlach, Community Center Facility Manager 



Recreation Pass Fee Projections

Proposal - Pass fees for additional family member if 18 or older are the same as head of household.  Others are half price.

      Current Prices    Proposal
Pass Type      No Fee Increase    Full Price for Passholders 18+
ON GOING PASS Members Pass Price Revenue Members Pass Price Revenue
Resident 2761 $198 $546,678 4,596 $198 $910,008
Resident FM 2801 $99 $277,299 966 $99 $95,634
5th FM (Comp) 344 $0 $0 344 $0 $0
Family Plan $495 $0 NA
Employee 748 $246 $184,008 930 $246 $228,780
Employee FM 242 $123 $29,766 60 $123 $7,380
Matinee-Resident 121 $150 $18,150 121 $150 $18,150
Matinee-Employee 53 $180 $9,540 53 $180 $9,540
Senior 373 $180 $67,140 373 $180 $67,140
Senior FM 137 $90 $12,330 137 $90 $12,330
Low Income 49 $180 $8,820 78 $180 $14,040
Low Income FM 59 $90 $5,310 30 $90 $2,700
Disabled 47 $180 $8,460 64 $180 $11,520
Disabled FM 23 $90 $2,070 6 $90 $540
Corporate 22 $246 $5,412 22 $246 $5,412
TOTAL 7780 $1,169,571 7,780 $1,383,174

 
MONTHLY Quant          No Fee Increase Quant No Fee Increase
Resident 681 $33 $22,473 681 $33 $22,473
Summer Special 200 $75 $15,000 200 $75 $15,000
Employee 52 $44 $2,288 52 $44 $2,288
Senior 36 $30 $1,080 36 $30 $1,080
Low Income 0 $30 $0 0 $30 $0
Disabled 1 $30 $30 1 $30 $30
TOTAL 970 $40,871 970 $40,871

DAILY Quant          No Fee Increase      No Fee Increase
Resident (Child) 2082 $6 $12,492 2082 $6 $12,492
Resident (Adult) 1731 $8 $13,848 1731 $8 $13,848
Employee 151 $10 $1,510 151 $10 $1,510
Guest 240 $12 $2,880 240 $12 $2,880
Guest Booklets 38 $90 $3,420 38 $90 $3,420
Hotel Guests 68 $8 $544 68 $8 $544
Punch Card-Child 30 $40 $1,200 30 $40 $1,200
Punch Card-Adult 27 $60 $1,620 27 $60 $1,620
TOTAL 4367 $37,514 4,367 $37,514
Overall Pass Revenue $1,247,956 $1,420,688
Other Sources of Revenue (Projected) $406,000 $406,000
Revenue with Fee Increase $1,653,956 $1,826,688
Subsidy $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Gross Revenue Projection $2,653,956 $2,826,688
Projected CC Expenses $2,529,780 $2,529,780
Surplus $124,176 $296,908

Proposed plan assumes current level of passholders will remain the same in 2004-05.
Proposed plan will make up 79% of expected operating cost increases.
All projections are based on 2005-06 expenses.
*Expenses were projected to increase 10% in 2005-06 based on increases in 2003-04 and 2004-05.
*The surplus for 2003-04 was $348,858 but would be $124,176 if fee structured remained unchanged.



 
 
January 17, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Operation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the maintenance operation at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course be 
completed by City staff for a period of five years.   
 
BACKGROUND 
As of December 31, 2004, the contract with Douglas Treadwell and Golf Associates, the 
current contractor of maintenance operations at Sanctuary Lake expired.  Before the 
opening of the golf course in mid July of 2004, it was determined that a smooth 
transition from the grow-in process to the general maintenance of the course was 
necessary.  With that in mind, it was decided that the most optimal way to achieve this 
transition was to retain the services of the golf course designer and builder.  Although 
we feel this transition was a vital part of the success we saw this year at Sanctuary 
Lake, the staff recommends that the golf division take over maintenance of the course 
beginning in 2005.   
 
For the 2005 golf season, Douglas Treadwell and Golf Associates proposed a cost of 
$710,100.00 for the maintenance of Sanctuary Lake golf course, which includes the use 
of the City’s equipment to perform daily maintenance to the course.  While formal bids 
have not been received, the proposed quote from Treadwell is less than other known 
courses with the maintenance contracted.  Although most cities contacted were 
operating with City forces, the cost to maintain operations that were contracted was 
approximately $1 million per year.  Typically this cost included daily maintenance of the 
course along with the equipment and tools being provided by the contractor.   
 
If the maintenance were to be completed by City forces, the proposed maintenance 
budget for the 2005 golf season would be $648,190.  With the acquisition of the 
maintenance program at Sanctuary Lake, the staff believes that there is economy of 
scale by operating both courses.  By doing this, we can manage the division in a more 
consistent and efficient manner to control the spending and growth of both courses.  
With a successful maintenance operation already in place at Sylvan Glen, we feel the 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02e



addition of Sanctuary Lake will give the golf division the control it needs to reach their 
goal of providing the best golfing experience for all residents and guests.   
 
After the grow-in becomes complete and the predictability of the maintenance stabilizes, 
a review of the operation is appropriate.   City staff recommends that City forces operate 
the course for five years, with a review and report on operation alternatives in 2010.  
 
Given the current Golf Division staffing; the additional on course operation, budgeting, 
purchasing, and scheduling needed to operate Sanctuary Lake, it is possible to maintain 
the course with City work forces with the addition of one full time MSE-G Leader 
position.  This is contingent on the existing vacancy being filled with an MSE-G Leader.  
The operation would include one Superintendent overseeing both operations, one 
mechanic divided between operation, two Leaders (to be hired), and temporary 
seasonal staff.   
 
Currently at Sylvan Glen, there is a Superintendent, a mechanic and a MSE-F, who 
becomes a temporary leader during the season, and temporary seasonal staff.  The 
staff believes with the current staffing in place and the addition of the new MSE-G 
Leader, the City of Troy can achieve an efficient and successful transition.   
 
Attached is a copy of the proposed 2005 Sanctuary Lake maintenance budget.   
 
 
 
Note to Mayor and Council: 
 
Please contact me should you have any questions, as I'm going to have an agenda item 
on February 7, 2005 restructuring golf course operations to accommodate in-house 
maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CKA/jdp 



Staff conducted a phone survey to gather information regarding other municipal golf maintenance 
operations. 
 
 
  Operations handled in house         
    
Washtenaw Co. 
Royal Oak                                                                  
Oakland County 
City of Southfield 
City of Birmingham 
Binder Park GC ( Battle Creek ) 
City of Kalamazoo  Operations include three golf courses that are run by one superintendent 
overseeing the three courses with one assistant at each site plus seasonals. 
 
Contracted Operations  
 
Fieldstone GC ( Auburn Hills )  Contractor is responsible for the Maintenance of the entire 
facility and for providing all tools and equipment.  The current contract is for five years @ $5 
Million.   
Contractor: Davey Tree 
 
City of Taylor  Contractor is responsible for the maintenance of two facilities which covers 
roughly 230 acres of property.  In addition the contractor is responsible for providing all tools and 
equipment.  The current contract is for $950,000.00 per year.  
Contractor: Valley Crest 
 
Oakhurst C.C  Contractor is responsible for the maintenance of the entire facility including 
homeowners’ common areas.  In addition the contractor is responsible for providing all tools and 
equipment.  Estimated cost is not available.   
Contractor: Davey Tree 
 
City of Livonia: Contractor is responsible for the maintenance of the three golf courses.  City 
employs one greens keeper at each facility. Contractor is paid a percentage of collected fees, a 
salary, and some benefits. 
Contractor: TJW, Inc. 
 
 
 



2005 PROJECTIONS

$259,850.00
$6,186.33
$1,427.92

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$19,748.60
$3,897.75
$6,496.25

$25,985.00
$9,094.75

$20,788.00
$353,474.59

$50,000.00
$90,000.00

$140,000.00
$9,000.00
$2,000.00
$1,000.00

$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$155,000.00

$8,300.00
$19,360.00
$27,660.00

$20,000.00
$900.00

$3,000.00
$1,500.00
$1,500.00

$26,900.00

$5,000.00

$9,000.00
$6,000.00
$750.00
$800.00

$16,550.00
$18,000.00
$2,100.00
$640.00

$3,000.00
$300.00

$0.00
$100,150.00

$608,624.59

$648,190.00

SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE
CITY OF TROY

2005 PROJECTIONS

MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

OTHER 
DEPRECIATION

TOTAL OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES

INSURANCE- OTHER
MEMBERSHIP & DUES

EDUCATION AND TRAINING

TOTAL GREENS

WATER 
TELEPHONE

TOTAL PUBLIC UTILITIES
EQUIP/VEH RENTAL- MP

COMPUTER SERV- INTERNAL
PUBLIC UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY
HEAT

INSECT CONTROL
REFUSE CONTRACTOR

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
COMPUTER SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
CONTRACTOR- GROUNDS MTNCE.

CUSTODIAL CONTRACTOR
CONTRACTOR- EQUIP MTNCE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
ADMIN & PROF. SERVICES

BUILDING MTNCE SERVICES
TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TOTAL REPAIR MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
TOTAL SUPPLIES

OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES

TOOLS 
UNIFORMS 

REPAIR MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
BUILDING MTNCE SUPPLIES

OPERATING SUPPLIES
SEED/PLANTING SUPPLIES

TOTAL OPERATING SUPPLIES
GASOLINE AND OIL

RETIREMENT
TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICE CONTROL

SUPPLIES
OPERATING SUPPLIES

WORKS COMP & UEMPLOYMENT
SICK PAY ALLOWANCE

HOSPITAL AND LIFE INSURANCE
VACATION

TOTAL GREENS PLUS 6.5% contingency

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
PERSONAL SERVICE CONTROL

PERSONAL SERVICE  
HOLIDAY

PERSONAL BUSINESS
FUNERAL LEAVE

INJURY LEAVE 
JURY DUTY

FICA 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals meeting to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, December 1, 2004, in the Lower 
Level Conference Room of the City of Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo (8:45 A.M.) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Ginny Norvell, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 3, 2004 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 3, 2004 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Nelson, Richnak 
Absent: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAFET STAFA, 3455 JOHN R., for relief of 
Chapter 83 to maintain a 6’ high privacy fence installed without first obtaining a Fence 
Permit, along the front property line of 3455 John R. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to maintain a 
6’ high privacy fence installed without first obtaining a Fence Permit along the front 
property line of his home.  The Fence Permit application submitted indicates 100 linear 
feet of fence, 6’ high, located in the front yard.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in 
front yards to not more than 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stafa was present and stated that he did not realize a fence permit was required 
before the fence was installed.  Mr. Stafa indicated that his home was built in 
approximately 1908 and he has done a lot of improvements in order to make the home 
livable.  He had three (3) incidents of minor mischief done to his home and the reason 
he wanted this 6’ high privacy fence was to provide security for his three (3) children, 
and also to provide a buffer from the traffic along John R.  Mr. Stafa indicated that he 
would not be able to stay in this home if he was not allowed to keep the fence. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01a



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Samel of 3405 John R. was present and stated that she approves of Mr. Stafa’s 
request.  Ms. Samel indicated that when this home was first built, John R. was a two-
lane road and now that it is five (5) lanes, she believes the fence will not only provide 
safety, but also act as a buffer to the traffic noise along John R.  Ms. Samel also said 
that there are a number of properties along John R. that have 6’ high privacy fences and 
does not think this fence would be an eyesore.  Ms. Samel did express concern that the 
fence comes very close to the driveway and thought that it could be sloped down to 
increase visibility. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in order for this Board to grant a variance, the petitioner needs to 
demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kessler also said that this is a large 
piece of property and the petitioner could enclose the rear yard, which would provide 
safety for his children.  Mr. Kessler also said that the petitioner could plant shrubbery 
along John R. that would act as a buffer to the traffic.  Mr. Kessler stated that this is a 
self-imposed hardship as the fence was put up without obtaining the necessary permit. 
 
Mr. Stafa said that his house is closer to John R. than other houses in this area and the 
south side of his property would be completely open.  Mr. Stafa also said that this fence 
is not totally closed.  Mr. Kessler stated that the existing fence is a “shadow-box” style 
and is not a non-obscuring fence.  Mr. Stafa also said that he had cleaned up the area 
where he put the fence and had taken down an existing fence. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if a variance had been granted for the previous fence.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that Building Department records did not indicate that either a variance or a 
permit had been obtained for that fence.  Mr. Stimac also said that it was possible that 
the original fence proceeded the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Richnak indicated that he agreed with Mr. Kessler and felt this was a self-imposed 
hardship and was not in favor of granting this request. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Safet Stafa, 3455 John R., for relief of Chapter 83 to 
maintain a 6’ high privacy fence installed without first obtaining a Fence Permit along 
the front property line. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• There are other options available to the petitioner. 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stafa once again asked the Board to reconsider this request.  Mr. Stimac indicated 
that the vote was unanimous and Mr. Stafa could work with the Building Permit to put up 
a fence that would comply with the Ordinance and provide Mr. Stafa the security he is 
seeking. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHARLES FOLKERT, 4290 WASHINGTON 
CRESCENT, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence.  Based upon the configuration of this corner lot and that of the 
homes around it, any fencing behind the front line of the house, located in the yard 
adjacent to Forest Trail, is limited to a non-obscuring fence not more than 48” in height.  
This limitation is found in Section 2A of Chapter 83 of the Troy City Code.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 6’ high privacy fence along the rear property line extending out to 
the property line along Forest Trail. 
 
Mr. Folkert and Ms. Browning were present.  Mr. Dziurman asked about the fence along 
Forest Trail.  Ms. Browning indicated that this is an existing split rail fence, which has to 
be replaced and this is where they would like to put the 6’ high fence.  Ms. Browning 
said that the neighbor adjacent to their property has three (3) dogs, one of which is a 
dachshund that barks at her whenever she is out in the yard.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked for clarification regarding the location of the fence and the shape of 
this property.  Mr. Stimac explained that it could not be any closer to the property line 
along Forest Trail than 26.6’ of the existing home and cannot be in the front yard along 
Forest Trail.   
 
Mr. Folkert said that the fence is 67’ from the neighbor’s driveway and 75’ from his 
driveway and does not feel that it would hinder visibility from either driveway.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked why a 6’ high fence was required instead of a 4’ high fence.  Ms. 
Browning stated that she wanted as much privacy as possible.  Ms. Browning went on 
to say that they have had problems with this neighbor in the past and feels the best 
solution is a 6’ high fence.  Mr. Folkert said that the neighbor is unapproachable when it  
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
comes to the dog barking issue. Mr. Kessler then asked which side of the fence would 
be facing the neighbor.  Mr. Folkert said that it did not matter to him which side of the  
fence was facing the neighbor and felt that a privacy fence would also be an advantage 
to this neighbor.  Mr. Kessler then asked what would happen to the existing fence.  Ms. 
Browning said that it would be taken down and replaced with this privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the deteriorating fence was on their property.  Ms. Browning said 
that she thought it was along the property line.  Mr. Folkert said that he would not want 
to replace the split rail fence with anything other than a privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the area they were talking about was a 15’ gap in the fence line.  Ms. 
Browning said that the dog can see her all along the existing fence.  Mr. Zuazo then 
asked if they had thought of putting in heavy shrubbery.  Ms. Browning said there is 
already existing shrubbery and the dog can see under the shrubs.  Ms. Browning also 
said that they don’t get along with the neighbor.  Mr. Zuazo then asked if they want the 
fence because of the dog or the neighbor and Ms. Browning said that the 6’ high fence 
would be for the neighbor. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that they could put up a 6’ fence 26.6’ from the point of the sidewalk 
to the north and they could up a 4’ high non-obscuring fence.  Ms. Browning said that 
there was no point in putting up a 4’ high non-obscuring fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak then said that they could put of a 6’ high privacy fence on part of the 
property and then drop it down to a 4’ high fence.  Mr. Stimac indicated that the 
Ordinance would allow a 4’ high fence but it would be required to be 50% open.  This 
Board would have to grant a variance that would allow a privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Folkert asked what the intent of the Ordinance was regarding this rule on the fence.  
Mr. Stimac stated that the basic intent of the Ordinance is to find equitable treatment of 
all neighbors in the area.  In general, the Ordinance does not allow anything more that a 
30” high fence in the front yard of the homes across the street on the north side of 
Forest Trail.  Ms. Browning said that she does not feel this fence is in the front yard but 
along the back of the property. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if they were planning to remove the shrubbery in this location.  Ms. 
Browning said that they have to take out one of the shrubs, but the other shrubs would 
be staying. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Charles Folkert, 4290 Washington Crescent, relief of Chapter 83 to 
install a 48” high obscuring fence behind the front line of the house, located in the yard 
adjacent to Forest Trail where the Ordinance allows a non-obscuring fence not more 
than 48” in height. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATION CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WILLIAM BETZ, OF WILD BILL & ASSOCIATES, 
REPRESENTING THE EAST LONG LAKE SUBDIVISION ASSOCIATION, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to maintain a subdivision identification sign in the median of Carnaby, 42” in 
height, located 19’ from the right of way line of Long Lake Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to maintain a 
subdivision identification sign in the median of Carnaby, 42” in height, located 19’ from 
the right of way line of Long Lake Road.  Paragraph C of Section 7.01.01 limits the 
height of signs in medians to not taller than 30” when located within 25’ of the right of 
way of the intersecting street.  The approved sign permit indicated that the sign would 
be 29’ from the city right of way.  The sign was incorrectly installed at the 19’ setback. 
 
Mr. John Ungvarsky, 5063 Abington and Mr. William Betz were present.  Mr. Betz 
indicated that Mr. Ungvarsky would be the spokesperson as he was part of the 
Homeowners Association and had dealt with the City in the past. 
 
Mr. Ungvarsky stated that they had received approval from City Council to put up this 
subdivision identification sign, located 29’ from the right of way line of Long Lake Road.  
When Mr. Betz came out to put up this sign and began digging they ran into a concrete 
pipe.  They attempted to move to two other locations, but again hit this piece of concrete 
pipe.  Mr. Ungvarsky contacted the City and drawings were not available which 
indicated that this was an active line.  The only determination made was that this was a 
line put in at a much earlier time and was no longer used.  Mr. Ungvarsky said that he 
contacted Mr. Betz who was willing to rent whatever machinery was required to go 
through this concrete pipe and set the sign up.  Mr. Ungvarsky went on vacation and 
when he came back the sign was installed.  Mr. Ungvarsky called for a final inspection, 
which was disapproved as it was installed in the wrong location. 
 
Mr. Betz indicated that at this time he had written a letter to the City requesting a 
variance.   
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Ungvarsky said that a chain link fence around an existing detention pond and a very 
large pine tree located east of this sign create a greater hazard to traffic than this sign 
does.  Mr. Ungvarsky indicated that the fence is rusty, which makes visibility very 
difficult. 
 
Mr. Betz stated that he had spent approximately one-half of a day trying to put the sign 
in the proper location, but was unable to do so.    Mr. Betz also said that most 
subdivision signs are perpendicular to the main street and this sign runs parallel to the 
main street. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are sixteen (16) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the petitioner had obtained a Sign Permit with an approved 
location, and ignored this site plan and placed the sign in the wrong location.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he feels this is a self-imposed hardship and the petitioner cannot 
disregard policies and procedures.  Mr. Kessler also said that a hardship did exist and 
the petitioner had the opportunity to come to the City for a variance before the sign was 
installed.   
 
Mr. Betz said that he did not obtain the Sign Permit and was not aware of the 
stipulation.  Mr. Ungvarsky said that he did not inform Mr. Betz of the 25’ setback 
stipulation for this sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he felt the way the sign was installed is totally inappropriate and 
does not believe there was a rush to install the sign.  Mr. Richnak also said that they 
could have gone to the Building Department or the Public Works Department and 
informed them of the problem before installing the sign.  Mr. Richnak agreed with Mr. 
Kessler that this was a self-imposed hardship. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant William Betz, of Wild Bill & Associates, representing the East Long 
Lake Subdivision Association, relief of Chapter 78 to maintain a subdivision 
identification sign in the median of Carnaby, 42” in height, located 19’ from the right of 
way line of Long Lake Road. 
 

• Concrete pipe under ground creates a hardship. 
• Sign does not create a hazard for traffic leaving the subdivision. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GREGORY AERTS, 366. W MAPLE, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to install wall signage at a new building, which is under construction. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install wall 
signage at the new building under construction at 366 W. Maple Road.  The Sign Permit 
application submitted indicates a proposal to install 22 automobile manufacturer’s logos, 
each no larger that 1.6 square feet, totaling 35 square feet and 12 graphics depicting 
vehicles, each one 37.33 square feet in size, totaling 444 square feet.  Although these 
graphics are designed to look like they are located inside windows, they are in fact 
located on the outside of the building wall and are subject to the area limitation of the 
Sign Ordinance.  These proposed wall signs will result in a total wall signage of 479 
square feet.  Paragraph B of Section 9.02.04 of the Troy Sign Ordinance limits the area 
of wall signs on a building of this size to 36 square feet. 
 
Mr. Gregory Aerts and Mr. Cordell Craig were present.  Mr. Aerts stated that they had 
brought in an approval letter from Thunderbird Lanes, which is right next door to this car 
wash.  Mr. Aerts explained that they wanted to do something different other than just 
depicting a car wash.  The proposed pictures are of classic cars and a number of these 
pictures were taken at the Woodward Dream Cruise.  Mr. Aerts further explained that 
the reason for this request is because of the maintenance involved if the signs were on 
the inside of the building.  This building is very long and narrow, and the chemicals, 
water and soil could damage the signs if the space is not sealed.  Mr. Aerts also said 
that Meteor Photo has a similar situation, although they do change their signage from 
the inside of the building.   
 
Mr. Aerts also said that the pictures would be illuminated from the back and they felt 
that this proposal offered the best solution for the maintenance and look of these signs.  
Mr. Aerts said that this is a self-imposed hardship because of the design of the building, 
but did not think there were other options available, unless they altered the building.   
 
Mr. Cordell Craig stated that this is the second business he owns in the City, that he has 
been a long time resident and is trying to create a very clean, high-end car wash.  The 
chemicals used on the cars could harm open sign panels, and also harm the electrical 
connections involved in illuminating these panels.  Mr. Craig also said that the proposed 
cement walls will help to provide additional security for the building. 
 
Mr. Aerts said that this property is only 60’ wide and most of these “windows” are on the 
east side of the building.  Mr. Aerts said that he believes only one or two of the panels 
would be visible to traffic along Maple. 
 
 
 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Craig indicated that Meteor Photo was not required to obtain permits and the car 
wash is not planning on changing the pictures, but will always keep them as classic 
cars. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he did not believe an interpretation was necessary, as these 
panels would not be considered windows.  Mr. Kessler said that he did not see a 
hardship that runs with this land and believes this request is excessive. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked Mr. Stimac about the interpretation of the Ordinance.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that under provisions of the Sign Ordinance, signs located in the interior of a 
building are not subject to the restrictions of the Sign Ordinance.  Meteor Photo 
appeared before this Board in 1979, and, in part, because the signs are accessed on 
the inside of the building, this Board determined that they were not subject to the 
requirements of the Sign Ordinance.  Mr. Stimac also said that in this case there is no 
way to change or access these signs from the inside of the building.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Susan Thompson, representing the owner of 264 W. Maple was present.  Ms. 
Thompson indicated that although they think the concept of these panels would look 
wonderful, she believes that they will create a safety hazard as traffic will be looking at 
these pictures and not paying attention to where they are going.  Ms. Thompson said 
that this is already a very congested area, and although she realizes that Thunderbird 
Lanes approves of this request, their building is the one that will be facing these panels.  
Ms. Thompson further stated that Mr. Craig indicated that these signs will go up whether 
this variance is granted or not. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Craig stated that he feels the hardship he has is the fact that because this building 
is so narrow and access would be next to impossible from the inside of the building.  He 
further stated that the water, chemicals and soil from the cars would also create a 
hardship.  Mr. Aerts indicated that they would not be in front of this Board if this were 
any other type of building. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that he is having a hard time with this request and asked if this was 
considered to be art or signage.  Mr. Stimac explained that if this was a Bowling Alley, 
and a bowling pin and ball was painted on the outside of the building – it would be 
considered signage.  These panels are considered signage because they are on the 
outside of the building and depict messages related to the business.  Mr. Zuazo asked if 
these signs would comply if they were on windows.  Mr. Stimac explained that if the 
signs were on the interior of the building, they would not be subject to the limits of the  

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Sign Ordinance.  Mr. Zuazo asked what it would take to carry this into a window and Mr. 
Stimac stated that they have to be accessed from the inside of the building. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they could put in sliding doors on the inside and then put the pictures 
of the cars inside of that.  Mr. Stimac indicated that the Board determined that Meteor 
Photo’s signs were not subject to the limitations of the Sign Ordinance because they are 
accessible from the inside of the building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if they had thought of putting in windows and Mr. Aerts stated that 
they had, but decided to put in concrete instead. 
 
Mr. Aerts explained that the images would always be of classic cars.  Their goal is to 
make it look like a real window with a car behind it.  Because they have a control room 
on the west side of the building, their only option was to put these panels on the east 
side of the building. 
 
Mr. Craig stated that the panels are on this side of the building because of the traffic 
flow of cars from Maple to the car wash.  Mr. Craig also said that even though these 
panels will be accessed from the outside of the building, he would still consider them 
windows.  Mr. Dziurman asked if the cars enter the car wash at the back of the building 
and Mr. Craig indicated that this was correct.  Mr. Craig said that he does not believe 
that more than two (2) windows would be visible to traffic. 
 
Ms. Thompson said that they can see the entire wall from their building, and thinks that 
cars going into this location will create a traffic hazard.  Ms. Thompson said that 
although she thinks it will look very nice, she is more concerned about the safety factor. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why they did not put these panels inside the building.  Mr. Craig 
said that they are going to have fluorescent lighting and maintenance would be difficult 
from the inside. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if this building was considered a windowless story by the building 
code.  Mr. Stimac stated that as long as there were opening on each end of the building 
it did meet building code standards. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if this request was a question of aesthetics versus hardship.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he would have a deep concern if an interpretation was granted to say 
these signs were inside the building and felt that such a decision would set a precedent 
regarding other locations.   
 
Mr. Zuazo then asked if this request would impose a hardship to 264 W. Maple.  Ms. 
Thompson stated that this was not really a hardship, but there are concerns regarding 
egress and ingress because of the traffic congestion.  Ms. Thompson said that their 
business has always complied with the Ordinance and felt that this business could also. 

 9



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he feels this request is very similar to a “sign box”.  Mr. Kessler 
also said that this site allows 36 square feet of signage and feels this request, which 
would bring the total to 479 square feet, is excessive.   
 
Mr. Craig then asked if signs are permitted that are not visible to traffic.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that the Ordinance allows signs that are not visible to traffic along the public road, 
up to 36 square feet in size. These types of signs are not subject to the limitations of the 
Sign Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Aerts stated that from the outside he thinks these panels will look like windows.  Mr. 
Kessler said that he did not agree as they were very similar to a sign box regarding the 
depth, lighting and framing.     
 
Mr. Nelson stated that in his opinion these panels would not be considered windows.  
From the Fire Department’s standpoint a window is something that they could break into 
in case of an emergency.  Because these panels have cement behind them access 
would be difficult for the Fire Department.  Mr. Nelson said that if the interpretation was 
made that these would be considered windows, they would need to operate as 
windows. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Gregory Aerts, 366 W. Maple, for relief of Chapter 78 to 
install wall signage at a new building, which is under construction. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• Access to these panels is from the outside. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance request is excessive. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Kessler, Richnak, Zuazo 
Nays:  1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:20 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 10



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                             December 7, 2004 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Tuesday, December 7, 
2004 at the Troy Community Center, staff conference room.  Chairwoman, Kathleen Fejes called the 
meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 
 
Present: Merrill Dixon, member    Ida Edmunds, member 
  Kathleen Fejes, member   Tod Gazetti, member 
  Orestes Kaltsounis, member   Tom Krent, member 
  Meaghan Kovacs, member   Jan Zikakis, member 
  Stuart Alderman, staff    Jeff Biegler, staff 
  Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Stuart Redpath, Jeff Stewart, Brad Henson 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 021 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from October 21, 2004 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 022 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Krent 
 
RESOLVED, that absent member are excused.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Rotary Park - Staff presented a concept drawing of the park.  Discussion of the concept, draft 
agreement and terms, and park naming policy took place.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 023 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends to City Council that the 
agreement for the Rotary Club of Troy for development and maintenance of the park on Long Lake 
Road at Somerton be pursued.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 
___________________________________      ___________________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairwoman        Carol K. Anderson, Recording Secretary 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01b



bittnera
Text Box
J-01c





























PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Waller at 7:30 p.m. on December 14, 2004, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Fazal Khan 
Lynn Drake-Batts Robert Schultz 
Lawrence Littman Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Howard Wu, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-146 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Schultz and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-147 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 2, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Littman 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-12-148 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting minutes as 
published.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Waller 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-149 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the December 7, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-150 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the December 7, 2004 Joint Special Meeting minutes as 
published.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 326) – Square Lake Marathon 

Station, Southwest corner of Livernois and Square Lake (5991 Livernois), Section 9 – 
H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Special Use Request.  He briefly cited the most recent revisions to the 
site plan.  Mr. Savidant said the improved site plan design has struck a balance 
between safety, aesthetics and economic viability.  Mr. Savidant reported that the 
petitioner would like to install 8 pumps and has indicated that the project would not 
go forward should the Commission not approve the installation of 8 pumps.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the Special Use Approval and Site Plan on the condition that the petitioner 
seek and receive variances from the Board of Appeals in relation to the Zoning 
Ordinance requirements for landscaping, side yard and rear yard setbacks.  Mr. 
Savidant further reported that the petitioner would be required to provide a sidewalk 
connection to Square Lake Road. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the location and utilization of the required sidewalk 
to Square Lake Road.   
 
Mr. Strat complimented the petitioner on the improved site plan.  He questioned the 
dimensions of the 2.5-foot high screen wall.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated that the thickness of the wall could be stipulated as one of the 
conditions to the site plan approval.   
 
The petitioner, Mike Elias of 5991 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. Elias said he is 
very happy with the recent site plan because it provides more parking spaces, 
better circulation and a cross access easement to the south.  Mr. Elias said every 
effort would be made to make the corner attractive.  He explained that the 
installation of 8 pumps is very important for the investment of the project.   
 
Mr. Miller noted that the Planning Department recognizes the fact that a service station 
use might not have a need for sidewalks as much as other uses, but the 5-foot 
connecting sidewalk is a requirement of the Zoning Ordinance.  He said a variance 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) would be required should the site plan be 
approved without the condition to provide a sidewalk.  
 
Chair Waller stated that one of the reasons the subject parcel has a limited amount of 
property is that over the years the property has been decreased in size because of the 
widening of the roads.  Chair Waller believes the City should review some of the 
requirements imposed on service stations within the H-S zoning district to make sure 
the requirements are reasonable in light of the fact that some properties have been 
downsized because of the taking of land for the public right-of-way.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
A brief discussion followed on the cross access easement agreement.  Mr. Miller 
provided the procedure followed by the Planning Department to effectuate a cross 
access easement agreement and a reciprocal cross access easement agreement.  He 
reported that the Planning Department is required to secure the easements prior to 
giving Final Site Plan Approval and that the easements are recorded with the Register 
of Deeds.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-151 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval Request and Site Plan for the Square 
Lake Marathon Station, located on the southwest corner of Square Lake Road and 
Livernois Road, Section 9, within the H-S Zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The filing of the cross access easement with the property to the south. 
2. The granting of variances by the Board of Zoning Appeals for the side 

yard setback requirements for the canopy support, pump island and 
canopy edge, the landscaping requirements, the rear yard setback 
requirements and the connecting sidewalk to Square Lake Road. 

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat will draft a letter of recommendation to the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
recommend BZA approval of the conditions set forth by the Planning Commission.   
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 695) – Proposed Becker 

Overflow Parking Area, South side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 27 
– From R-1E (One Family Residential) to P-1 (Vehicular Parking) 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the petitioner submitted a request to postpone the rezoning 
request to the February 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.  The petitioner would like more time 
to address design issues associated with the application.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-12-152 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the rezoning request for the proposed Becker Overflow Parking 
Area, located on the south side of Henrietta and east of Rochester Road, Section 
27, from R-1E to P-1, be postponed to the February 8, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 696-B) – Proposed Chary Villas 
(additional property to the north), West side of Rochester Road, North of Square 
Lake, Section 3 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family 
Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning application.    
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering Group of 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher stated the application meets the 
Future Land Use Plan and locational standards.  He said the intent is to combine 
the recently rezoned 4 parcels to the south with the subject parcel to develop 18 
units of unattached products.  Mr. Mosher offered to address any concerns or 
questions the Commission might have. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-153 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road and north of Square Lake Road, within Section 3, being 
approximately 1 acre in size, be granted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 699) – Proposed Briggs Crossing 

Condominium, West side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – From 
R-1C (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant referenced three handouts relating to the 
proposed rezoning request.  They are:  (1) an amended page 2 of the Planning 
Department report with respect to natural features; (2) a table identifying R-1T 
zoning districts parcel sizes and depths; and (3) a letter of opposition received 
today.   
 
Mr. Savidant cited the sizes and depths of specific parcels located within the R-1T 
zoning district from former rezoning requests.  Mr. Savidant reported that Article 
12.40.01 states that the R-1T zoning district may be applied to property when the 
application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Future Land 
Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density or high density 
residential.  Mr. Savidant said the subject application would meet this standard and 
the locational standards of the R-1T district should the Planning Commission 
determine that the depth of the parcel is consistent with the depth of the area 
classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential.   
 
The petitioner, Fred Binder of 5215 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Binder 
said he thinks the request fits within the Future Land Use Plan, and it does appear 
that similar depths have been approved in the past.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain referenced the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the depth of 
the R-1T zoning versus the commercial to the south.  He said it appears that the 
subject parcel would be deeper or the same depth as the commercial to the south.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-154 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Rochester Road and south of Trinway, within Section 10, being approximately 2.74 
acres in size, be granted, for the following reason:  
 

1. That it complies with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Littman 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said he thinks the parcel goes too deep when you look at the 
neighborhood and how it is put together.  
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 602-B) – Proposed Red Wagon 
Shoppe, Northwest corner of Maple and Livernois, Section 28 – From O-1 (Low 
Rise Office) to B-1 (Local Business), B-2 (Community Business) or B-3 (General 
Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller said the Planning Department cannot recommend rezoning the 
parcel to the B-1 zoning district, as requested by the petitioner, because it does not 
comply with the Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve rezoning the parcel to B-3 
General Business, which complies with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if the current building would become non-conforming if 
zoned B-1, B-2 or B-3.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that there would be no non-conformity issues if the parcel is zoned 
B-1.  He said there would be front and rear yard setback non-conformities if zoned 
B-2, and a rear yard setback non-conformity if zoned B 3.  Mr. Miller said it appears 
there would not be enough landscaped open space no matter what the site is 
zoned. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if the site immediately to the west currently meets the 
zoning requirements of the B-2 zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the site immediately to the west meets the front yard setback 
requirements, but he is uncertain about the rear yard setback requirements.   
 
Mr. Wright asked the zoning classification for the K-Mart property. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that it is in the B-2 zoning district.   
 
The petitioner, Larry Farida of 3105 Interlaken, West Bloomfield, was present.  Mr. 
Farida, owner of the Red Wagon Shoppe on the south side of Maple, said he would 
like to move the wine cellar building to the north side of Maple.  This move would 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

provide him with additional square footage.  Mr. Farida said he has applied to the 
State of Michigan for a liquor license.  It is his understanding that one license is 
available in the City of Troy and would most likely be approved if the property were 
zoned for retail use.  Mr. Farida said another alternative would be to purchase a 
liquor license from licenses held in escrow.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Gonway of Hyman Lippitt, P.C., 322 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, was 
present.  Mr. Gonway represents Peter P. Ruppe, Inc., the owner of the parcel of 
land to the immediate west of the subject property.  Mr. Gonway distributed 
additional copies of his letter dated December 14, 2004, that addresses his client’s 
concerns relating to the proposed rezoning.   
 
Mr. Gonway said the property, whose most visible tenants are The Good Food 
Company and Priya Indian Cuisine Restaurant, has a history of parking problems 
and it is his client’s concern that the parking problems would increase should the 
rezoning be approved.  Mr. Gonway also expressed concern with respect to the 
conceptual site plan relating to square footage.  Mr. Gonway requested that the item 
be tabled for additional review. 
 
Peter P. Ruppe, Jr., of 19815 E. Nine Mile, St. Clair Shores, was also present.   
 
Chair Waller stated the request before the Commission tonight is only the rezoning, 
and no consideration is given at this time for any site plan, sketch or drawing 
submitted with the application.  He confirmed that the decision of the Commission 
tonight is only a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the Maple Road corridor has been taken under review by the 
Planning Commission with the intent to make the thoroughfare more viable.  He 
said the intent is to bring all of the land into conformance with the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Mr. Chamberlain said he would prefer to rezone the subject parcel to B-3, 
and asked the petitioner if he would be agreeable to either B-2 or B-3 zoning. 
 
Mr. Farida said he would be agreeable to any of the business zoning classifications. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-155 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest 
corner of Maple Road and Livernois, within Section 28, being approximately 30,301 
square feet in size, be granted, and that the zoning district be B-3 (General 
Business), not B-1 or B-2, so that the parcel would be in compliance with the Future 
Land Use Plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman instructed the petitioner that a request to table the site plan would be 
appropriate only at the time of Site Plan Approval.  Mr. Littman said he is in favor of 
supporting the Future Land Use Plan and would not want to create non-conforming 
uses.  Mr. Littman said there are few parcels on Maple Road that do meet the 
setback requirements, including the property immediately to the west of the subject 
parcel.  Mr. Littman said he believes B-3 zoning would work the best.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLANS 

 
9. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium 27 

units/lots proposed, North side of Square Lake, East of John R, Section 1 – R-1D 
 
Mr. Wright brought to the attention of the Commission that his wife’s sister and 
brother-in-law are owners of property on Silverstone, which backs up to the subject 
proposal.  Mr. Wright said he feels the personal association would have no affect on 
his vote.  
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
development.  Mr. Miller noted that City Management prefers the Preliminary Site 
Plan layout with two points of ingress/egress.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the Chesapeake Grove 
Site Condominium.  He noted that if the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality (MDEQ) does not issue a wetland permit to fill wetland B, units 6 and 7 
would be undevelopable.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain addressed the landscape plan and the 5-foot concrete sidewalk 
depicted on the site plan along Square Lake Road.  Mr. Chamberlain voiced strong 
opposition to planting spruce trees against the sidewalk because the trees will 
spread and cover the sidewalk in five years. 
 
Mr. Miller noted that an 8-foot wide concrete sidewalk in accordance with the Zoning 
Ordinance could be a condition to the site plan approval.  
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 1111 W. Long Lake, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Maniaci noted that the retention basin is not on the subject property.  
He has agreed to make improvements to the adjacent subdivision’s retention basin 
as well as replace of all the pumps.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-12-156 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan as provided by Public Act 207 of 1921 and 
Public Act 285 of 1931 and subsequent changes thereto provides for city planning 
and authorizes Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to approve matters coming before the Commission and 
recommend to City Council, where City Council holds that approval power for 
themselves. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to 
City Council, that the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development), as requested for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, 
including 27 units, located on the north side of Square Lake Road and east of John R 
Road, Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. That the landscape plan drawing be changed to show an 8-foot concrete 
sidewalk on Square Lake Road. 

 
2. That the landscape plan be changed to show the plantings of low limb 

trees pushed further north from the sidewalk so the plantings will not 
infringe on the use of the sidewalk when they reach maturity. 

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
10. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Covington Estates Site Condominium, 5 units/lots 

proposed, South side of Long Lake Road, East of Somerton, Section 15 – R-1C 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
site condominium development.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of 
the Planning Department to approve Covington Estates Site Condominiums with the 
conditions to provide a temporary construction access easement on Long Lake 
Road and one common driveway for the two units that front on Long Lake Road.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the following:  
• common driveway for the two units that front on Long Lake Road; 
• property to the immediate south in relation to the storm water detention; 
• designated common space for the development; 
• potential regulated wetlands on site.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

The petitioner, Dennis Siavrakas of Bryden Development Corporation, 3190 
Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Siavrakas said he is in agreement with the 
recommendations of the Planning Department.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-157 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan as provided by Public Act 207 of 1921 and 
Public Act 285 of 1931 and subsequent changes thereto provides for city planning 
and authorizes Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to approve matters coming before the Commission and 
recommend to City Council, where City Council holds that approval power for 
themselves. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to 
City Council, that the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development), as requested for Covington Estates Site Condominium, 
including 5 units, located south of Long Lake Road and east of Somerton Street, 
Section 15, within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Provision of a temporary construction access easement on Long Lake 
Road. 

 
2. Provide one common driveway for the two units that front on Long Lake 

Road. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING - SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 883-C) – Proposed Heartland Health 
Care Skilled Nursing Facility, Southeast corner of Livernois and South Blvd., Section 3 
– R-1B (One Family Residential) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) District (Consent 
Judgment) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Heartland Health Care Skilled Nursing Facility.  He noted the petitioner‘s proposal is 
to amend an existing Consent Judgment agreement and provided a detailed 
explanation of the development relating to the Consent Judgment.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department recommends approval of the site 
plan as submitted with one condition relating to the landscape plan.  Mr. Miller said 
the Planning Department recommends that the Consent Judgment be revised to 
allow the proposed use.  He said the revised Consent Judgment and preliminary 
site plan would go to City Council for review and approval.   
 
Chair Waller asked if staff had any discussion with the petitioner with respect to 
landbanking excess parking spaces and providing permeable pavement. 
 
Mr. Miller responded in the negative.  
 
Mr. Savidant noted that the petitioner met with representatives of the Meadowland 
Estates Homeowners Association to discuss the potential development, and that the 
homeowners association has provided a letter of support.   
 
Peter DeLoof, Attorney with Seeligson DeLoof Hopper & Deve of 401 E. Liberty 
Street, Ann Arbor, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. DeLoof introduced 
the petitioner, Brion Harrigan, Director of Development for ManorCare Health 
Services Inc., 12530 Coral Grove, Germantown, Maryland.  He also introduced the 
project’s engineer, Brad Brickel of Nowak & Fraus, 1310 N. Stephenson Highway, 
Royal Oak. 
 
Mr. Harrigan provided a brief account of the health care company.   
 
Mr. DeLoof circulated a rendering of the project and a sample material board.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that the Consent Judgment allows the City more authority in the 
building material selection, and City Management would encourage input from the 
Planning Commission in that respect.  Mr. Miller said the petitioner has indicated 
they would be receptive to any materials within reason. 
 
Chair Waller asked how to address the canopy that is too close to the property line.   
 
Mr. Miller replied the canopy would be addressed in the revised language of the 
Consent Judgment.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain voiced strong objection to the tree selection noted on the 
landscape plan and he would recommend that the plantings be placed further from 
the sidewalk.   
 
Mr. DeLoof said they have tried to be responsive to the concerns of the neighboring 
subdivision and to the City administration.  Mr. DeLoof said that in terms of 
landscaping, he would work with the City and the neighbors.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Peter Leto of Leto & Associates, 2525 Telegraph Road, Suite 302, Bloomfield Hills, 
was present.  Mr. Leto, retained counsel for Meadowland Estates Homeowners 
Association, distributed a letter of site plan endorsement from the homeowners 
association.  Mr. Leto expressed two concerns of the association.  The subdivision’s 
retention pond to the southeast currently retains some water, and he requested that 
the City assess the situation.  Also, the association would like additional green 
foliage placed in the corner lot of Whitetail Court and Fieldstone.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Strat complimented the landscaping of the detention pond, and asked if a fence 
would be required.   
 
Mr. Miller said the swale would be deep and no fence is necessary.  He also noted 
that the petitioner would be responsible for maintenance.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-158 
 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan as provided by Public Act 207 of 1921 and 
Public Act 285 of 1931 and subsequent changes thereto provides for city planning 
and authorizes Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to approve matters coming before the Commission and 
recommend to City Council, where City Council holds that approval power for 
themselves. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to 
City Council that Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to a Consent Judgment, 
for a proposed nursing home, located on the southeast corner of South Boulevard 
and Livernois Road within section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be approved, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That City Management reviews the detention pond serving the existing 
residential development for proper construction, as it appears that water is 
being retained on site.   

 
2. That the trees along the South Boulevard sidewalk as shown by the 

petitioner, being that they are ornamental and evergreens, be pushed away 
from the sidewalk so that the ultimate growth size shall not impede the use 
of the sidewalk. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
12. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 210) – 

Article 03.20.07 – Rezoning Protest Petitions 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to protest petitions.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-159 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 03.20.07, pertaining to Rezoning Protest Petitions, be amended 
as printed on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 209) – 
Articles 04.20.152, 28.30.09, and 28.30.10 – Veterinary Hospitals in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to veterinary hospitals.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain brought to the attention of the Planning Department one 
typographical error in the third line of Section 22.30.05(B); that is, to delete the “0” in 
front of the word “zoned”.  Mr. Chamberlain said he was informed from a veterinarian 
friend of his that the facility terms used by veterinarians (i.e., clinic, hospital) are 
synonymous with respect to medical treatment.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-160 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 04.20.152, 28.30.09, and 28.30.10, pertaining to Veterinary 
Hospitals in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment and further, that Article 22.30.05(B) 
be amended per Member Chamberlain’s comments.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

14. JANUARY 4, 2005 SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – Cancellation and Schedule 
Alternative Meeting 
 
Mr. Miller said that in light of the fact that there are a number of items to be 
reviewed by the Commission, due to the holiday season there would be limited staff 
hours available to prepare for the scheduled meeting of January 4, 2005.  He asked 
for direction from the Commission.   
 
It was the consensus of the members to cancel the January 4, 2005 meeting, and 
an additional meeting could be scheduled at the January 11, 2005 Regular Meeting 
should the Commission so desire.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-161 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission cancels the January 4, 2005, 
Special/Study Meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Chair Waller asked the Planning Department to prepare a summary of Planning 
Commission items that remain on its plate, and to rank the items by priority.   

 
15. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the City’s tree ordinance should be revisited for review.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that the proposed Minor League Baseball Facility is on the 
December 20, 2004 City Council agenda.   
 
Holiday wishes were exchanged.   
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\12-14-04 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 5, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, January 5, 2005, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Ginny Norvell, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Tim Richnak 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 1, 2004. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 1, 2004 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Nelson, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Richnak 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 1, 2004 AS WRITTEN 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAUL TUMA, 1489 E. MAPLE – MARATHON, for 
relief of Chapter 78 to have five (5) wall signs totaling 75 square feet where 21 square 
feet are permitted and to have a total of six (6) ground signs where the ordinance allows 
two (2).  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to maintain the 
following signs, installed without the required permits, at an existing Marathon gas 
station:  Two (2) wall signs, each 15 square feet in size located on the building; Three 
(3) additional wall signs, each 15 square feet in size located on the canopy; Four (4) 
ground signs, each 1 square foot in size located on the top of the pumps.  Section 
9.02.04, B of the Ordinance limits a site with a building this size to 21 square feet of wall 
signage. The wall signs installed total 75 square feet, which exceeds the square footage 
permitted. 
 
With regards to the ground signs, Section 9.02.04, A of the Sign Ordinance limits this 
site to two (2) ground signs; one primary ground sign, and a secondary ground sign up 
to thirty-six (36) square feet.  The existing site has an eighty-six (86) square foot primary 
ground sign and a six (6) square foot price sign.  With the four (4) additional ground 
signs on this site there would be a total of six (6) ground signs. 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01e



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 5, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Paul Tuma of Bazo Construction was present.  Mr. Tuma said that these signs were 
installed at the direction of the Marathon Oil Company.  Marathon wants these signs in 
place as part of their uniform imaging.   Mr. Dziurman stated that he understands that 
this may be what Marathon wants, but the City of Troy has certain guidelines in place 
regarding signs.  Mr. Tuma further stated that the extra signs increase visibility along 
Stephenson.   
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in order for this Board to grant a variance the petitioner needed 
to demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kessler said that this gas station 
is in a very good location, with good visibility along both Maple Road and Stephenson.  
Mr. Kessler also said that the Sign Ordinance allows for a certain amount of signage on 
a site and it is up to the petitioner to make the best use of the signage allowed.   
 
Mr. Tuma stated that he does not have a hardship, except for the stipulations placed on 
the site by Marathon. Mr. Tuma also said that he did not think visibility was good for 
traffic heading east on Maple. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that permits are required before signs are put up and it is up to the 
petitioner to contact the City to determine what the requirements are before adding 
signage. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Paul Tuma, 1489 E. Maple – Marathon, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to have five (5) wall signs totaling 75 square feet where 21 square feet are 
permitted and to have a total of six (6) ground signs where the ordinance allows two (2).  
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship with the land. 
 
Yeas:  4 - Kessler, Nelson, Zuazo, Dziurman 
Absent: 1 – Richnak 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 5, 2005 

ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOHN CARROLL, OF CARROLL 
INSTALLATIONS, 1525 E. MAPLE, COURTYARD MARRIOTT, for relief of the Sign 
Ordinance to install a 160 square foot sign, that is 25’ in height and setback 20’ from the 
right of way where the ordinance would require a 30’ setback for a sign this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
replace an existing 84.5 square foot ground sign, that is 25’ in height with a 160 square 
foot sign (80 square feet x 2 faces), 25 feet tall and setback at the same 20’ from the 
right of way.  The sign is being measured as a double-faced sign because the faces are 
more than 24” apart.  Section 9.02.04 of the Ordinance requires a sign over 100 square 
feet in area or over 20’ in height to be setback 30’ from the right of way. 
 
Mr. Carroll was present and stated that basically all they are doing is updating the 
existing sign and are unable to move it any farther back because of the tree line.  If the 
sign is moved to comply with the setback, the sign visibility would be decreased.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the existing pedestal would remain and Mr. Carroll stated that 
they plan to use this pedestal and place the new sign on top of it. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant John Carroll, of Carroll Installations, 1525 E. Maple, Courtyard 
Marriott, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to install a 160 square foot sign, that is 25’ in 
height and setback 20’ from the right of way where the Ordinance would require a 30’ 
setback for a sign this size. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• If the sign were moved back, visibility would be decreased because of existing 

tree line. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler 
Absent: 1 – Richnak 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAFET STAFA, 3455 JOHN R., for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 40” high non-obscuring fence along the front property line of John 
R. 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 5, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 40” 
high and 100’ long, non-obscuring fence, along the front property line of 3455 John R.  
Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front yards to no more than 30” in height. 
 
This petitioner originally requested a variance to maintain a 6’ high privacy fence along 
the front property line of John R.  The Building Code Board of Appeals denied this 
request at the meeting of December 1, 2004. 
 
Mr. Stafa was present and stated that the reason he is asking for this variance is to 
save money by keeping the existing fence and to buy time until the spring when he can 
remove the fence and add trees as well as a berm.  Mr. Dziurman confirmed that this 
fence would be taken down in the spring.   Mr. Stafa said that the only reason he put the 
fence up was to protect his children from John R. Road. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the existing fence is not a non-obscuring fence.  Mr. Kessler also 
said that he had hoped Mr. Stafa would have met with the City Landscape Analyst, Ron 
Hynd, to draw up a plan, which would have provided Mr. Stafa with the security he was 
looking for.  Mr. Stafa said that he could not do any plantings because of the weather.  
Mr. Kessler said that he still could have met with Mr. Hynd and at least presented the 
Board with a proposed drawing for approval.  Mr. Kessler also stated that the original 
request was denied because the petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship.  Mr. Stafa 
said that he is heading in the direction of taking down the fence and adding greenery, 
but he would like to buy some time. 
 
Mr. Stimac pointed out that this request is for a 40” high non-obscuring fence and the 
existing fence is not considered a non-obscuring fence. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Safet Stafa, 3455 John R., for relief of Chapter 83 
to install a 40” high non-obscuring fence along the front property line of John R. until the 
scheduled meeting of April 6, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with Ron Hynd and bring in a 
landscaping plan for approval by this Board. 

 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 5, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Nelson, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Richnak 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF APRIL 6, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
Every one on the Board wished Ginny Norvell good luck in her retirement.   
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 5



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, January 13, 2005 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Audre Zembrzuski, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
    
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
             
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-01-001 
Moved by Allen 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Brian Griffen, Nancy Wheeler and student representatives 
Lauren Andreoff and Cheng Chen be excused. 
Yes:  3—Allen, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-01-002 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of December 9, 2004 be approved. 
 
Yes:  3—Allen, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-01-003 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved.  
Yes:  3— Allen, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01f



 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
There was no regular business. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The library has been very busy this season with circulation of materials running 10% 
higher than last year.  The Youth Services Department will be working on a program of 
providing cloth book bags for children to decorate during National Library Week in April.  
 
Board Member comments.   
Zembrzuski related a story about people saying that we have the best library. 
   
SLC Report. 
Gregory reported that the SLC Board made minor changes to the wording in the 
Personnel Policy as advised by their auditor.  They also re-titled some positions and 
made a few changes to the Classification and Compensation Plan.  A new server was 
purchased to allow the spam software to run more efficiently.  Adobe Creative Suite was 
purchased for producing documents and promotional pieces.  The investment policy 
was reviewed.  A new Sirsi update has been installed. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
The Friends Books Store made almost $80,000 this year. 
 
Gifts.    
Five gifts totaling $460.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items.   
January TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
14 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M. 

 
 
 
                  
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



DATE:        January 5, 2004    

TO:             John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Year 2004

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $2,500,000.00 $8,860.00
Completion (New) 2 $890,000.00 $4,420.00
Tenant Completion 1 $100,000.00 $610.00
Accessory Structure 1 $10,000.00 $160.00
Add/Alter 71 $8,244,241.00 $47,780.00
Parking Lot 2 $245,000.00 $1,445.00

Sub Total 78 $11,989,241.00 $63,275.00

COMMERCIAL
New 7 $7,061,675.00 $36,080.00
Fnd. New 1 $236,800.00 $1,295.00
Shell New 3 $1,416,000.00 $7,410.00
Fnd./Shell New 6 $12,790,065.00 $49,765.00
Completion (New) 4 $4,724,400.00 $24,065.00
Completion Less Tenant 3 $45,000.00 $465.00
Tenant Completion 19 $1,522,231.00 $9,720.00
Add/Alter 251 $32,089,125.00 $180,885.00
Wreck 6 $6,000.00 $600.00
Parking Lot 1 $200,000.00 $1,110.00
Repair 2 $377,000.00 $2,105.00
Kiosk 1 $0.00 $25.00

Sub Total 304 $60,468,296.00 $313,525.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 134 $25,278,311.00 $141,625.00
Add/Alter 344 $8,542,079.00 $71,935.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 100 $700,405.00 $9,180.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 61 $893,499.00 $8,700.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $5,000.00 $85.00
Repair 24 $378,694.00 $4,030.00
Fire Repair 7 $366,945.00 $2,615.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 3 $33,000.00 $670.00
Wreck 42 $22,600.00 $2,080.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 2 $2,500.00 $355.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 16 $54,275.00 $1,060.00

Sub Total 734 $36,277,308.00 $242,335.00

Page 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-02b



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 179 $18,030,035.00 $110,135.00
Add/Alter 50 $285,219.00 $4,215.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $121,500.00 $720.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $19,800.00 $210.00
Repair 1 $70,000.00 $460.00

Sub Total 232 $18,526,554.00 $115,740.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 17 $157,520.00 $2,255.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $24,750.00 $235.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $30.00
Parking Lot $0.00 $0.00
Sub Total 19 $182,270.00 $2,520.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 7 $2,687,800.00 $14,210.00

Sub Total 7 $2,687,800.00 $14,210.00

MUNICIPAL
Add/Alter 2 $70,000.00 $0.00

Sub Total 2 $70,000.00 $0.00

RELIGIOUS
New 3 $16,467,647.00 $37,305.00
Add/Alter 4 $122,500.00 $985.00
Repair 1 $13,128.00 $180.00

Sub Total 8 $16,603,275.00 $38,470.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 10 $315,708.00 $2,455.00
Signs 551 $0.00 $63,438.00
Fences 182 $0.00 $2,870.00

Sub Total 743 $315,708.00 $68,763.00

TOTAL 2127 $147,120,452.00 $858,838.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING 2004
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 568 $5,680.00
Cert. of Occupancy 632 $32,269.50
Plan Review 1523 $78,620.50
Microfilm 398 $4,591.00
Building Permits 2127 $858,838.00
Electrical Permits 2683 $185,489.00
Heating Permits 2308 $111,573.00
Air Cond. Permits 741 $34,004.00
Refrigeration Permits 16 $1,635.00
Plumbing Permits 1816 $144,490.00
Storm Sewer Permits 231 $10,983.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 245 $8,499.00
Sewer Taps 307 $90,956.00

TOTAL 13595 $1,567,628.00

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING 2004
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 424 $2,120.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 384 $5,760.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 268 $268.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 51 $2,500.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 75 $750.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 33 $480.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 34 $340.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 258 $2,570.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 30 $450.00

TOTAL 1557 $15,238.00

Page 3



DATE:        January 5, 2005
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of December 2004

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 7 $150,196.00 $1,355.00

Sub Total 7 $150,196.00 $1,355.00

COMMERCIAL
Add/Alter 25 $1,606,852.00 $10,660.00
Parking Lot 1 $200,000.00 $1,110.00

Sub Total 26 $1,806,852.00 $11,770.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 13 $2,171,972.00 $12,320.00
Add/Alter 16 $646,040.00 $4,710.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 5 $35,600.00 $395.00
Repair 3 $39,015.00 $430.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $290.00

Sub Total 42 $2,892,627.00 $18,145.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 1 $12,559.00 $175.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $19,800.00 $210.00

Sub Total 2 $32,359.00 $385.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $7,100.00 $130.00

Sub Total 1 $7,100.00 $130.00

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $2,427,353.00 $12,380.00

Sub Total 1 $2,427,353.00 $12,380.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 64 $0.00 $7,550.00
Fences 5 $0.00 $75.00

Sub Total 69 $0.00 $7,625.00

TOTAL 148 $7,316,487.00 $51,790.00

Page 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-02c



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2004
NO. PERMIT FEE

Cert. of Occupancy 37 $1,734.75
Plan Review 98 $4,594.00
Microfilm 34 $172.00
Building Permits 148 $51,790.00
Electrical Permits 173 $10,325.00
Heating Permits 141 $7,705.00
Air Cond. Permits 51 $2,005.00
Refrigeration Permits 0 $0.00
Plumbing Permits 109 $8,522.00
Storm Sewer Permits 19 $1,111.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 13 $443.00
Sewer Taps 16 $2,822.00

TOTAL 839 $91,223.75

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2004
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 27 $135.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 18 $270.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 13 $13.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 2 $100.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 2 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 12 $120.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 78 $713.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2003 2003 2004 2004

JANUARY 83 $3,349,579.00 100 $5,235,481.00

FEBRUARY 98 $6,941,418.00 130 $21,354,496.00

MARCH 106 $10,102,093.00 158 $9,372,242.00

APRIL 150 $7,185,781.00 178 $14,158,227.00

MAY 269 $13,984,618.00 232 $11,511,644.00

JUNE 209 $20,116,880.00 232 $16,224,865.00

JULY 196 $17,222,754.00 178 $19,788,711.00

AUGUST 179 $7,971,188.00 224 $11,179,780.00

SEPTEMBER 181 $13,656,695.00 198 $13,582,037.00

OCTOBER 195 $11,302,769.00 197 $11,540,976.00

NOVEMBER 136 $5,897,752.00 161 $6,232,506.00

DECEMBER 182 $18,153,988.00 148 $7,316,487.00

TOTAL 1984 $135,885,515.00 2136 $147,497,452.00



SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2004

6 5 7

17
12

15 16
12

6

16
9

13

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Jan 4, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2004Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 335 E BIG BEAVER  300,000.00JEFF HARRELL
Commercial, Add/Alter 3331 W BIG BEAVER 200  172,000.00NEMER PROPERTY GROUP
Commercial, Add/Alter 840 W LONG LAKE 175  300,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 200 W BIG BEAVER  117,619.00EJH CONSTRUCTION INC

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  889,619.00

Commercial, Parking Lot 6850 ADAMS  200,000.00P V PADIYAR

Commercial, Parking LotTotal  200,000.00

Religious, New Construction 1825 E SQUARE LAKE  2,427,353.00BOB SELLMAN/ADAM GUT

Religious, New ConstructionTotal  2,427,353.00

Total Valuation:  3,516,972.00Records  7



DATE:         January 5, 2005
TO:             John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued July through December 2004

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Completion (New) 1 $750,000.00 $3,860.00
Add/Alter 33 $1,975,696.00 $13,105.00
Parking Lot 2 $245,000.00 $1,445.00

Sub Total 36 $2,970,696.00 $18,410.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $395,000.00 $2,085.00
Fnd./Shell New 4 $11,182,000.00 $41,500.00
Completion (New) 2 $3,674,400.00 $18,595.00
Completion Less Tenant 1 $1,000.00 $25.00
Tenant Completion 6 $472,000.00 $3,020.00
Add/Alter 126 $13,611,314.00 $75,440.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00
Parking Lot 1 $200,000.00 $1,110.00
Repair 2 $377,000.00 $2,105.00
Kiosk 1 $0.00 $25.00

Sub Total 145 $29,912,714.00 $144,005.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 72 $13,481,863.00 $75,675.00
Add/Alter 175 $4,633,077.00 $37,900.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 61 $436,861.00 $5,620.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 32 $419,958.00 $4,270.00
Repair 12 $88,958.00 $1,525.00
Fire Repair 4 $201,485.00 $1,455.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 2 $8,000.00 $435.00
Wreck 23 $4,000.00 $1,210.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 11 $40,575.00 $770.00

Sub Total 392 $19,314,777.00 $128,860.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 121 $11,928,679.00 $73,085.00
Add/Alter 24 $222,906.00 $2,875.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $122,220.00 $720.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $19,800.00 $210.00

Sub Total 147 $12,293,605.00 $76,890.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 7 $55,100.00 $910.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $24,750.00 $235.00

Sub Total 8 $79,850.00 $1,145.00

Page 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-02d



INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 3 $1,432,800.00 $7,495.00

Sub Total 3 $1,432,800.00 $7,495.00

MUNICIPAL
Add/Alter 2 $70,000.00 $0.00

Sub Total 2 $70,000.00 $0.00

RELIGIOUS
New 2 $3,467,647.00 $17,695.00
Add/Alter 2 $12,500.00 $215.00
Repair 1 $13,128.00 $180.00

Sub Total 5 $3,493,275.00 $18,090.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 3 $73,500.00 $620.00
Signs 263 $0.00 $30,043.00
Fences 93 $0.00 $1,465.00

Sub Total 359 $73,500.00 $32,128.00

TOTAL 1097 $69,641,217.00 $427,023.00

PERMITS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2004
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 84 $840.00
Cert. of Occupancy 333 $15,888.50
Plan Review 778 $38,952.00
Microfilm 189 $1,779.00
Building Permits 1097 $427,023.00
Electrical Permits 1298 $93,071.00
Heating Permits 1199 $60,463.00
Air Cond. Permits 409 $18,080.00
Refrigeration Permits 6 $495.00
Plumbing Permits 923 $77,952.00
Storm Sewer Permits 140 $5,251.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 140 $4,856.00
Sewer Taps 186 $46,224.00

TOTAL 6782 $790,874.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2004
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 259 $1,295.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 125 $1,875.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 116 $116.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 23 $1,150.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 33 $330.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 11 $165.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 12 $120.00

Page 2



Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 136 $1,360.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 11 $165.00

TOTAL 726 $6,576.00

Page 3



bittnera
Text Box
J-02e













































TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CAROLYN F. GLOSBY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: January 1, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2004 FOURTH QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 

interest.  The accomplishments during the fourth quarter of 2004 are in bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will be 
presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized in 
the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
 

B. ZONING CASES 
 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v Troy - This is a case filed by the City 
against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order has been entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the Court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 
defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the Court also determined that the defendants 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02f



 2

were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners have filed a Motion to Intervene, which 
was granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed 
a counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by 
Judge Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-
complaint, since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two 
separate motions to dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the 
motions asserts the same jurisdictional claim that was raised against 
the counter-complaint.  Hearing dates for the pending motions have 
not been scheduled by the Court.  Discovery continues in the interim. 

 
2. Williams et. al v. City of Troy and Ken Freund-  Some of the residents in 

the Middlesex Country Homesites Subdivision have filed this lawsuit 
against the City and developer Ken Freund.  The lawsuit challenges that 
the City of Troy improperly approved the Freund Site Condominium project 
without requiring an official replat of the property.  The Troy City Council 
granted preliminary approval of the site condominium plan on March 3, 
2003. Each of the parties filed a Motion for Summary Disposition. On 
9/3/03, Judge Kuhn heard oral arguments from all parties on the Motions 
for Summary Disposition.  On 3/24/04, the Court entered an order that 
holds that a re-plat is not required for site condominium developments.  
This resulted in the Court granting Summary Disposition in favor of the City 
on Counts I and II of the Plaintiffs’ Complaint. However, the Court failed to 
rule on Count III, a violation of substantive due process allegation. The City 
has filed a Supplemental Brief asking for dismissal of Count III.  Judge 
Kuhn did not dismiss the third count, which necessitated our filing of 
a motion for summary disposition.  Presiding Judge Kuhn retired on 
December 31, 2004, and the case has now been reassigned to Judge 
Michael Warren.  Judge Warren has set a hearing date on the Motion 
for May 2005.   

 
3. Rathka v. City of Troy – This lawsuit was filed by Roy Rathka, Jr. and 

concerns property he owns on Canham, a gravel drive located south of 
Square Lake Road and west of Livernois Road.  Mr. Rathka claims he was 
wrongfully denied a building permit to build a duplex on Canham.  The 
permit was denied pursuant to Section 40.10.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance that requires proposed building in one or two family residential 
districts to front on a public street that has been accepted for maintenance 
by the City.  The City filed a motion for summary disposition, which was 



 3

granted on 6/21/04.  On 6/28/04, Plaintiff filed an appeal of the dismissal to 
the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Rathka has filed a motion for an 
extension of time to file his appellate brief.    

 
4.  Long Lake Road Development Partners v. City of Troy – Plaintiffs served 

this zoning challenge against the City on March 29, 2004.  Plaintiffs own 
the 14.5-acre parcel of property on the south side of Long Lake, west of 
Rochester Road.  This property was the subject of an earlier zoning 
challenge, Goodman v. Troy, which was dismissed in favor of the City.  The 
property is currently zoned R-1T (medium density residential).  Plaintiffs 
requested a commercial re-zoning of the property, which was denied by 
City Council on January 26, 2004, in accordance with the Planning 
Commission recommendation of November 11, 2003.  Plaintiffs argue that 
the refusal to re-zone the property to B-3 is arbitrary and capricious, and a 
violation of procedural due process, equal protection, and an 
unconstitutional taking of property.  When Troy advised Plaintiffs it 
would be filing a motion to dismiss the case, the Plaintiffs voluntarily 
agreed to dismiss the case without prejudice.  The order for dismissal 
has not been entered yet.  

 
C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 

 
These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 

improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects to 
be completed.    

 
 

1.  Parkland Acquisition (Sections 22, 24, 36) 
 

 Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. - The Court scheduled a jury 
trial for 2/22/05.  Premium Construction has since waived a jury 
trial, and the case will likely be scheduled for a bench trial in 
March 2005.   

 
2.  Rochester Road Sidewalk Gap Project 

 
 Troy v Michael & Glenna Switlicki – A consent judgment was 

entered with the court on 12/8/04, providing the City with the 
necessary right of way property. 

 
  3.  Big Beaver Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre  
 

Troy v Saoud & Nidhal Jamo – A summons and complaint were 
filed on 12/6/04.  A hearing for possession and payment of 
estimated compensation is scheduled for 1/5/05.  



 4

D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 
 

 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 
1983.   In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that their civil rights were somehow violated by the 
City and/or the police officers of the City of Troy.  
 

 
 Maria Elena Hunciag v. Troy- This is an alleged employment discrimination 

case filed on July 1, 2003.  According to the complaint, Ms. Hunciag argues 
that she was denied the position of Troy Museum Curator due to alleged age, 
gender, and/or national origin discrimination.  A status and scheduling 
conference is scheduled for October 3, 2003, before U.S. Federal District 
Court Judge Victoria Roberts.  Discovery continues.  A Motion for Summary 
Judgment was filed with the Court, and the parties are waiting for the 
Court to schedule a hearing on the motion. 

 
 

E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 
 

These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 
negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City enjoys 
governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within one of four 
exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, which includes 
sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which imposes liability only 
when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, 
which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) 
proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily 
to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
  

1. Nancy Cook v. Troy and Makowski-  The City was served with this lawsuit 
on 2/21/04.  According to the complaint, Ms. Cook sustained a fall on the 
sidewalk at 561 Burtman Street, the home owned by co-defendant, Ronald 
Makowski.  This fall allegedly occurred on 10/18/03.  The complaint alleges 
that the City is liable for her injuries under the defective highway exception 
to governmental immunity.  The complaint alleges that the sidewalk was 
not kept in reasonable repair.  The case was evaluated in September 2004 
by an Oakland Circuit Court panel in the amount of $35,000, which the City 
has rejected.  A motion for summary disposition is scheduled for 
2/9/05.  The Court ordered the case into non-binding facilitation to 
encourage settlement, which failed to resolve the case.   

 
2. Doris and Morris Story v. Troy– The City was served with this lawsuit on 

2/24/04.  On the morning of 5/27/03, Doris Story, a California resident, was 
walking on the sidewalk in front of the residence at 5737 Patterson Drive.  
According to the complaint, she “tripped on an uneven and dangerous buckle 



 5

in the defective sidewalk.”  Her injuries from the fall include a fractured right 
wrist and arm, in addition to pain, limited range of motion, swelling, and 
scarring from surgery.  Morris Story has asserted a claim for loss of 
consortium.  The case was evaluated in October 2004 by an Oakland 
Circuit Court case evaluation panel in the amount of $35,000, which all 
parties have rejected.  Our motion for summary disposition was denied 
by the Court, since the degree of reasonableness of repair of the 
sidewalk, and the City's knowledge of any alleged defects, remain issues 
of fact.   

4. Susan M. Sevek and Johnny Yee v. Troy– The City was served with this 
lawsuit on 6/2/04.  Susan Sevek was jogging on the sidewalk adjacent to 
Northfield Parkway, between Long Lake and Brentwood on 1/19/02.  She 
alleges that she tripped on a portion of sidewalk that was cracked and sunken, 
causing a deviation of more than 2 inches. As a result of her fall, Ms. Sevek 
allegedly sustained permanent injury to her right knee, which required multiple 
surgeries.  Johnny Yee, her husband, has asserted a claim for loss of 
consortium.  The City filed a motion for summary disposition based on the 
statute of limitations, which was granted by Oakland County Circuit 
Court Judge Deborah Tyner in October 2004.   

5.   Estate of Leslie McPherson v. Troy - This case was filed against the City on 
behalf of the Estate of Leslie McPherson by Trudy McPherson as Personal 
Representative.  The lawsuit is based on a sewer back up that occurred in 
August 2002 and is brought under the newly revised statutory exception to 
governmental immunity, MCL 691.1416, et seq.  Plaintiff’s alleged damages 
include claims of structural damage and diminution in value of the property, 
plus the costs of sanitizing and cleaning the home.  Additionally, plaintiff claims 
Leslie McPherson’s exposure to the backed up sewage resulted in his death.  
Discovery is ongoing. 

F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1.   Catherine Norris and Kathleen Livingway v. City of Troy – This lawsuit is 
identical to lawsuits filed in 12 other communities in the State of Michigan.  The 
complaint asserts that the revenue paid by cable television companies, 
pursuant to franchise agreements, constitutes an impermissible tax that is 
prohibited by the Headlee Amendment.  A motion for summary disposition, in 
addition to a motion for class certification, was scheduled for 4/21/04.  
Plaintiffs have filed appeals in several of the lawsuits against some of the 
other twelve communities in the Michigan Court of Appeals.  As a result, 
Troy’s case is stayed until these appeals are concluded.  The briefs on 
appeal have been filed. 

4. Kent Fehribach v. City of Troy – In this lawsuit, there are two challenges to the 
City’s political sign ordinance.  Plaintiff is challenging the restriction of placing 
political signs in residential areas more than 30 days prior to an election and 
the two sign per residence limit.  Plaintiff filed a motion for a temporary 



 6

restraining order, which was heard in Judge Gadola’s absence by Judge 
Steeh.  Judge Steeh temporarily restrained the City from enforcing the two 
provisions against the plaintiff until Judge Gadola entered a subsequent order. 
An Opinion and Order Granting Preliminary Injunction was entered on 
10/18/04.  The discovery phase has commenced. 

5. RWT Building, LLC v Troy –  The lawsuit was filed to amend the 1924 
recorded plat for the Crestwood Site Condominium development, which 
was recently approved by City Council.  The property cannot be 
developed in accordance with the original plat, since the lot sizes would 
not meet current City standards. 

4. Sunset Excavating, Inc. v MDOT - Sunset has indirectly sued the City 
of Troy for an alleged change order in the Big Beaver Road Project 
(from I-75 to Rochester Road).  Sunset argues that the unexpected 
requirement to remove some of the existing soil and replace it with a 
finer grade of soil justifies an additional $190,000 in compensation.  
Since the Project was partially financed with federal funds, MDOT was 
required to serve as the coordinator of the project, and therefore 
signed the contract with Sunset Excavating, Inc.  As the contracting 
party, MDOT is actually the named defendant in this lawsuit, even 
though it is the City of Troy that assumes all liability for the Project.  

 
 

G.  CRIMINAL CASE APPEALS 

1. People v. Mo Qian – Although not clear from her pleading, it appears that Ms. 
Qian has filed an appeal from her driving without a valid proof of insurance on 
person civil infraction determination and/or her driving without obtaining a valid 
Michigan driver’s license conviction of 1/29/04.  Ms. Qian received a fine for 
both of these charges.  On October 8, 2004, after reviewing the arguments 
of the parties, the court issued its opinion and order affirming the City’s 
position and the District Court’s decision.   

2. People v. Douglas Cochran – Mr. Cochran was found responsible for a 
prohibited left turn at a formal hearing (a civil infraction action).  He filed an 
appeal of this action with the Oakland County Circuit Court.  He argues that he 
was justified in committing the civil infraction offense, due to alleged improper 
signage and a failure to warn at an on-going road construction project.  Appeal 
briefs will be submitted and oral arguments scheduled in the immediate 
future. 

3. People v. Vincent Ankawi – Mr. Ankawi was found guilty of Operating 
While Intoxicated.  He has filed an appeal of his conviction with the 
Oakland County Court.  Mr. Ankawi is expected to file his appeal brief in 
the near future.  

If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



 7

 



bittnera
Text Box
J-03a



bittnera
Text Box
J-03b



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: January 19, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Hunciag v. City of Troy  
 

 
 

 
 On January 12, 2005, U.S. District Court Judge Victoria Roberts issued an order dismissing 
the federal employment claims filed by Maria Hunciag against the City of Troy.  Her federal claims 
included alleged age discrimination, national origin discrimination, gender discrimination, retaliation 
and harassment claims under federal law.  As you may recall, Ms. Hunciag is currently a part- time 
Library employee, who previously worked at the Museum.   
 

This dismissal entered by the Court on its own volition, and without oral argument, after Troy 
filed a Motion for Summary Judgment.  Judge Roberts did not address the merits of the similar state 
law employment claims, and instead declined to assume jurisdiction over the state law claims since 
all of the federal claims were dismissed.  These state law employment claims, even though similar to 
the federal claims, could be re-asserted by Ms. Hunciag by the timely initiation of a new lawsuit in 
the Oakland County Circuit Court.  However, if a new lawsuit is filed, then the City will continue to 
aggressively defend the lawsuit in the state court forum.  This includes an immediate request of 
dismissal of all of the state claims, on the basis that Plaintiff has failed to establish any viable claims 
against the City.     
 
 If you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.   
   
 
    

bittnera
Text Box
J-06



bittnera
Text Box
K-01












	AGENDA: January 24, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  (a) Officer Nickie Kaptur – First Annual

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2774 E. Maple Road – No Acti
	C-2 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, Nort
	C-3 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, Sout
	C-4 Rezoning Application – Northwest Corner of Maple Road an
	C-5 Special Assessment Roll – Sanitary Sewer in the Charnwoo
	C-6 Special Assessment Roll – Asphalt Paving of the Charnwoo

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1  No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a) Arbor Day Proclamation 2005-2006

	E-4  Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request
	E-5  Sunset Excavating, Inc. v. MDOT (As Agent for the City 
	E-6  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Deficit Elimination 
	E-7  Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM License
	E-8  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Tarek and Lin
	E-9  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement 
	E-10  Application to Transfer Ownership of an SDD-SDM Licens
	E-11  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement
	E-12  Request to Offer to Sell Surplus Parcel #1 at Appraise
	E-13  Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid –
	E-14  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Michael G. L
	E-15  Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed – Pulte Land
	E-16  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement
	E-17  Request to Approve Payment for an Above Ground Pool No
	E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooper
	E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Of
	E-20  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Election Commission; Historic District Commission;
	F-2 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines
	F-3 Donation of Historic House by Harriet Barnard
	F-4 Participation in the Administration of School District E
	F-5 Sole Source – Purchase of Hurst Hydraulic Spreaders
	F-6 Final Engineering Proposal for Sylvan Glen Golf Course S

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Preliminary Site Plan Review and Ame�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Summary of Phase I Findings for Water System Feasibility Stu
	Voter Identification Cards and Absentee Voter Applications
	Recommendation to Reject Proposal for Nature Center Exhibits
	Recreation Pass Fee Recommendations for 2005
	Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Operation


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 1, 2004
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – December 7, 2004
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Decem
	Planning Commission/Final – December 14, 2004
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 5, 2005
	Library Board/Draft – January 13, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) Travel Expense Report – Mayor Louise�
	Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued During the Yea
	Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued During the Mon
	Building and Zoning Department Permits Issued July Through D
	December 31, 2004 Quarterly Financial Report
	2004 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Chur
	Certificate of Appreciation Thanking Sergeant Don Ostrowski 

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Hunciag v. City of Troy

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  Community Media Network

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



